
11120123,7:53 AM Constant Contact

College of Chirnpraetors nf Ontario
L'Ordre des fihiropr"aticiens de l'Ontario

ITEM 3.1

President's Message: September 79, 2023 - Draft
Amendments to Standard of Practice S-OO3:
Professional Portfolio and By-laws for Circulation and
Feedhack

Update - Council Meeting September 8, 2023 and Strategic Planning
Sessions September 9, LO,2023

CCO Council and staff have just returned from a successful Council meeting
and strategic planning sessions. Here is an update on some of our initiatives,
and two opportunities for you to have input into items being considered by
Council,

Potential Amendment to Standard of Practice S-OO3: Professional
Portfolio

The Quality Assurance Committee recommended to Council circulation of
amendments to S-003: Professional Portfolio to include five (5) hours of
hands-on activity relating to spinal adjustment or manipulation to be
completed once every three (3) CE cycles (or six years). Members will be
aware that although there is a continuing education (CE) requirement for five
(5) hours in diagnostic or therapeutic procedures related to controlled acts,
peer assessors have observed that much of this requirement is being
completed through remote learning related to communicating a diagnosis
and/or ordering radiographs. Council approved the circulation of changes to
require hands-on learning specific to members'authority to perform the
controlled act of moving the joints of the spine. The public interest rationale
includes ensuring a basic level of competency in a fundamental skill that
members are authorized to perform by governing legislation'

Please review the draft amendments to Standard of Practice 5-003:
Professional Portfolio, indicated in underline on page five (5), and provide any
feedback through the p-e-rtal by November 19, 2023'

By-law Amendments Being Considered

For several years now, CCO has been engaged in a process of systematically
reviewing, consulting on, and amending its by-laws, in keeping with the
College's commitment to regulatory excellence in a diverse environment.

As President, helping to guide this work of carefully analyzing and amending
by-laws to strengthen the College's governance, all while building on the
efforts of previous Councils, is a significant priority.

A leading expert on regulatory performance, Harvard Professor Malcolm
Sparrow, observed that a regulatory system is not just supported by formal
rules, but also by norms, best practices and, of equal importance, community
expectations. This is why when examining our by-laws we should not just ask

https://app.constantcontact.com/paqes/campaiqns/email-details/details/aciivitv/9aa2b86e-9308-483B-aa87-a2412a20ef7b 1t5

15



11120123,7:53 AM

I
j

l

l
=
E
-l
=-j
_:

l

-l

Constant Contact

if something is technically permissible within the relevant governing statutes,
but also whether it is the right thing to do,

The CCO's ongoing by-law review has been informed by this spirit.

At the August tL, 2023 meeting of the CCO Executive Committee, several by-
law amendments were approved to be brought forward to CCO Council. Most
of these recent amendments make the language used more inclusive and
gender neutral, such as replacing "his/her" with "their", or "member", as
appropriate (11 by-laws were affected). A significant number of amendments
were undertaken to make minor grammatical changes for sentence clarity, or
to be consistent with related by-laws, or to correct small typographic errors
(10 by-laws were affected).

In the remaining instances, the by-law amendments were designed to enhance
the efficacy of CCO's Council and committees, to ensure that the members
who serve on them are the best equipped to do so. This has been done in
accordance with the College's published Competencies for Council and
Committee members. For example, following a detailed review of best
practices at 11 Ontario health regulatory colleges and three non-health
regulatory bodies concerning the nomination of candidates to committees, an
amendment was made to By-law 7 Elections Within Council. (The best
practices review was undertaken by outside legal counsel engaged by CCO and
governance experts at SML Law,) Specifically, By-law 7,11was amended to
include the CCO President on the Nomination Committee. The rationale being,
in part, that the President likely has a great deal of experience of Council and
its committees and is well versed in their various roles and mandates in terms
of nominating suitable candidates, The details will be set out in policy.

Additional amendments pertained to eligibility for Council. These included
amendments to by-law 6.9 which, in the interest of consistency, extend the
'cooling off' period from three to six years for any member seeking to be
elected from when they had been last engaged with the leadership (as
defined) of a chiropractic advocacy group, or chiropractic education
organization, or had resigned from CCO Council before the completion of their
term. The suggestion to harmonize the cooling off periods was first proposed
by a former CCO President during the College's recent consultations on
amendments to By-law 6.

Other amendments to by-law 6.9 address a member's ineligibility to become a
candidate for Council. These require that a member is not, and has not been
within the preceding six years, an adverse party in litigation against CCO
6.9(q); that the member is not an accused currently charged with a criminal
offence under the Criminal Code of Canada 6.9(r); and that the member has
not been convicted of a criminal offence for which the member has not
received a pardon pursuant to the Criminal Code of Canada 6.9(s). The clear
public interest rationale for these three amendments (q), (r), (s) is that the
member is ineligible as a result being in a conflict of interesf - in 6.9 (q) with
CCO itself, and in the case of 6.9 (r) and (s), the conflict of interest is with the
duty to serve and protect the public interest as a member of CCO Council,

In addition to meeting eligibility criteria, the competencies expected of
candidates for, or members of, Council and Committee also include a deep
understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities of Council members as stewards
of CCO. Fiduciary responsibilities extend beyond a narrow reading of financial
accountability, to include due diligence, respect, ethics, confidentiality, loyalty
and of course conflict of interest.

https://app.constantcontact.com/paqes/campaiqns/email-details/details/activitv/9aa2bB6e-9308-4838-aa 87-a2412a20ef7b 215

I

16



11120123,7:53 AM Constant Contact

To be fair, it is not assumed that all prospective candidates or Council
members are already experts in all the competencies and responsibilities. CCO
provides many orientation sessions, modules and ongoing training and support
for Council members that I and many other Council colleagues have found
invaluable. This training, alongside the formal articulation of core
competencies for Council members, are a key component of CCO's (and other
leading health regulatory colleges') efforts to strengthen college leadership,
and to align with the goals and benchmarks of the Ministry of Health and
Long-Term Care's College Performance Measurement Framework.

A review and opinion were also sought on related governance matters with
respect to voting on amendments (and other business), and specifically the
role of the Chair, CCO'S existing by-law stipulates that the Council Chair votes
only in the event of a tie, although that is not a universal practice within other
colleges or organizations generally. For example, while the Ontario College of
Pharmacists mirrors CCO's approach, the College of Nurses of Ontario does not
require the Chair to vote regardless of the outcome, though they may vote if
they wish. In the event of a tie, the motion is considered to be defeated. The
Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario and the College of Physicians and
Surgeons of Ontario likewise have the by-law provision that a tied vote defeats
the motion, although in both colleges the vote of the Chair is counted along
with every other council member. Council agreed to include a right to vote for
the Chair to vote as part of the by-law amendments, with the proviso that the
Chair votes last on any matter before Council. There are other by-law
amendments under active consideration including, for example, requiring a 2/g
majority vote to amend a by-law. The Executive Committee will be considering
these and other amendments with further recommendations going to Council.

Proposed amendments to By-law 12: Appointment of Non-Council Members
include applying the same criteria for the election of Council members to the
appointment of non-Council committee members to help ensure consistent
practices are applied, As well, proposed amendments to By-law 13: Fees
include the addition of certificate and application fees to the new Emergency
class of registration certificate (approved by the Ministry of Health on August
3L,2023), and the exemption of additional registration fees for those
members moving from the Emergency class to the General class of
registration. Proposed new By-laws 13.14 and 13.26 codify fees payable by a

member for a Specified Continuing Education or Remediation Program (SCERP)

or reinstatement application.

I realize that in the course of our busy lives, some of these amendments and
considerations may seem like minutiae, and that for many people the world of
by-laws and governance can be obscure and complex at best-and cause their
eyes to glaze over at worst.

What I have attempted to share with you in this message is but a glimpse of
the breadth and depth of the ongoing by-law review and reform at CCO,
spurred on by our commitment to exceed expectations. There will be further
communication to all stakeholders, including members, on the topics discussed
during strategic planning, including evaluating Council effectiveness, the
College Performance Measurement Framework, and effective communications.
Stay tuned for further updates.

Please review the proposed by-law amendments, summarized in the following
chart and provide any feedback through the porEal by November 19, 2023'

Feedback from all stakeholders, including members will be reviewed by the
Quality Assurance Committee and the Executive Committee with further

https://app.constantcontact.com/paqes/campaions/email-details/details/activitv/9aa2bB6e-9308-4838-aa87-a2412a2oeflb 3/5

17



11120123.7:53 AM

rl

=!

.:

https://app.constantcontact.com/paqes/campaiqns/email-details/details/activitv/9aa2b86e-9308-4838-aa87-a2412a20ef7b 415

Constant Contact

recommendations, informed by the feedback, to be considered by the full
Council. Thank you for participating in CCO's ongoing efforts in delivering
competent, diligent and ethical regulation of chiropractic in the public interest
in Ontario!

18Sincerely,

oa

Dr. Sarah Green
CCO President

Council and staff at Strategic Planning September 9, 70,2023



11120123,7:53 AM Constant Contact

College of Chiropractors of Ontario | 59 Hayden Slreet, Suite 800, Toronto, M4Y 0E7 Canada

Unsubscribe jfriedman@cco.on.ca

Up_d_a!e_epl-!9. I Constant Contact Data Notice

Sent by cco.info@cco.on.ca powered by

19

Zt Constqnt
\17 Contoct
Try email marketing for free todayl

https://app.constantcontact.com/paqes/campaiqns/email-details/details/activitv/gaa2b86e-9308-4838-aa87-a2412a20ef7b 5/5



20
Dnnrr PnoposEo Byl-lw Arueruoruerurs AppRovED ey GouNrcrL FoR DrsrrueuroN AND Feroelcx:
SepreMeER 8, 2023 (Pnoeoseo ArueruoMENrs NDERLINED

ClnculerED To SraxeHoLDERS, lrucluorttc MeMeens: Sepreuaen 19,2023

Bv-lRw 1: DerrunoNs AND lrurenpRETATtoN

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GGO By-law
ln these by-laws, unless the context
otherwise dictates,

"Administrator" in the context of a

chiropractic educational institution
means one who occupies an executive,
management and/or policy-making
position;

"AFC" means the Alliance for
Chiropractic

"Appointed Member" means a member
of the Council appointed by the
Lieutenant Governor in Council;

"By-laws" means by-laws made by the
Council;

"CAC" means the Chiropractic
Awareness Council;

By-law
1..1.

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



,. 1
illll[ut]]il I ,l

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

2

21
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GCO By-law

"CCA" means the Canadian Chiropractic
Association;

"CCEB" means the Canadian Chiropractic
Examining Board;

"CCEC" means the Council on
Chi ropractic Education (Canada);

"CCPA" means the Canadian
Ch iropractic P rotective Association;

"CCRF' means the Canadian Chiropractic
Research Foundation;

"Chiropractic Act'' means the
Ch i ro p ra ctic Act, L99 L ;

"CMCC" means the Canadian Memorial
Chiropractic College;

"CNAC" means the Canadian National
Alliance for Chiropractic;

'Code' means the Health Professions
Procedural Code, Schedule 2 to the
Reguloted Heolth Professions Act, L991;

"Council Member" means a member of
the Council of CCO

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law
"CSCE" means the Canadian Society of
Chiropractic Evaluators;

"CCO" means the College of
Chiropractors of Ontario;

"Council" means the Council of the CCO;

"Elected Member" means a member of
the Council elected by the members of
the CCO;

"FCC" mean the Federation of Canadian
Chiropractic;

"Member" means a member of the CCO;

"OCA" means the Ontario Chiropractic
Association;

"Non-Chiropractic Com mittee Member/'
means an individual appointed under
the by-laws to serve as a member of a
committee who is neither a member of
the Council nor a Member;

"Non-Council Member" means a

committee member who is a member of
the College but is not a member of
Council;

By-law

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

3

22
Public I nterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



...,1. .u

Recommended AmendmentsGurrent CGO By-law
"Prescribed" means prescribed in the
regulations or by-laws;

"Primary practice" is the business
address of the member as reported to
CCO in accordance with the RHPA and
By-law 17;

"Primary residence" is the member's
residential address as reported to CCO

in accordance with By-law 17;

"RHPA" means lhe Regulated Health
Professions Act, 1991;

"UQTR" means Universit6 du Queb6c d

Trois-Rividres.

The definitions contained in the RHPA

and Chiroproctic Act are incorporated
and adopted in the by-laws unless the
context otherwise dictates.

Any act referred to by name shall mean
that act in force at the relevant time as

amended, or replaced.

The by-laws shall be governed and
construed in accordance with the laws

of Ontario.

By-law

1..2

1.3

L.4

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

4

23
Publ ic lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsCurrent GCO By-law
ln the event of an inconsistency
between the by-laws and the RHPA,

Chi ropractic Act, or the regu lations
under those acts, the RHPA, lhe
Chiroproctic Act and the regulations
under those acts shall govern.

The CCO and its representatives are

excused from complying with an

obligation set out in these by-laws,
including acting within a specified time
period, where compliance is not feasible
because of an emergency such as a

pandemic or war.

The registrar is authorized to make non-

substantive corrections to the official
version of these by-laws including where
there are typographical errors, spelling

and grammar mistakes, formatting
anomalies, incorrect numbering of
provisions, and inaccurate cross-

references to other provisions.

By-law
1.5

1.6

1.7

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2O23

5

24
Public lnterest Rationale

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



,'.,,]-'- ,_L.__.

6Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved Council for Distribution and Feedback:

By-mw 2: Senl

Seal on Website

ber 2023

25

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By-law
The seal shown on this page is the seal

of CCO.

The registrar, president, vice-president
and treasurer and such other person or
persons as may be authorized by Council
shall each have authority to affix the
seal of CCO to any document.

By.law
2.t

2.2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

Bv.uw 3: EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS

7

26

Public lnterest Rationale
For clarity: the type of document is

identified before those authorized to sign it

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendlnents
Unless otherwise provided by law or the
by-laws, a document that has financial
implications for CCO of-€@ shall be

signed by: the registrar or the deputy
registrar and one of the president, vice-
president or treasurer

@;anda
document that does not have financial
implications for CCO mav be siened bv the
registrar or the deputy registrar, or
someone authorized by either of them.
him/her; if the deeurnent dees net have

finaneial implieatiens fer €€e.

Current CGO By-law
Unless otherwise provided by law or the
by-laws, a document of CCO shall be

signed by: the registrar or the deputy
registrar and one of the president, vice-
president or treasurer if the document
has financial implications for CCO; and

the registrar or the deputy registrar, or
someone authorized by him/her, if the
document does not have financial
implications for CCO.

Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary contained in the by-laws of
CCO, Council may, at any time, by

resolution, direct the manner in which,
and the person or persons by whom,
any instrument in writing or class of
instruments in writing made on behalf
of CCO may or shall be executed.

By-law
3.1

3.2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



-1 ._L r,.lt r ..t. ,l .tl- I J[[l,[ililnl] t lll -!l .,ill_,- - .

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

8

27
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GGO By-law

A person who may sign a document may
impress the seal of CCO upon the
document if the seal is required and if
the document has been signed as

required by the by-laws.

Minutes of Council meetings shall be
signed by any two of the president, vice-
president, treasu rer or registra r.

Proposed regulations shall be signed by
the registrar and one of the president,
vice-president or treasurer.

Decisions made by the panel of the
Discipline Committee and/or the Fitness
to Practise Committee of CCO shall be
signed by all members participating in
the decision.

Documents of a committee, such as a
notice of a summons, shall be signed by
a representative of the committee.

By-law
3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

Bv-uw 4: BanrcNG AND Ftrueuce

I

28

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent GGO By-law
The Executive Committee shall appoint a

chartered bank where deposits are
insured by the Canadian Deposit

lnsurance Corporation for the use of
CCO.

All money belonging to CCO shall be

deposited in the name of CCO with the
bank without deduction for any purpose

whatsoever.

The registrar or deputy registrar may

endorse any negotiable instrument for
collection on account of CCO through
the bank for deposit to the credit of CCO

with the bank.

By-law
4.r

4.2

4.3

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



_-. t.J_ l4l[ltf tfll ] r I r.l ..Llll

10

29
Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law
The registrar or deputy registrar and one
of the president, vice-president or
treasurer may invest or reinvest funds of
CCO, not immediately required, in:

(a) bonds, debentures, or other
evidences of indebtedness of or
guaranteed by the Government of
Canada or the Government of Ontario;
or

(b) deposit receipts, deposit notes,
certificates of deposit, and other similar
instruments issued or endorsed by a
chartered bank.

The Executive Committee may by
resolution decide to invest or reinvest
funds of CCO, not immediately required,
in securities outlined in By-law 4.4
above.

The registrar or deputy registrar and one
of the president, vice-president or
treasurer shall sign documents to
implement a decision made by the
Executive Committee pursuant to By-law
4.5 above.

By{aw
4.4

4.5

4.6

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

11

30
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent GGO By-law

The Council may from time to time by

resolution:

(a) borrow money on the credit of CCO;

(b) limit or increase the amount or
amounts to be borrowed; and

(c) secure any present or future
borrowing, or any debt, obligation, or
liability of the College, by charging,
mortgaging, hypothecating or pledging

all or any of the real or personal

property of CCO, whether present or
futu re.

The Executive Committee shall not
exercise the powers or duties of the
Council under By-law 4.7 above or take
any similar action.

The registrar or deputy registrar and one

of the president, vice-president or
treasurer shall sign documents to
implement a decision made by the
Council pursuant to By-law 4.7 above.

By-law
4.7

4.8

4.9

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



t: : It]iltillltntrMll .L-1 lll

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

12

31
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law

Goods or services may be purchased or
leased for the benefit of CCO if the
purchase or lease is approved by:

(a) the registrar or the deputy registrar,
if the resulting obligation does not
exceed S25,000;

(b) the registrar or the deputy registrar
and one of the president, vice-president,
or treasurer if the resulting obligation is
between 525,000 and 550,000; and

(c) the registrar or the deputy registrar
and two of the president, vice-president,
or treasurer if the resulting obligation
exceeds S50,000.

By-law
4.LO

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

Bv-law 5: FrnnrucrAL Yenn AND Auotrtruc

13

32

Fublic lnterest Rationale

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments

lf the Auditor is unable to continue his-€r
he+dnties to act, or in the event Council is

dissatisfied with the Auditor, Council may

appoint a new Auditor.

Current GGO By-law
The financial year of CCO shall be from
the Lst of January of one year to the
31st of December of the same year.

Council shall appoint annually one or
more Auditors who are licensed under
the Public Accounting Act, 2004 to audit
CCO's financial statements.

Financial statements for CCO shall be

prepared at the close of each Fiscal Year

and audited financial statements,
together with the Auditor's report, shall

be presented annually to Council.

The Auditor shall serve for a term of one
year, but if an appointment is not made
the Auditor shall continue to serve until
a successor is appointed.

The Auditor may be re-appointed at the
discretion of Council.

lf the Auditor is unable to continue his

or her duties or in the event Council is

dissatisfied with the Auditor, Council
may appoint a new Auditor.

By-law
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

. | . -i _LIIlI]lll1!rr lli ..r-.

Public lnterest Rationale

14

33

DEI: gender neutral language

DEI: gender neutral language

Recom mended Amendments

The Auditor has a right of access at all
reasonable times to all records,
documents, books, accounts and vouchers
of CCO and is entitled to require from the
Council members, officers and employees
and relevant payees of CCO such

information as in his er her the Auditor's
opinion is necessary to enable
the Auditor to report as required by law or
under this section.

The Auditor is entitled to attend any
meeting of Council and to be heard at any
such meeting that*eo++he+ttends o n

any part of the business of the meeting
that concerns the audit th€{T-€s+iudi+€+.

Gurrent GGO By-law
Council shall cause the performance of
the Auditor to be evaluated on an
annual basis and shall take such

evaluation into account when
considering the re-appointment of the
Auditor.

Council shall set the remuneration of
the Auditor and confirm the
appointment and remuneration in
writing.

The Auditor has a right of access at all

reasonable times to all records,
documents, books, accounts and
vouchers of CCO and is entitled to
require from the Council members,
officers and employees and relevant
payees of CCO such information as in his

or her opinion is necessary to enable
him or her to report as required by law
or under this section.

The Auditor is entitled to attend any
meeting of Council and to be heard at
any such meeting that he or she attends
on any part of the business of the
meeting that concerns them as Auditor.

By-law
5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Consistency with prior by-law provisions

Consistency with prior by-law provisions

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
The Auditor a+rd+te+ shall report to the
Executive Committee upon reasonable
request by the Executive Committee and
in any event at the last meeting of the
Executive Committee before the annual
meeting of Council.

The auditer Audito"r shall report in writing
to the Council at the annual meeting of
Council on the financialstatement which
shall be submitted to each annual meeting
and shall state in the report whether, in

his/h€r the Audito/s opinion, the financial
statement presents fairly the financial
position of CCO and the results or its
operations for the period under review in

accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applied on a basis

consistent with that of the preceding
period.

Current GCO By-law
The auditor shall report to the Executive
Committee upon reasonable request by

the Executive Committee and in any
event at the last meeting of the
Executive Committee before the annual
meeting of Council.

The auditor shall report in writing to the
Council at the annual meeting of Council
on the financial statement which shall
be submitted to each annual meeting
and shall state in the report whether, in

his/her opinion, the financial statement
presents fairly the financial position of
CCO and the results or its operations for
the period under review in accordance
with generally accepted accounting
principles applied on a basis consistent
with that of the preceding period.

The Executive Committee shall not
exercise the powers or duties of the
Council under this by-law.

By-law
5.11

5.12

5.13

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

15

34
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



t. t .ul .t_._u_.tr ;lnllEllll.El i I I I L]

16

35

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

By.mw 6: EIecTIoN oF COUNCIL MEMBERS

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CGO By-law
Electoral District 1: Northern comprised
of the districts of Kenora, Rainy River,

Thunder Bay, Algoma, Cochrane,
Manitoulin, Parry Sound, Nipissing,
Timiskaming; the district municipality of
Muskoka; and the city of Greater
Sudbury.

Electoral District 2: Eastern comprised
ofthe counties of Frontenac, Hastings,
Lanark, Prince Edward, Renfrew, Lennox
and Addington; the united counties of
Leeds and Grenville, Prescott and
Russell, Stormont, Dundas and
Glengarry; and the city of Ottawa.

Electoral District 3: Central East

comprised of the counties of Haliburton,
Northu mberland, Peterborough, and
Simcoe, the city of Kawartha Lakes, the
regional municipality of Durham and the
township of Scugog.

Electoral District 4: €entral comprised
of the city of Toronto and the regional
municipality of York.

By-law
6.1

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments

A member is eligible to vote in District 7

and in the electoral district in which the
m€mbe+, as of January 1't of the election
year, has$jsfhe+ the member's primary
practice is located, or if the member is not
engaged in the practice of chiropractic, in

which the msrn[srt ha€'+islh€lE primary
residence is located.

Gurrent GGO By-law

Electoral District 5: Central West
comprised of the counties of Brant,
Dufferin, Wellington, Haldimand and
Norfolk, the regional municipalities of
Halton, Niagara, Peel and Waterloo, and
the city of Hamilton.

Electoral District 5: Western comprised
of the counties of Essex, Bruce, Grey,

Lambton, Elgin, Middlesex, Huron, Perth
and Oxford, and the municipality of
Chatham-Kent.

Electoral District 7: Academic comprised
of the entire province of Ontario.

A member is eligible to vote in District 7

and in the electoral district in which the
member, as of January 1't of the election
year, has his/her primary practice, or if
the member is not engaged in the
practice of chiropractic, in which the
member has his/her primary residence.

By-law

6.2

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

17

36
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.t ..-. "i..
tilil,mfiiltfi r l -".1 .1".1 "!| .

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

18

37
Public lnterest Rationale

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments

The term of office of a member elected to
Council is approximately three years,

commencing with the first regular meeting
of Council immediately following the
election. The member shall continue to
serve in office until hi#he+ a successor
takes office in accordance with this by-
law.

Current CGO By-law
For each electoral district referred to in
column 1 of the following table, there
shall be elected to Council the number
of members set out opposite in column
2.

Column 2
Number of
Members
L

1.

1

2

2

1

1.

Column 1

Electora I

District
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

The term of office of a member elected
to Council is approximately three years,

commencing with the first regular
meeting of Council immediately
following the election. The member shall
continue to serve in office until his/her
successor takes office in accordance
with this by-law.

By-law
6.3

6.4

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

19

38
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law

A member who has served on Council
for nine consecutive years is ineligible
for election to Council until a full three
year term has passed since that member
last served on Council.

An election of members to Council shall

be held in or about of March of each
year in accordance with the following
schedule:

(a) in 2021 and every third year after
that for electoral district 1 and one
Council member for each of electoral
districts 4 and 5;

(b) in 2O22 and every third year after
that for electoral districts 2 and 3 and
one Council member for electoral
district 4;

(c) in 2023 and every third year after
that for electoral districts 6 and 7 and

one Council member for electoral
district 5.

The registrar shall set the date for the
election of members to Council.

By-law

6.5

6.6

6.7

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

I lillllllmil iil

Public lnterest Rationale

20

39

DEI: gender neutral language

DEI: gender neutral language

Clarity in language

Recommended Amendments
A member is ineligible to vote in a council
election if he /she is in default of payment
of any fees prescribed by by-law or any
fine or order for costs to CCO imposed by
a CCO committee or court of law oris if in
default in providing and returning any
information required by CCO.

A member is eligible for election to
Council in an electoral district, if on the
closing date of nominations and anytime
up to and including the date ofthe
election:

(a) the member's hes+is/h€r primary
practice of chiropractic is located in the
electoral district in which h€lshe the
member is nominated or, if the member is

not engaged in the practice of
chiropractic, fss-higfts+ the mem ber's
primary residence is located in the
electoral district in which h€/€he the
member is nominated;

(b) the member is not in default of
payments of any fees prescribed by by-law
or any fine or order fe+ to pav costs to
CCO imposed by a CCO committee or
court of law;

Current CGO By-law
A member is ineligible to vote in a

council election if he/she is in default of
payment of any fees prescribed by by-
law or any fine or order for costs to CCO

imposed by a CCO committee or court of
law or is in default in providing and
returning any information required by
cco.

A member is eligible for election to
Council in an electoral district, if on the
closing date of nominations and anytime
up to and including the date of the
election:

(a) the member has his/her primary
practice of chiropractic located in the
electoral district in which he/she is

nominated or, if the member is not
engaged in the practice of chiropractic,
has his/her primary residence located in
the electoral district in which he/she is

nominated;

(b) the member is not in default of
payments of any fees prescribed by by-
law or any fine or order for costs to CCO

imposed by a CCO committee or court of
law;

By-law
6.8

6.9

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Best practices: lncapacity is a form or illness
It requires different treatment from
professiona I misconduct or incompetence.

Consistency: cooling off period

Recommended Amendments

(c) the member is not in default in
completing and returning any form
required by CCO;

(d) the member is not the subject of
any disciplinary or incapacity
proceeding;

(e) a finding of professional misconduct,
incompetence or incapacity has not been
made against the member in the
preceding six years;

lfl /npurl if a mpmher hac hctpn fnrr nd fn

be incapacitated, CCO receives
confirmation from their treatine
practitioner that the member is phvsicallv

and mentallv capable to serve on Council

or a committee.

ld the member has not resigned from a

position on Council, before completing the
thei+ term, within the last t++ee S.!2lyears
and four months;

Ih) the member does not have an

outstanding code of conduct matter with
the College.

Gurrent GCO By-law

(c) the member is not in default in
completing and returning any form
required by CCO;

(d) the member is not the subject of
any disciplinary or incapacity
proceeding;

(e) a finding of professional misconduct,
incompetence or incapacity has not
been made against the member in the
preceding six years;

(f) the member has not resigned from a

position on Council, before completing
their term, within the last three years

and four months;

(g) the member does not have an

outstanding code of conduct matter
with the College.

By-law

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

21

40
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.. ti ., t._.tLLLlflilmnTfiilll]i t L.l .!l

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

22

4t
Public lnterest Rationale
Consistency: cooling off period

Consistency: cooling off period

Recommended Amendments

llthe member is not, and has not been in
preceding th+ee six years, an employee,
officer or director of any professional
chiropractic association such that a real or
apparent conflict of interest may arise,
including but not limited to being an

employee, officer or director of the OCA,

CCA, CCPA, AFC, CCEB, CSCE, the CCEC of
the FCC, CCRF or CNAC;

ID the member is not, and has not been in

the p+eeeeCing precedine +h+ee six years,

an officer, director, or administrator of
any chiropractic educational institution,
including but not limited to, CMCC and
UQTR, such that a real or apparent conflict
of interest may arise;

l!) the member has not been
disqualified from the Council or a

committee of the Council in the previous
six years;

{!) the member is not a member of the
Council or of a committee of the College
of any other health profession;

Current CGO By-law
(h) the member is not, and has not
been in preceding three years, an

employee, officer or director of any
professional chiropractic association
such that a real or apparent conflict of
interest may arise, including but not
limited to being an employee, officer or
director of the OCA, CCA, CCPA, AFC,

CCEB, CSCE, the CCEC ofthe FCC, CCRF

or CNAC;

(i) the member is not, and has not
been in the proceeding three years, an

officer, director, or administrator of any
chiropractic educationa I institution,
including but not limited to, CMCC and
UQTR, such that a real or apparent
conflict of interest may arise;

(j) the member has not been
disqualified from the Council or a

committee of the Council in the previous

six years;

(k) the member is not a member of the
Council or of a committee of the College
of any other health profession;

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Consistency: cooling off period

Consistency: cooling off period

Best practices: A member who engages or
has engaged in litigation against CCO is in a

real or perceived conflict of interest

Best practices: A member facing a criminal
prosecution or convicted of a criminal
offence is in a conflict of interest with the
duty to serve and protect the public interest.
Criminal offences that are unrelated to the
practice of the profession and might not
warrant discipline proceedings do not reflect
on the member's integrity to be eligible for
election as a Council member

Recommended Amendments
(m) the member has not been a member
of the staff of CCO at any time within the
preceding three six years;

ls) for District 7 only, the member is a

member of the faculty of an accredited
educational institution; and

lp) for any district other than District 7,

the member is not eligible for election in

District 7 , and has not been eligible for
election in District 7 in the preceding +hrce
six years;

(q) (new) the member is not, and has not
been within the preceding six vears, an

adverse partv in litigation aeainst CCO, the
Council of CCO. a committee of CCO. or
anv of CCO's directors, officers, emplovees

or asents, on a matter related to CCO

business;

(r) (new) the member is not an accused

currentlv chareed with a criminal offence
under the Criminal Code of Canada; and

(s) (new) the member has not been

convicted of a criminal offence for which
the member has not received a pardon

^,r'-,r^h+ +^ +L^ a-i- I Code of CanadaI

Current CGO By-law
(l) the member has not been a member
of the staff of CCO at any time within
the preceding three years;

(m)for District 7 only, the member is a

member of the faculty of an accredited
educational institution; and

(n) for any district other than District 7,

the member is not eligible for election in

District 7, and has not been eligible for
election in District 7 in the preceding
three years.

By-law

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

23

42
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Il . r i,il. l]5lronfllfiJil ._tr.-.11-.]ltt - I

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

24

43
Public lnterest Rationale

r ....1 .,.1.

For clarity

Recommended Amendments

The nomination of a candidate for election
as a member of Council, and toeether with
the written undertaking to the CCO

Registrar@shallbe
given to the registrar at least 35 days

before the date of the election (i.e., the
nomination date).

Gurrent GCO By-law
The registrar shall supervise the
nomination of candidates.

No later than 50 days before the date of
an election, the registrar shall notify
every member eligible to vote of the
date, time and place of the election and
of the nomination procedure.

The nomination of a candidate for
election as a member of Council, and
undertaking to the CCO Registrar shall
be in writing and shall be given to the
registrar at least 35 days before the date
of the election (i.e., the nomination
date).

The nomination shall be signed bythe
candidate and by at least 10 members
who support the nomination and who
are eligible to vote in the electoral
district in which the election is to be

held.

By-law
6.10

6.11

6.\2

6.13

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



DEI: gender neutral language

Clarity: only eligible candidates

Recommended Amendments

The A candidate may withdraw
neminatien fer from the election to
Council no laterthan 25 days before the
date of the election.

lf the number of elieible candidates who
have been nominated for an electoral
district is less than or equal to the number
of members to be elected, the registrar
shall declare the candidates to be elected
by acclamation.

Gurrent GGO By-law
The candidate shall provide to the
registrar by the nomination date or such

later date as the registrar permits,

biographical information in a manner
acceptable to the registrar including
content that is suitable for CCO's public

interest mandate, for the purpose of
distribution to eligible members in
accordance with the by-laws.

The candidate may withdraw his or her
nomination for election to Council no

later than 25 days before the date ofthe
election.

lf the number of candidates nominated
for an electoral district is less than or
equal to the number of members to be
elected, the registrar shall declare the
candidates to be elected by acclamation.

By-law
6.L4

6.]_s

6.16

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

25

44
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



;.,.,,'L. i- i lllilmmifilir l I .r t-L _lLt . I

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

26

45
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law

The registrar shall supervise and
administer the election of candidates
and, for the purpose of carrying out that
duty, the registrar may, subject to the
by-laws,

(a) appoint returning officers and
scrutineers;

(b) establish a deadline for the receiving
of electronic ballots;

(c) provide for the notification of all
candidates and members of the results
of the election;

(d) if there has been a non-compliance
with a nomination or election
requ irement, determine whether the
non-compliance should be waived in

circumstances where the fairness of the
election will not be affected; and

(e) provide for the destruction of
electronic ballots following an election.

By-law
6.r7

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended Amendments
No later than l-0 days before the date of
an election, the registrar shall send
electronically, or by any other medium as

determined by Council, to every member
eligible to vote in an electoral district in
which an election is to take place, a list of
the candidates, the candidates'
biographical information if provided, an

explanation ofthe voting procedure, and
electronic access to a ballot for voting.

Current GCO By-law
No later than 10 days before the date of
an election, the registrar shall send
electronically, or any other medium as

determined by Council, to every
member eligible to vote in an electoral
district in which an election is to take
place, a list of the candidates, the
candidates' biographical information if
provided, an explanation of the voting
procedure, and electronic access to a

ballot for voting.

Voting for elections of member to
Council shall be by electronic method or
any other medium as determined by
Council.

By-law
6.18

6.19

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

27

46
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ll

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

28

47
Public lnterest Rationale

..,.11l]lrl . .1. r I l,llllltmnll I | .l ,|l - -.-t.t.r ." ..

Recommended AmendmentsGurrent GCO By.law
The instruction for voting shall contain
the following:

a) a member may cast as many votes
on a ballot in an election of members to
the Council as there are members to be

elected to Council from the electoral
district in which the member is eligible
to vote;

b) a member shall not cast more than
one vote for any one candidate;

c) a member shall clearly indicate the
voter's choice in one of the appropriate
places on the electronic ballot to
indicate the voter's choice;

d) the electronic vote shall be received
by 4 pm on the date indicated in the
notice of election and voting guide; and

e) the electronic vote will not be

counted in the election unless it has

been received in accordance with the
instructions for voting.

By-law
6.70

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

29

48
Public lnterest Rationale
DEI: gender neutral language

To correct typographical error

Recommended Amendments

On the date of the election, the registrar
or his/he+ an agent designated by the
registrar, shall tally the votes for each

candidate in each electoral district with a

contested election.

A candidate may require a recount by
giving a written request and depesitien
depositins the sum or StsO wittr the
registrar no more than 15 days after the
date of an election.

Gurrent CCO By-law

On the date of the election, the registrar
or his/her agent shall tally the votes for
each candidate in each electoral district
with a contested election.

The counting of the electronic votes
shall be conducted so that no person

knows for whom any member voted.

Candidates or their representatives may

be present when the electronic votes
are counted.

lf there is a tie in an election of
members to the Council, the registrar
shall break the tie by lot.

A candidate may require a recount by
giving a written request and deposition
the sum or stso with the registrar no

more than 15 days after the date of an

election.

The registrar shall hold the recount no

more than 10 days after receiving the
request.

By-law
6.27

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



. .._t ,.1. L rl ..Lllr

30Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved Council for Distribution and Feedback 8 2023

49
Public Interest RationaleRecommended Amendments

The Council shall disqualify an elected
member from sitting on Council if the
elected member:

(a) is subject of any disciplinary or
incapacity proceeding;

(b) is found to have committed an act of
professional misconduct or is found to be
incompetent by a panel of the Discipline
Committee;

Current CCO By-law
lf the recount changes the election
result, the full amount of the deposit
shall be refunded to the candidate. lf
the recount does not change the
election result, CCO will keep the
deposit to partially offset recount costs,
including staff time.

When there is an interruption of
communications during a nomination or
election, the registrar shall extend the
holding of nominations and election for
such minimum period of time as the
registrar considers necessary to
compensate for the interruption.

The Council shall disqualify an elected
member from sitting on Council if the
elected member:

(a) is subject of any disciplinary or
i nca pacity proceeding;

(b) is found to have committed an act of
professional misconduct or is found to
be incompetent by a panel of the
Discipline Committee;

By-law
6.27

6.28

6.29

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



DEI: gender neutral language

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
(c) is found to be an incapacitated
member by a panel of the Fitness to
Practice Committee;

(d)fails to attend two consecutive

meetings of the Councll or of a committee
or of a subcommittee in on which he/she
isa the member glftr without reasonable

cause in the opinion of Council;

(e) fails to attend a hearing or review of a

panel for which helshe the member has

been selected, without reasonable cause

in the opinion of Council;

(f) becomes an employee, officer or
director of any professional chiropractic
association such that a real or apparent
conflict of interest may arise, including but
not limited to being an employee, officer
or director ofthe OCA, CCA, CCPA, AFC,

CCEB, CSCE or the Accreditation Standards
and Policies Committee or the CCEC of the
FCC;

(g) in the case of a Council member
from District 7, ceases to be a member of
the faculty of CMCC;

Current GGO By-law
(c) is found to be an incapacitated
member by a panel of the Fitness to
Practice Committee;

(d) fails to attend two consecutive
meetings of the Council or of a

committee or of a subcommittee in

which he/she is a member, without
reasonable cause in the opinion of
Council;

(e) fails to attend a hearing or review of
a panel for which he/she has been
selected, without reasonable cause in
the opinion of Council;

(f) becomes an employee, officer or
director of any professional chiropractic
association such that a real or apparent
conflict of interest may arise, including
but not limited to being an employee,
officer or director of the OCA, CCA,

CCPA, AFC, CCEB, CSCE or the
Accreditation Standards and Policies
Committee or the CCEC of the FCC;

(g) in the case of a Council member
from District 7, ceases to be a member
of the faculty of CMCC;

By-law

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

31

50
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



I.,,l.l,.llrr

Proposed By-law Amendments 32
Council for Distribution and Feedback 2023

51
Public lnterest Rationale

Best practices: procedu ral fairness requires
only a reasonable opportunity to respond

DEI: gender neutral language

Best practices: procedural fairness requires
only a reasonable opportunity to respond

Recommended Amendments

(h) becomes an officer, director or
administrator of any chiropractic
educational institution, including but not
limited to CMCC and UQTR;

(i) becomes a member of the Council
or a committee of the College of any other
health profession;

(j) breaches the conflict of interest
provision(s) for members of Council and
committees, in the opinion of the
Council after giving notice to the
member of the concern and giving the
member a* a reasonable opportunity to
respond to the concern;

(k) fails to discharge properly or
honestly any office to which h€lshe the
member has been elected or appointed or
engages in conduct unbecoming of a
Council member, in the opinion of the
Council, after being given notice of the
concern and at+ a reasonable opportunity
to respond;

Gurrent CCO By-law

(h) becomes an officer, director or
administrator of any chiropractic
educational institution, including but not
limited to CMCC and UQTR;

(i) becomes a member of the Council
or a committee of the College of any
other health profession;

(j) breaches the conflict of interest
provision(s) for members of Council and
committees, in the opinion of the
Council after giving notice to the
member of the concern and giving the
member an opportunity to respond to
the concern;

(k) fails to discharge properly or
honestly any office to which he/she has

been elected or appointed or engages in
conduct unbecoming of a Council
member, in the opinion of the Council,
after being given notice of the concern
and an opportunity to respond;

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback. September 8,2023

33

52
Public lnterest Rationale

Best practices: a member who litigates
against CCO is in a real or perceived conflict
of interest

Best practices: A member charged with a

criminal offence is in a conflict of interest
with the public interest mandate of CCO

Recom mended Amendments
(l) becomes in default of payment of
any fees prescribed by by-law or any
fine or order for costs imposed by a CCO

committee or court of law;

(m) becomes in default of completing
and returning any form required by CCO;

€f

(n) with the exception of District 7

(Academic), becomes a member of the
faculty of an accredited educational
institution;

{o) (new) becomes an adverse partv in
litisation asainst CCO, the Council of CCO,

a committee of CCO, or anv of CCO's

directors, officers, emplovees or agents,

on a matter related to CCO business;

(p) (new) is charsed with a criminal
offpncp contra to the Criminal fnde nf

Canada; and

Current CGO By-law
(l) becomes in default of payment of
any fees prescribed by by-law or any

fine or order for costs imposed by a CCO

committee or court of law;

(m) becomes in default of completing
and returning any form required by CCO;

or

(n) with the exception of District 7

(Academic), becomes a member of the
faculty of an accredited educational
institution.

A council member shall resign from
Council prior to applying for any CCO

staff position.

By-law

6.30

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



L-.1 lln[lll Irill i 1..

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

34

53
Public lnterest Rationale

Clarity

Recommended Amendments

lf the seat of an elected council member
becomes vacant in an electoral district
ne+ere less than 12 months before the
expiry of the membe/s term of office,
the Council may,

(a) leave athe seat vacant;

(b) appoint as an elected memberthe
candidate, if any, who had the most
votes of all the unsuccessful candidates
in the last election of council members
for that electoral distric! or

(c) direct the registrar to hold an

election in accordance with this by-law
for that electoral district.

Gurrent CCO By-law
The seat of an elected Council member
shall be deemed to be vacant upon the
death, resignation or disqualification of
the Council member.

lf the seat of an elected council member
becomes vacant in an electoral district
no more than 1-2 months before the
expiry of the member's term of office,
the Council may,

(a) leave a seat vacan|

(b) appoint as an elected memberthe
candidate, if any, who had the most
votes of all the unsuccessful candidates
in the last election of council members
for that electoral district; or

(c) direct the registrar to hold an

election in accordance with this by-law
for that electoral district.

lf the seat of an elected council member
becomes vacant in an electoral district
more than 12 months before the expiry
of the member's term of office, the
registrar shall hold an election in

accordance with this by-law for that
electoral district.

By-law
6.31

6.32

6.33

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

35

54
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GGO By-law

The term of a member appointed under
By-law 6.32(b) or elected in an election
under By-law 6.32(c) shall continue until
the time the former council member's
term would have expired.

Despite By-law 6.32,6.33, and 6.34,
where vacancy would result in the
Council not being properly constituted,
the Council (in anticipation of the event
before it is not properly constituted) or
the Executive Committee (after the
Council is not properly constituted) may

appoint as an elected member for that
district an eligible member in that
electoral district, where feasible. The

appointed member shall serve until the
vacancy can otherwise be filled for that
district. When temporarily filling the
vacancy in this way, the Council or the
Executive Committee shall :

(a) solicit interest from eligible
mem bers where feasiblel,

(b) take into account the criteria set out
in By-law 12.5,

By-law
6.34

6.35

1 There may not be sufficient time to solicit interest in every case and Council should be reconstituted as soon as possible.

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



l . i-t.llMiliLl{illlfiL.lill.llL, .r,,, -1l 1l.l

36Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

Public lnterest Rationale

2 This is intended to preserve the neutrality of the process. Where a person intends to run in the next election, they would receive a distinct advantage in being
appointed to fill the vacancy until the election is held.

55

To clarify an ambiguity

Not necessary anymore

Recommended Amendments

lf, within 90 days f+em after the date of
the election, the Council is of the opinion
that there is a reasonable ground for
doubt or dispute as to the validity of the
election of any member of Council, the
Council shall hold an inquiry and decide
whether the election of the member is

valid and, if an election is found to be
invalid, the Council shall direct another
election to be held.

The eleetien in Distriet 1 in 2010 shall be

eemmenei@

€.|€€+i€n"

Current CGO By-law
(c) require the prospective appointed
member to sign an undertaking to not
seek or accept a nomination in the next
election for the electoral district before
the appointment becomes fina12.

lf, within 90 days from the date of the
election, the Council is of the opinion
that there is a reasonable ground for
doubt or dispute as to the validity of the
election of any member of Council, the
Council shall hold an inquiry and decide
whether the election of the member is

valid and, if an election is found to be
invalid, the Council shall direct another
election to be held.

The election in District 1in2O2O shall be
for approximately a one-year term
commencing with the first regular
meeting of Council immediately
fol lowing the election.

By-law

6.36

6.37

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

37

56
Public lnterest Rationale
For clarity

Recommended Amendments
6.37 Where insufficient candidates are

nominated for a district by the close of
nominations, the Council may nominate a

member@who
does not practice h€ve+i#heff+i#a{a/

i€e

e++n*ee+ae+ie in the district, and for
District 7, is not a member of the faculty of
the CMCC.

Gurrent GCO By-law
Where insufficient candidates are

nominated for a district by the close of
nominations, the Council may nominate
a member even though the member
does not have his/her primary practice

and is not engaged in the practice of
chiropractic in the district, and for
District 7, is not a member of the faculty
of the CMCC.

By-law
6.38

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



L"]. -rll

Proposed By-law Amendments 38
Approved Council for Distribution and Feedback: mber 8,2023

By-law 7: ElecnoNs (Wlrntn Gouncll.)
57

Public lnterest Rationale
For clarity

Recom mended Amendments
An elected member of the Council, who is
not disoualified under Bv-law 6.29 is

eligible:

(a) to vote for elections within Council;

(d) for election to the position of
president, vice-president or treasurer; and

(c) for election to the position of chair or
member of a statutory or non-statutory
committee;

ffi

Current CGO By-law
An elected member of the Council is

eligible:

(a) to vote for elections within Council;

(b) for election to the position of
president, vice-president or treasu rer;
and

(c) for election to the position of chair
or member of a statutory or non-
statutory committee;
if the member is eligible for election to
Council as of that date.

An appointed member of the Council is

eligible:

(a) to vote for elections within Council;

(b) for election to the position of
president, vice-president or treasu rer;
and

(c) for election to the position of chair
or member of a statutory or non-
statutory committee.

By-law
7.L

7.2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



For clarity

Recommended Amendments
The Council shall at the its first meeting €f
ee{l+€il following the general election, or
as soon thereafter as practicable, elect a
president, vice-president and treasurer to
hold office until the first meeting of
Council following the general election in

the subsequent year, and if an election is

not so held, the president, vice-president
and treasurer for the preceding year shall

continue in office until their successors are

elected.

Current GGO By-law
The Council shall at the first meeting of
Council following the general election,
or as soon thereafter as practicable,

elect a president, vice-president and

treasurer to hold office until the first
meeting of Council following the general

election in the subsequent year, and if
an election is not so held, the president,
vice-president and treasurer for the
preceding year shall continue in office
until their successors are elected.

The election of the president, vice-
president and treasurer shall be by

secret ballot using generally accepted
democratic procedures, and where
more than two council members are

nominated, the nominee who receives

the lowest number of votes on each

ballot shall be deleted from the
nomination unless one nominee
receives a majority of the votes cast on

the ballot, and this procedure shall be

followed until one nominee receives a

majority of the votes cast.

Each member of Council has one vote
with respect to each of the offices of
president, vice-president and treasurer

By-law
7.3

7.4

1.5

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

39

58
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



I 1 I l!n]nfiiittlt i I I l'l-.. -.

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

40

59
Public lnterest Rationale
DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
The president is the chief officer of CCO

and the vice-president shallassist the
president in the discharge of hie/$as the
president's duties.

Current GCO By-law
The president is the chief officer of CCO

and the vice-president shall assist the
president in the discharge of his/her
duties.

The president, vice-president or
treasurer, may be removed from office
by a two-thirds vote of the Council at a

special meeting called for that purpose,

and the Council may elect a new
president, vice-president or treasu rer
from its members to hold office for the
remainder of the year.

The office of president, vice-president or
treasurer becomes vacant if the holder
of the office dies, resigns or stops being
a council member.

lf the office of the president becomes
vacant, the vice-president shall become
the president for the unexpired term of
the office and the office of vice-
president thereby becomes vacant.

By-law
7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

41

60
Public lnterest Rationale

The President generally has the greatest
experience with all Council members. The

details of the Nominating Committee are
reflected in policv.

For clarity

Recommended Amendments

The president of the Councilshall be the
chair of the Executive Committee and shall

a rti aina*a in {-ha l\lamina*ina /^nmmitiaa

The Council shall at the its first meeting ef
€eu+eil following the general election,
or as soon thereafter as is practicable,
elect the chairs and members of all
statutory and non-statutory committees
of CCO. lf such elections are not so held,

the chairs and members of the
committees for the preceding year shall

continue until their successors are
elected.

Current CCO By-law
The Council shall fill any vacancy in the
office of vice-president or treasu rer
using the procedures in By-law 7.4 at a

special meeting which the president
shall call for that purpose as soon as

practicable after the vacancy occurs.

The president of the Council shall be the
chair of the Executive Committee.

The Council shall at the first meeting of
Council following the general election,
or as soon thereafter as is practicable,
elect the chairs and members of all
statutory and non-statutory committees
of CCO. lf such elections are not so held,
the chairs and members of the
committees for the preceding year shall
continue until their successors are
elected.

By-law
7.ro

7.1't

7.r2

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



-.1 tl "t lt .ll - r,,lllilflilllL rt..llt , rt I .Ll.l

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

42

61
Pu blic Interest Rationale
To correct a typographical error

Recommended Amendments
The election of chairs and members of
statutory and non-statutory committees
shall be by secret ballot using generally
accepted democratic procedures, and
where more individuals are nominated
than available positions, the nominee who
receives the lowest number of votes on
each ballot shall be deleted from
nomination and this these procedures

shall be repeated until each nominee
receives a majority of the votes cast.

Gurrent GGO By-law
The election of chairs and members of
statutory and non-statutory committees
shall be by secret ballot using generally
accepted democratic procedu res, and
where more individuals are nominated
than available positions, the nominee
who receives the lowest number of
votes on each ballot shall be deleted
from nomination and this procedures

shall be repeated until each nominee
receives a majority of the votes cast.

Following the election of a particular
committee, a memberof that
committee shall be elected as chair.
Each member of Council has one vote
with respect to the position of chairs of
all statutory and non-statutory
committees.

The chair of any statutory or non-
statutory committee may be filled by an

elected or appointed member of Council
but not by a non-council member of
cco.

By-law
7.r3

7.14

7.'J_5

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Aooroved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

43

62
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GCO By-law

A chair or committee member of a
statutory or non-statutory com m ittee
may be removed from office by a two-
thirds vote of the Council, with or
without cause, at a special meeting
called for that purpose, and the Council

may elect a new chair to hold the
position for the remainder of the year.

The position of chair of a statutory or
non-statutory committee becomes
vacant if the holder of the position dies,
resigns or stops being a Council
member.

lf the position of chair or committee
member of a statutory or non-statutory
committee becomes vacant, the
Executive Committee shall appoint a

chair or committee member for the
unexpired term of the position.

By-law
7.!6

l.r7

7.r8

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



I]

Proposed By-law Amendments

L,.,,l.it: .:.1 ll.,"ll 1,ilil[tflfit i1 li

44
Council for Distribution and Feedback: 8 2023

63
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CGO By-law

The duties and powers of the Council
include:

(a) administering the RHPA,

Chiroproctic Act and the regulations and
by-laws under those acts;

(b) reviewing the activities of statutory
and non-statutory committees of the
Council and requiring committees to
provide reports and information to the
Council;

(c) requiring statutory and non-
statutory committees of the Council to
do anything that, in the opinion of the
Council, is necessary or advisable to
carry out the intent of the RHPA,

Chiropractic Act, and the regulations
under those acts;

(d) finalizing and proposing
amendments to regulations and by-laws
under the RHPA or the Chiropractic Act.

By-law
7.r9

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended Amendments
The duties and powers of the president of
the Council include:

(a) facilitating the activities of CCO;

(b) chairing meetings of Council;

(c) chairing meetings of the Executive
Committee;

(d) participating in the preparation of
agendas ofthe meetings ofCouncil and

meetings of the Executive Committee;

(e) supervising the arrangements for the
annual meeting;

(f) taking all reasonable steps to ensure
that directions of the Counciland the
Executive Committee are implemented;

(g) ensuring CCO is represented at all

appropriate meetings;

(h) presenting an Executive report at each

Council meeting;

(i) acting as a liaison between CCO and
other professional organizations as

appropriate; and

Gurrent CGO By-law
The duties and powers of the president
of the Council include:

(a) facilitating the activities of CCO;

(b) chairing meetings of Council;

(c) chairing meetings of the Executive

Committee;

(d) participating in the preparation of
agendas ofthe meetings of Council and

meetings of the Executive Committee;

(e) supervising the arrangements for
the annual meeting;

(f) taking all reasonable steps to ensure
that directions of the Council and the
Executive Committee are implemented;

(g) ensuring CCO is represented at all

appropriate meetings;

(h) presenting an Executive report at

each Council meeting;

(i) acting as a liaison between CCO and
other professional organizations as

appropriate; and

By-law
7.20

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

45

64
Public lnterest Rationale

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



- t_

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

46

65
Public lnterest Rationale

DEI: gender neutral language

Allowing the president to vote is consistent
with a number of other colleges.

Having the President vote last reduces
potential undue influence and facilitates all
Council members having a voice

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments

(j) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her the office of
president and such other acts and deeds
as may be decided by Council.

The president, while chairing a Council
meeting or Executive Committee
Meeting, votes €n+++b{€a*=a+ie after all
others have voted.

The duties and powers of the vice-
president include:

(a) assuming the role of president in the
absence of the president or when
appointed to do so by the president; and

(b) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her the office of vice-
president and such other acts and deeds
as may be decided by Council.

Current CCO By-law

(j) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her office and such

other acts and deeds as may be decided
by Council.

The president, while chairing a Council
meeting or Executive Committee
meeting, votes only to break a tie.

The president of Council shall be eligible
for election to a maximum of two
consecutive one-year terms in the
presidency.

The duties and powers of the vice-
president include:

(a) assuming the role of president in the
absence of the president or when
appointed to do so by the president; and

(b) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her office and such
other acts and deeds as may be decided
by Council.

By-law

7.21

7.22

7.23

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



DEI: gender neutral language

Recomrnended Amendments

The duties and powers of the treasurer of
the Council include:

(a) overseeing all matters relating to the
financial affairs of CCO; and

(b) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her the office of
treasurer and such other acts and deeds
as may be decided by Council.

The duties and powers ofthe secretary of
the Council include:

(a) keeping a record of matters that the
Council has referred to the committees;

(b) having custody and care ofthe records
and documents of the Council;

Gurrent GCO By-law
The vice-president shall be eligible for
election to a maximum of two
consecutive one-year terms in the vice-
presidency.

The duties and powers of the treasurer
of the Council include:

(a) overseeing all matters relating to
the financial affairs of CCO; and

(b) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her office and such

other acts and deeds as may be decided
by Council.

The treasurer shall be eligible for
election to a maximum of two
consecutive one-year terms in the
office.

The duties and powers of the secretary
of the Council include:

(a) keeping a record of matters that the
Council has referred to the committees;

(b) having custody and care ofthe
records and documents of the Council;

By-law
7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

47

66
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.l. .,.1.1.,1.. .L Lt .[.1..t1,]LIlIilmillrllL.lJu.lt,l "ll L --.,.., "tl. ....1! ..

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

48

67
Public lnterest Rationale

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
(c) giving or causing to be given notice of
all council meetings and statutory and
non-statutory committees; and

(d) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her office of secretary
and such other acts and deeds as may be

decided by Council.

The duties and powers of the chairs of
each committee shall include:

(a) facilitating the activities of the
committee and reporting to Council;

(b) chairing meetings of the committee;

Current CGO By-law
(c) giving or causing to be given notice
of all council meetings and statutory and
non-statutory committees; and

(d) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her office and such

other acts and deeds as may be decided
by Council.

The agendas for the meetings of Council
shall be prepared by the Executive
Committee in collaboration with the
registrar and shall include a period
during which council members may raise

for discussion topics relevant to the
affairs of CCO for possible inclusion in
future agendas.

The registrar shall be the secretary of
the Council.

The duties and powers of the chairs of
each committee shall include:

(a) facilitating the activities of the
committee and reporting to Council;

(b) chairing meetings of the committee;

By-law

7.28

7.29

1.30

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

49

68
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended Amendments

(c) participating in the preparation of
agendas of the meetings of the
committee;

(d) taking all reasonable steps to ensure

that directions of the committee are

implemented;

(e) acting as a liaison between the
Council or Executive Committee and the
committee;

(f) reporting to the Executive

Committee upon reasonable request by

the Executive;

(g) reporting in writing to the Council at

the meetings of Council on the activities

of the committee for the preceding year;

(h) preparing a work plan for the
subsequent year, which includes all

budgetary requirements for the
committee, by November 1 of each and

every year, or by such other time as

directed by Council;

Current GGO By-law
(c) participating in the preparation of
agendas of the meetings of the
committee;

(d) taking all reasonable steps to ensure

that directions of the committee are

implemented;

(e) acting as a liaison between the
Council or Executive Committee and the
committee;

(f) reporting to the Executive
Committee upon reasonable request by

the Executive;

(g) reporting in writing to the Council at
the meetings of Council on the activities
of the committee for the preceding year;

(h) preparing a work plan for the
subsequent year, which includes all

budgetary requirements for the
committee, by November L of each and

every year, or by such other time as

directed by Council;

By-law

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



IL I I fl]lirfilll I

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

50

69
Public lnterest Rationale

...1 ,.r.,1,,

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
(i) ensuring the activities of the
committee are conducted in a fiscally
responsible manner within approved
budgetary restraints; and

U) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to hiq/her the office of chair
and such other acts and deeds as may be
decided by Council.

Gurrent CCO By-law
(i) ensuring the activities of the
committee are conducted in a fiscally
responsible manner within approved
budgetary restraints; and

(j) performing all acts and deeds
pertaining to his/her office and such
other acts and deeds as may be decided
by Council.

The chair of every statutory and non-
statutory committee shall be eligible for
election to a maximum of two
consecutive one-year terms.

By-law

7.3r

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments 51

Approved Council for Distribution and Feedback: r 8,2023

By-mw 8: GOuT.ICIL AND GOTVIMITTEE MEETINGS
70

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent GGO By-law
The Councilshall hold,

(a) an annual meeting which shall be

called by the president between April 1
and June 30 of each year;

(b) regular meetings which shall be

called by the president from time to
time; and

(c) any special meetings which may be

called the by the president, or a majority
of council members, who deposit with
the registrar a written request for the
meeting containing specifics of the
matter or matters for decision at the
meeting.

By-law
8.1

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Lll r.l.iLln!illmmflUllrl.r.l l -. Ll- -lll .

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

52

71
Public lnterest Rationale

Best practices: This should encourage
Council members to remind themselves of
the competencies before electing the chair
and members of each committee

Recommended Amendments

The registrar shall cause to be included in

or with the notification to council
members of the first meetine. and anv
other meeting if appointment of a chair or
member of a committee is on the agenda,
a coov of the Comoetencies for Council
and Committee Members and Peer
Assessors

Current GGO By-law
The registrar shall cause each council
member to be notified in writing of the
place, date and time of a council
meeting by sending such notification by

ordinary prepaid mail, facsimile, e-mail
or similarly effective method at least,

(a) 30 days before an annual meeting;

(b) 14 days before a regular meeting;
and

(c) five days before a special meeting

The registrar shall cause to be included
in or with the notification of all meetings
to council members, the agenda for the
meeting.

By-law
8.2

8.3

8.4.L
(New)

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



DEI: gender neutral language

For clarity

Recommended Amendments
The registrar shall cause to be included in

or with the notification of a special
meeting to council members sufficient
information about the matter or matters
for decision contained in the requisition of
the meeting deposited with hirn/her the
registrar to permit the member to form a

reasonable judgment.

The registrar shall cause the public to be

notified of council meetings in accordance
w it h enfffevisi€ns req u i rements
prescribed underthe RHPA,if anv. and, if

etleru*ise+peei+le+ none, in a S€n€ra[y
aeeepted similar manner.

Current GCO By-law
The registrar shall cause to be included
in or with the notification of a special
meeting to council members sufficient
information about the matter or matters
for decision contained in the requisition
of the meeting deposited with him/her
to permit the member to form a

reasonable judgment.

The registrar shall cause the public to be

notified of council meetings in
accordance with any provisions under
the RHPA and, if there are not applicable
regulations or not otherwise specified,

in a generally accepted manner.

No annual, regular or special meeting
shall be made void because of an

inadvertent or accidental error or
omission in giving notice. ln addition,
any council member may waive the
notice requirements and ratify, approve
and confirm any proceedings taken at
the meeting.

By-law
8.4.2

8.5

8.6

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

53

72
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



- li d lllllllltrlllrllll ' l: I

Public lnterest Rationale

lri

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

54

73

For clarity and consistency with By-law 8.L8

Allowing the president to vote is consistent
with a number of other colleges.

Having the President vote last reduces
potential undue influence and facilitates all
Council members having a voice

Recommended Amendments
Subiect to Bv-law 8.18. everv me
the Council shalltake place in Ontario at a
place, date and time designated by the
president or the majority of council
members calling the meeting but, if a
place, date or time is not designated or is

incompatible with the by-laws, the
registrar shall select a place, date and time
compatible with the by-laws which is as
dese+s*ey'+h€an reas o n a b ly s€+e€+

close to the place, date and time
Cesignated requested by the person or
people calling the meeting.

eting of

Unless othenrvise required by law or by-
law, every question which properly
comes before the Council may be

decided by a simple majority of the
votes cast at the meeting by council
members,@

aaeeiAing-ve+e. includi ns the P resident
who votes last on everv ouestion.

Gurrent GGO By-law
Meeting of the Councilshalltake place

in Ontario at a place, date and time
designated by the president or the
majority of council members calling the
meeting but, if a place, date or time is

not designated or is incompatible with
the by-laws, the registrar shall select a

place, date and time compatible with
the by-laws which is as close as he/she
can reasonably select to the place, date
and time designated by the person or
people calling the meeting.

Unless otherwise required by law or by-
law, every question which properly
comes before the Council may be
decided by a simple majority of the
votes cast at the meeting by council
members, and, if there is an equal
number of votes on a question, the chair
may cast a deciding vote.

Voting at a council meeting shall be by a
show of hands, or if appropriate, by
secret ballot.

Voting by proxy at council meetings shall
not be permitted in any circumstances.

By-law
8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsGurrent GCO By-law
The Council shall consider or transact at

the annual meeting:

(a) the annual report for the preceding
year;

(b) the reports of the committees
established under the RHPA;

(c) the financial statement of CCO;

(d) the report of the auditor; and

(e) the appointment of the auditors for
the ensuing year.

By-law
8.11

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

55

74
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.1,.--.-"1 I lllrllmlfllr

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

56

75
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By-law

The Council may consider or transact at
a regular meeting:

(a) matters brought by the Executive
Committee;

(b) reports by statutory committees;

(c) reports by non-statutory
committees which have received prior
review by the Executive Committee;

(d) any motion notice of which has

been delivered in writing to the
Registrar at least 30 days before the
Council meeting and which the majority
of Council members present and voting
at the meeting view as warranting
Council discussion; and

(e) any other business that the majority
of Council members present and voting
at the meeting view as urgent and
requiring Council's immediate attention.

The Council may only consider or
transact at a special meeting, the matter
or matters for decision at the meeting
contained in the requisition deposited
with the registrar.

By-law
8.12

8.13

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By-law

The president shall cause a record ofthe
proceedings of the council meeting
including all motions and
recommendations to be recorded, and

the written record of the Council
meeting, when signed by any two of the
president, vice-president, treasurer or
registrar, is prima facie proof of the
accuracy of the contents of every such

record.

The written record of the proceedings of
a council meeting when accepted at a

subsequent council meeting, subject to
any corrections made at such

subsequent meeting, is conclusive proof
of the accuracy of the contents of every
such record.

Whether or not a quorum is present, the
president may adjourn any council
meeting and reconvene it at any time
and from time to time and, if a quorum

is present at any reconvened meeting,
any matter may be considered and
transacted which could have been

transacted at the original meeting which
was adjourned.

By-law

8.L4

8.15

8.1_5

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

57

76
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.,., -,r*L I liXlr]filllll I r Ll lrir . -

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

58

77
Public Interest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By-law

The rules of order for council meetings
adopted from time to time by Council
shall guide the conduct of its meetings.

Any meeting of the Council or of a

committee or of a panel that is held for
any purpose other than for the
conducting of a hearing, except as

permitted under the Statutory Powers
Procedure Act, may be held in any
manner that allows all persons
participating to communicate with each
other simultaneously and
insta nta neously.

Persons participating in the meeting, as

outlined in By-law 8.18, are deemed to
be present at the meeting.

Notice of a meeting held under By-law
8.1-8 shall not specify a place forthe
meeting but rather the means by which
the meeting will be conducted.

By-law
8.L7

8.18

8.19

8.20

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmenFGurrent GGO By-law
The chair of any committee conducting
meetings by conference call shall:

(a) consult with CCO to staff in the
calling of a meeting and the preparation
of an agenda for the meeting;

(b) ensure minutes are kept; and

(c) record the time spent on the
meetings.

By-law
8.21.

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

59

78
Fublic lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



- ,''. , J-

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

Bv-lRw 9 : RervruNERATroN

60

79

Pu blic lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GCO By-law
The per diems and reasonable expenses
paid by CCO to committee members are
intended to partially off-set the cost of a

contribution to the profession of
chiropractic rather than to pay for
services rendered or to compensate for
lost income or the opportunity to earn
income. "Committee members" means
elected council members and non-
council members of statutory and non-
statutory committees.

Subject to other direction by Council,
the president of the Council will receive
an annual honorarium of thirty-five
thousand dollars (535,000) payable no
later than one year after the date the
president takes office. ln the event the
president's tenure is less than one year,
the president will receive a pro-rated
amount

Committee members are entitled to the
remuneration outlined in the chart
below:

By-law
9.1

9.2

9.3

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsCurrent GCO By-law
Allowable
Glaim
effective
September
24,2009

Attendance
per diem:
$400
Preparation
per diem:
Chairs: $350
Others: $200

One-half
attendance
per diem:
$200
One-half
preparation
per diem:
Chairs: $175
Others: $100

Description

lCommittee
members; full-
day meeting
or hearing;
meeting in
excess of
three hours

2Committee
members;
meeting or
hearing
lasting less
than three
hours

3Conference
call meetings:
applicable full
or one-half
day
attendance
and
preparation
per diem and
reasonable
expenses

By-law

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

61

80
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

I I ll]Imlllr lrl I

Public lnterest Rationale

62

81
Recommended AmendmentsCurrent CGO By-law

By-law 9.3, as it relates to payment of
per diems and reasonable expenses,
applies to Discipline Committee and
Fitness to Practise Committee members
who perform duties, such as conducting
pre-hearing conferences or hearing pre-
hearing motions.

Travel per
diem: $300

One-half
travel per
diem:
$1 50

(e.9., long
distance
charges, as
outlined in
CCO lnternal
Policy l-012)

4Traveltime
of more than
three hours
(round trip) for
allcommittee
members

STraveltime
of more than
one hour and
less than
three hours
(round trip) for
allcommittee
members

By-law

9.4

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



For clarity

Recommended Amendments
A member who is the principal author of a

decision of the Disci pline Committee,
lnquiries, Complaints and Reports
Committee or the Fitness to Practise

Committee deeisien may charge one

attendance per diem for at least three
accumulated hours of work to a maximum
of three per diems, but no preparation per

diem, travel per diem or meal expenses.

The following conditions apply to the
remuneration entitlement of committee
members:

Per Diems and Reasonable Expenses

Committee members may claim for a full
day attendance per diem when a

meeting or hearing is in excess of three
hours.

Committee members may claim for a

half day attendance per diem when a

meeting or hearing is in excess of one
hour but is not in excess of three hours.

ln extenuating circumstances, and
subject to the approval ofthe Executive

Committee, two attendance per diems
may be claimed for one calendar day.

Gurrent CCO By-law
A member who is the principal author of
a Discipline, lnquiries, Complaints and
Reports or Fitness to Practise
Committee decision may charge one
attendance per diem for at least three
accumulated hours of work to a

maximum of three per diems, but no
preparation per diem, travel per diem or
meal expenses.

The following conditions apply to the
remuneration entitlement of committee
members:

Per Diems and Reasonable Expenses

Committee members may claim for a full
day attendance per diem when a

meeting or hearing is in excess of three
hou rs.

Committee members may claim for a

half day attendance per diem when a

meeting or hearing is in excess of one
hour but is not in excess ofthree hours.

ln extenuating circumstances, and

subject to the approval of the Executive
Committee, two attendance per diems
mav be claimed for one calendar day.

By-law
9.5

9.6

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

63

82
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.. .l I lT t lflllrl lll

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

64

83
Public lnterest Rationale

To correct error

Recommended Amendments
Extenuating circu msta nces include
committee members being called to an

emergency meeting with less than 48
hours notice which requires them to
forfeit office time.

Attendance for Full Duration of
Scheduled Meeting

ln order to be eligible for the
appropriate attendance per diem, a

council or committee member shall
attend the fullduration of the scheduled
meeting. lf extenuating circumstances
apply which necessitate leaving a

meeting earlier than the scheduled end
time, the council or committee member
shall communicate this in writing to the
Chair of the meeting.

Reasonable expenses, as outlined in CCO

lnternal Policy l-012, and attendance per
diems may be claimed to attend
conferences, educationa I sessions,

speaking engagements or other functions
directly related to CCO business provided
prior approval is obtained from the
Executive Committee.

Current CGO By-law
Extenuating circumstances include
committee members being called to an

emergency meeting with less than 48
hours notice which requires them to
forfeit office time.

Attendance for Full Duration of
Scheduled Meeting

ln order to be eligible for the
appropriate attendance per diem, a

council or committee shall attend the
full duration of the scheduled meeting.
lf extenuating circumsta nces a pply
which necessitate leaving a meeting
earlier than the scheduled end time, the
council or committee member shall
communicate this in writing to the Chair
of the meeting.

Reasonable expenses, as outlined in CCO

lnternal Policy l-012, and attendance per
diems may be claimed to attend
conferences, educational sessions,

speaking engagements or other
functions directly related to CCO

business provided prior approval is

obtained from the Executive Committee.

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended Amendments

Cancel lation of Meetings/Hearings

A one-half attendance per diem may be

claimed in the event of the cancellation or
adjournment of an official meeting
without one week's advance notice being
given, subject to the discretion of the
Executive Committee:

(a) A full attendance per diem but no
travel per diem or meal expenses may
be claimed in the event of the
cancellation or adjournment of a
Discipline or Fitness to Practise hearing,
without four weeks advance notice
being given, provided that the
committee member was required, as a

result of the scheduled hearing, to make

alternate office arrangements in order
to be available for the hearing. Unless

the committee member ordinarily has

office time on Saturdays or Sundays, no
per diem will be permitted for the
cancellation or adjournment of hearings
scheduled on Saturdays or Sundays.

Gurrent CCO By-law
Cancellation of Meeti ngs/Hearings

A one-half attendance per diem may be

claimed in the event of the cancellation
or adjournment of an official meeting
without one week's advance notice
being given, subject to the discretion of
the Executive Committee:

(a) A full attendance per diem but no

travel per diem or meal expenses may
be claimed in the event of the
cancellation or adjournment of a

Discipline or Fitness to Practise hearing,
without four weeks advance notice
being given, provided that the
committee member was required, as a

result of the scheduled hearing, to make

alternate office arrangements in order
to be available for the hearing. Unless
the committee member ordinarily has

office time on Saturdays or Sundays, no
per diem will be permitted for the
cancellation or adjournment of hearings
scheduled on Saturdays or Sundays.

By-law

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

65

84
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



rtllt L

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

66

85
Public lnterest Rationale

..- ]] Ll

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
(b) A full attendance per diem including
a travel per diem and meal expenses may
be claimed in the event a Discipline or
Fitness to Practise Committee member
attends what he#he-antjeipates is

anticipated to be a full day hearing even if
the hearing is disposed of prior to the
expiration of three hours, provided the
committee member was required as a

result of the scheduled hearing to make
alternate office arrangements in order to
be available for a full day hearing.

Conference Calls

Committees are encouraged to conduct
meetings wherever possible and
practicable by conference call; committee
members will receive the appropriate
attendance and preparation per diems
and reasonable expenses for such

meetings and payment of long-distance
charges but will not receive a travel per
diem.

Preparation Time

Preparation time may only be claimed if
preparation is in fact required for the
meeting/event/hearing being attended.

Gurrent GCO By-law
(b) A full attendance per diem including
a travel per diem and meal expenses
may be claimed in the event a Discipline
or Fitness to Practise Committee
member attends what he/she
anticipates to be a full day hearing even
if the hearing is disposed of prior to the
expiration of three hours, provided the
committee member was required as a

result of the scheduled hearing to make
alternate office arrangements in order
to be available for a full day hearing.

Conference Calls

Committees are encouraged to conduct
meetings wherever possible and
practicable by conference call;
committee members will receive the
appropriate attendance and preparation
per diems and reasonable expenses for
such meetings and payment of long-
distance charges but will not receive a

travel per diem.

Preparation Time

Preparation time may only be claimed if
preparation is in fact required forthe
meeting/event/hearing bei ng atte nded.

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

67

86
Public lnterest RationaleRecomrnended AmendmentsGurrent CGO By-law

At the discretion of Council, this by-law
9 applies to Non-Chiropractic
Committee Members with necessary
modifications.

By-law
9.7

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



t.l tflt]rllllilr. .rl tilll I

68

87

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2Q23

By-lnw 1 0: lruoeMNtFtcATtoN

Public lnterest Rationale
DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
gveCrffi€mb€+€f+h€ Cou nci I mem bers,

Committee memberg, officerg employeeg
agents and appointeeg of CCO, including
assessors, investigators a nd inspectors,
and each of higer her their heirs,
executors and administrators and estatet
respectively, shall from time to time and
at alltimes be indemnified and saved

harmless out of the funds of CCO from
and against:

(a) all costs, charges, expenses, awards
and damages whatsoever that h€'€'Fsh€
thev sustains or incurs in any action, suit
or proceeding that is brought, commenced
or prosecuted against him er her them, for
or in respect of any act, deed, omission,
matter or thing whatsoever, made done or
permitted by $isas.fis'r them, in the
execution of the duties of his er her their
office; and
(b) all other e+her reasonable costs,

charges, expenses, awards and damages
that he er she thev sustains or incurs in or
in relation to the affairs of CCO, except
such costs, charges, expenses, awards or
damages as are occasioned by their own
willful neslect or default.

Current GGO By-law
Every member of the Council,
Committee member, officer, employee,
agent and appointee of CCO, including
assessors, investigators and inspectors,
and each of his or her heirs, executors
and administrators and estate,
respectively, shall from time to time and
at alltimes be indemnified and saved

harmless out of the funds of CCO from
and against:

(a) all costs, charges, expenses, awards
and damages whatsoever that he or she
sustains or incurs in any action, suit or
proceeding that is brought, commenced
or prosecuted against him or her, for or
in respect of any act, deed, omission,
matter or thing whatsoever, made done
or permitted by him or her, in the
execution of the duties of his or her
office; and
(b) all other other reasonable costs,
charges, expenses, awards and damages

that he or she sustains or incurs in or in
relation to the affairs of CCO,

except such costs, charges, expenses,
awards or damages as are occasioned by
their own willful neglect or default.

By-law
10.1

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law
CCO will purchase and maintain
insurance to protect itself and its

members of Council, Committee
members, officers, employees, agents or
appointees and to provide coverage for
the indemnity referred to in By-law 10.1

By.law
to.2

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

69

88
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

By-lnw 11: GoruMtrrEE GollpostloN

70

89

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By-law
The Executive Committee, inclusive of
the president, vice-president and
treasurer, shall be composed of the
following:

(a) Four members of Council who are
members of CCO;

(b) Three members of Council who are
appointed by the Lieutenant Governor
in Council;

The president of the Council shall be the
chair of the Executive Committee.

The Registration Committee shall be

composed of:

(a) two members of Council who are
members of CCO; and

(b) two members of Councils appointed
to the Council by the Lieutenant
Governor in Council.

By-law
L7.L

1.1.2

1L.3

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsGurrent CGO By-law

The lnquiries, Complaints and Reports

Committee shall be composed of:

(a) two members of Council who are
members of CCO;

(b) two members of Council appointed
to Council by the Lieutenant Governor in
Council; and

(c) one member of CCO who is not a

member of Council.

The Discipline Committee shall be

composed of:

(a) every member of Council; and

(b) up to three members of CCO who
are not members of Council.

The Fitness to Practise Committee shall

be composed of every member of
Council.

ByJaw

1.1..4

11.5

1.1..6

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

71

90
Public lnterest Rationale

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



..,- I r,l.rl r,*.-lU-..:lll- rl l llllfilll]llll.L.llll . , !. .-llj,.. rlll -..-.-. ,, . -,

72

91

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law
The Quality Assurance Committee shall
be composed of:

(a) two members of Council who are
members of CCO;

(b) two members of Council appointed
to Council by the Lieutenant Governor in
Council; and

(c) one member of CCO who is not a

member of Council.

The Patient Relations Committee shall
be composed of:

(a) one member of Council who is a

member of CCO;

(b) two members of Council appointed
to Council by the Lieutenant Governor in
Council; and

(c) two members of CCO who are not
members of Council.

By-law
tt.7

11.8

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



lnclusion of reference to Nominating
Committee in by-laws

For clarity

Recommended Amendments
Council may, by resolution, establish non-
statutory com m ittees;lqilslUdgUL no!
be limited to a Nominatins Committee.
For each non-statutory committee,
Council shall specify in the resolution the
duties and responsibilities of the
committee, its composition and its

termination date or event.

ta+V-ta++l+pespite the use in this Bv-law

11 of a definite number of committee
members in any category, Council may
appoint additional committee members in
any category, except for the Executive
Committee or the Discipline Committee.

Current GCO By-law
Council may, by resolution, establish
non-statutory committees. For each

non-statutory committee, Council shall
specify in the resolution the duties and

responsibilities of the committee, its
composition and its termination date or
event.

A committee is still properly constituted
if it has vacancies so long as a quorum
remains. Unless otherwise specified by
the Code, three members of a
comm ittee constitute quorum.

By-laws 8.18 to 8.21 (electronic

meetings) applies to committee
meetings.

ln By-law 11, despite the use of a
definite number of committee members
in any category, Council may appoint
additional committee members in any
category, except for the Executive
Committee or the Discipline Committee.

By-law
11.9

11.10

LT.1.T

tt.L2

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

73

92
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



_.1. Ll..-x,-_r llllr{rfrllltLlLl.|t - _ ....-Lt....rl l

74Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

93
Publ ic I nterest Rationale
For clarity

DEI: gender neutral langu4e

Recommended Amendments
+n+V-taw++ Despite the use in this Bv-law
11- of a definite number of committee
members in any category, Council may
appoint alterative committee members in
any category. An alternative committee
member may attend meetings and
participate in discussions but shall not
vote unless a full committee member in

the same category as the alternative is
unable to participate in the matter,
including if helshe the full committee
member has a conflict of interest.

Gurrent CCO By-law
ln By-law 1-1, despite the use of a

definite number of committee members
in any category, Council may appoint
alterative committee members in any
category. An alternative committee
member may attend meetings and
participate in discussions but shall not
vote unless a full committee member in

the same category as the alternative is
unable to participate in the matter,
including if he/she has a conflict of
interest.

Despite any other provision of this ey-
Law 11, the Council may also appoint
one or more Non-Chiropractic
Committee Members to any committee
other than the Executive Committee.

By-law
11.13

L1..L4

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

By-llw 12: AppOINTMENT oF Nott-COUNctL MeMeeRS

75

94

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GCO By-law
This by-law applies with respect to the
appointment of members who are not
members of the Council to a committee
of CCO.

The Council shall appoint members to
committees in the numbers prescribed

by By-law 1-1.

The Council shall make the
appointments at the first regular council
meeting after each regular council

election or as soon thereafter as is

practicable.

The Council may make appointments
from time to time to fill any vacancy

created by the disqualification, death or
resignation of a member appointed
under this by-law.

By-law
\2.r

12.2

12.3

12.4

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



,, .-r.."lll t,uI lfflllilllllillllL ll ,,t1 .il,l .

76

95

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

Public lnterest Rationale

For clarity

Recommended Amendments

A non-council member may enly serve on
CCO committees for only nine consecutive
years, whether the time is served as a

council member or as a non council
member.

Current CCO By-law
ln making the appointments, the Council
shall take into account location and type
of practice, experience, professional
qualifications and skills, and other
qualifications and characteristics of
members to complement the attributes
of members of the committees who are
members of Council.

The term of office of a committee
member who is not a member of the
Council is approximately one year
starting on the date the appointment is

made, except where an appointment is

made to fill a vacancy in which the
person appointed shall complete the
term of the previous appointee.

A non-council member may only serve
on CCO committees for nine consecutive
years, whether the time is served as a

council member or as a non council
member.

By-law
12.5

L2.6

12.7

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments 77
Council for Distribution and Feedback: 2023

96
Public lnterest Rationale

Best practices: the risk of inconsistency can

be reduced by cross-referencing rather than
repeating the requirements

Recommended Amendments

A member is eligible for appointment to a

committee ii on the date of the
appointment the member meets the
requirements prescribed in Bv-law 6.9 for
election to Council.

ie;

prirnary residenee Jeeated in entarie;

i
l€'w;

@is
requ*ed+veeg;

Current CGO By-law
A non-council member who has served
on CCO committee (s)for nine

consecutive years is not eligible to be re-

appointed to any CCO committee until
at least three years have passed since
the member last served on a CCO

Committee.

A member is eligible for appointment to
a committee if, on the date of the
appointment:

(a) The member has his/her primary
practice of chiropractic located in
Ontario, or if the member is not
engaged in the practice of chiropractig
has his/her primary residence located in
Ontario;

(b) the member is not in default of
payment of any fees prescribed by by-
law or any fine or order for costs to CCO

imposed by a CCO committee or court of
law;

(c) the member is not in default in

completing and returning any form
required by CCO;

By-law
12.8

12.9

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



li 1 ilrllrmtfl [i:

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

78

97
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended Amendments

ins

p+eeedin+s*ffears;

feur merths,

iee+

ie

iee+

er direeter ef the OC\; CCA; C€PAt AFC'

and lelieies €emmittee er the €€E€ ef the
+eg

Gurrent GCO By-law

(d) the member is not subject of any
disciplinary or incapacity proceeding;

(e) a finding of professional misconduct,
incompetence or incapacity has not
been made against the member in the
preceding six years;

(e.1 )the member has not resigned from
a position on Council, before completing
their term, within the last three years
and four months.

(f) the member is not an employee,
officer or director of any professional
chiropractic association such that a real
or apparent conflict of interest may
arise, including but not limited to being
an employee, officer or director of the
ocA, ccA, ccPA, AFc, ccEB, cscE orthe
Accreditation Standards and Policies
Committee or the CCEC of the FCC.

(g)the member is not an officer,
director or administrator of any
chiropractic educational institution,
including but not limited to CMCC or
UQTR;

ByJaw

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Best practices: the risk of inconsistency can

be reduced by cross-referencing rather than
repeating the requirements

Recommended Amendments

@
@

six+ee#st

The Council shall disqualify a member
appointed to a committee from sitting on
the committee if the member: for anv
reason prescribed in Bv-law 6.29.

Cemmi++ee;

P+aetiee4emm+ttee;

Current GCO By-law
(h) the member has not been
disqualified from the Council or a

committee of the Council in the previous

six years;

(i) the member is not a member of
Council or of a committee of the College
of any other health profession; and

(j)the member has not been a member
of CCO's staff at any time within the
preceding three years.

The Council shall disqualify a member
appointed to a committee from sitting
on the committee if the member:

(a) is the subject of any disciplinary or
inca pacity proceeding;

(b) is found to have committed an act of
professional misconduct or is found to
be incompetent by a panel of the
Discipline Committee;

(c) is found to be an incapacitated
member by a panel of the Fitness to
Practice Committee;

By-law

L2.LO

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

79

98
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



I tiutlilnx|lil , iL

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

80

99
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended Amendments

@ive

@is€
member; witheut reasenable eause in the
epinien-e+eeu+eib

t+e+esneih

@ieer+r

iee+

er direeter ef the eCA; C€A; €€PA; AF€,

and Pelieies Gemmittee er the CCEC ef the
FCq

pre+essie+

Gurrent CGO By-law

(d) fails to attend two consecutive
meetings of the committee or of a
subcommittee in which he/she is a

member, without reasonable cause in
the opinion of Council;

(e) fails to attend a hearing or review of
a panel for which he/she has been
selected; without reasonable cause in
the opinion of the Council;

(f) becomes an employee, officer or
director of any professional chiropractic
association such that a real or apparent
conflict of interest may arise, including
but not limited to being an employee,
officer or director of the OCA, CCA,

CCPA, AFC, CCEB, CSCE or the
Accreditation Standards and Policies
Committee or the CCEC of the FCC;

(g) becomes an officer, director or
administrator of any chiropractic
educational institution, including but not
limited to CMCC or UQTR;

(h) becomes a member of the Council
of CCO or a committee of any other
health profession;

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended Amendments

@
in

@iving
netiee te the member ef the eeneern and

@

ine+r
ine

€emm*+ee;-e+

Current CCO By-law

(i) breaches the conflict of interest
provision(s) for members of Council and
committees, in the opinion of the
Council after giving notice to the
member of the concern and giving the
member an opportunity to respond to
the concern;

(j) fails to discharge properly or
honestly any office to which he/she has

been appointed or engages in conduct
unbecoming of a committee member, in

the opinion of the Council after giving

notice to the member of the concern
and giving the member an opportunity
to respond to the concern;

(k) becomes in default of payment of
any fees prescribed by by-law or any
fine or order for costs imposed by the
Discipline Committee; or

(l) becomes in default of completing
and returning any form required by CCO.

A non-council committee member shall
resign from a committee prior to
applying for any CCO staff position.

By-law

12.11.

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

81

100
Public lnterest Rationale

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



tt IfiriltEf,$t]Iililt u t rt ill

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

82

101
Public lnterest Rationale-Recommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By.law

A member who is disqualified under this
by-law from sitting on a committee
ceases to be a member of the
committee.

By-law
12.L2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

Bv-lnw 13: Fees

83

102

Public lnterest Rationale
For clarity

Addition of certificate fee for Emergency

certificate

Recommended Amendments
The fee +e+epptyi+S pavable to applv for
each class of certificate of registration is as

follows:

(a) General certificate: 552

(b) Temporary certificate: S52

(c) Retired certificate: NIL

(d) lnactive certificate: 552, unless the
applicant already has a general certificate,
in which case the application is NIL

(e) Emergencv certificate: S52

The application fee is non-refundable.

Current CCO By-law
The fee for applying for each class of
certificate of registration is as follows

(a) General certificate: 552

(b) Temporary certificate: $52

(c) Retired certificate: NIL

(d) lnactive certificate: S52, unless the
applicant already has a general

certificate, in which case the application
is NIL

The application fee is non-refundable

By-law
73.1

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



I I Ijlltrilllil lti r -- ll..tr.. Ll". .lJl

84Proposed By-law Amendments
Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

103
Public lnterest Rationale
To correct typographical errors

Addition of application fee for Emergency
certificate

Recommended Amendments
ln addition to the application fee and the
annualfee, an applicant for registration
must pay the following initial certificate
fee:

(a) For a general certificate of
registration: $340

(b) For a temporary certificate gf
registration to actively practise

ch i ropract ic i n O nta rio ef+egistratien:
Slss

(c) For a temporary certificate of
registration to participate in a specific
event in Ontario: NIL

(d) For an inactive certificate of
registration: $340

(e) For a retired certificate of registration
NIL

(f) For an emergencv certificate of
resistration: 3340

Current CCO By-law
ln addition to the application fee and
the annual fee, an applicant for
registration must pay the following
initial certificate fee.

(a) For a general certificate of
registration: $340

(b) For a temporary certificate to
actively practise chiropractic in Ontario
of registration: $155

(c) For a temporary certificate of
registration to participate in a specific
event in Ontario: NIL

(d) For an inactive certificate of
registration: $340

(e) For a retired certificate of
registration: NIL

By-law
L3.2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

85

104
Public lnterest Rationale
Exemption from general certificate and
application fees if emergency certificate and

application fees have already been paid

For clarity

DEI: gender neutral language

Consistent language

Recommended Amendments
A member registered in the emerggncv
class of resistration who is issued a
general certificate of resistration is

exempt from paving the cqrtificate fee and

application fee for a general certificate of
registration.

An applicant for a general certificate of
registration who. within six months prior

to makine the application, has completed
the requirements for graduation from a

chiropractic education program that is

accred ited or received the+ubiedef
reciprocal recognition by the CCEC rvithin

ien
is exempted from paying the prescribed

annual fee for the year in which the
certificate is issued.

Every member except a member who
holds a temporary certificate of
reeistration shall pay an annual fee.

Current CCO By-law

An applicant for a general certificate of
registration who has completed the
requirements for graduation from a

chiropractic education program that is

accredited orthe subject of reciprocal
recognition by the CCEC within the six

months prior to his/her application is

exempted from paying the prescribed
annual fee for the year in which the
certificate is issued.

A member who holds a general

certificate of registration is exempted
from paying the prescribed certificate
and annual fees for an inactive
certificate of registration for the year in
which the inactive certificate is issued.

Every member except a member who
holds a temporary certificate shall pay

an annual fee.

By-law
13.3
(new)

13.3
13.4

13.4
13.5

13.5
13.6

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



IL

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

86

105
Public lnterest Rationale

l".lilll

For clarity

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
The annual fee ls $tt00 for a member
who holds a general certificate of
registration, $550 for the first renewal of a

member who holds a general certificate of
registration@
@$+95fora
member who holds an inactive certificate
of registration and 5105 for a member
who holds a retired certificate of
registration.

Current CCO By-law
The annual fee is SttOO for a member
who holds a general certificate of
registration, SSSO for a member who
holds a general certificate of registration
who is renewing his/her license for the
first time, 5+gS for a member who holds
an inactive certificate of registration and

SfOS for a member who holds a retired
certificate of registration.

Council may, without, amending these
by-laws, adjust the amount of any fees
or penalties in By-law 13 to reflect
annual changes to the Cost of Living
Adjustment (Ontario).

The annual fee for a member who holds
a general certificate of registration may
be paid in two instalments on January 1't
and June l-'t of each year in amounts to
be set by the registrar.

By-law
L3.6
13.7

1.3.7

13.8

13.8
L3.9

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsCurrent GGO By-law

No later than 60 days before the annual

fee or the first instalment of the annual
fee is due, the registrar shall notify the
member of:

(a) the amount of the annual fee or, if
the member is paying by instalment, the
amounts of the first and second

instalments;

(b) the date on which the annual fee or
each of the instalments is due; and

(c) the penalty for late payment.

lf a member fails to pay the annual fee
or an instalment on or before the day on
which it is due, the member shall pay a
penalty in addition to the annual fee.

The penalty referred to in By-law 13.10

is 5105 for a member who holds a

general certificate of registration, 520
for a member who holds an inactive
certificate of registration, and $20 for a

member who holds a retired certificate
of registration.

By-law
13.9
13.10

13.10
13.11

13.11
13.72

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

87

106
Public Interest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



_l L,ll |lL

88Proposed By-law Amendments
Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

107
Public lnterest Rationale

There may be fees associated with SCERPs

The cost burden should be born by the
member

Recommended Amendments

Where a member is required to complete
a Specified Continuins Education or
Remediation Prosram (SCERP), the
member shall oav the orescribed fee or
the fee set bv the registrar.

Current CCO By-law
Where a person requests the registrar to
do anything the registrar is required or
authorized to do by statute or by
regulation, the person shall pay the
prescribed fee or the fee set by the
registrar for doing so.

lf the registrar suspends a member's
certificate of registration for failure to
pay a prescribed fee, the registrar may
lift the suspension on payment of:

(a) the fee the member failed to pay;

(b) the annual fee for the year in which
the suspension is to be lifted if it is not
the same fee as clause (a); and

(c) any applicable penalty

By-law
13.r2
13.13

13.L4
(new)

13.13
13.15

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law
A member whose certificate of
registration was revoked for failure to
pay a fee and who applies to be

reinstated is required to pay:

(a) an application fee of S52;

(b) the annualfees and any applicable
penalties the member failed to pay up

to the date of revocation; and

(c) the annual fee for the year in which
the member wishes to be reinstated.

The registrar may grant a partial
exemption from the fees payable by a

member pursuant to this by-law if the
committee is satisfied that extraordinary
circumstances exist which justify the
exemption.

The amount payable by a member who
applies for reinstatement of a retired
certificate of registration is 5S2.

By-law
L3.74
13.T6

13.15
13.L7

13.16
13. r"8

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

89

108
Public lnterest Rationale

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.1. -,.: l ,l" I tr[Llmtmf[l

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

90

109
Publ ic lnterest Rationale
For clarity

For clarity

Recommended Amendments
The A fee of S52 is payable for each
follow-up letters, emails or other
notifications to a member who has not
complied with a request from CCO, such

as a request:

(a) to make available the members'
professional portfolio to the Quality
Assurance Committee,

(b) to participate in the peer and practice
assessment component of the Quality
Assurance Program,

(c) to explain an advertisement that does
not appear to comply with CCO

regulations or guidelines despite previous

advice or caution to the member.
*-Ss'a+er++te*

Where lf CCO presents a continuing
education or professional development
program or course, CCO shall determine
whether any fee shall be charged for that
course and if so, what the fee shall be.

Current GGO By-law
The fee for follow-up letters, emails or
other notifications to a member who
has not complied with a request from
CCO, such as a request:

(a) to make available the members'
professional portfolio to the Quality
Assurance Committee,

(b) to participate in the peer and
practice assessment component of the
Quality Assu rance Progra m,

(c) to explain an advertisement that
does not appear to comply with CCO

regulations or guidelines despite
previous advice or caution to the
member,

is $52 per letter

Where CCO presents a continuing
education or professional development
program or course, CCO shall determine
whether any fee shall be charged for
that course and if so, what the fee shall
be.

By-law
L3.17
13.19

13.18
L3.20

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



For clarity

For clarity

For clarity

Recommended Amendments
The A fee of S52 is pavable for the each

application for a certificate of
authorization of a professional

corporation, in€luding€n€{y and for each

application for reinstatement of a
certificate of a uthorization.-Ja#-g

@
The A fee of 5625 is pavable for the each

issuance of a certificate of authorization of
a professiona I corporation. ie$525,

The A fee of 3210 is oavable for the each

annual renewal of a certificate of
authorization of a professional

corporation. is$Z{^O,

Gurrent GGO By-law
The fee for the application for a

certificate of authorization, including on

any reinstatement of a certificate of
authorization, for a professional
corporation is S52.

The fee for the issuance of a certificate
of authorization is 5625.

The fee for the annual renewal of a

certificate of authorization is S210,

A professional corporation or a member
listed in CCO's records as a shareholder
of a professional corporation shall pay

an administrative fee of S5Z for each

notice sent by the registrar to the
corporation or member for failure of the
corporation to renew its certificate of
authorization on time. The fee is due

within 30 days of the notice being sent.

By-law
13.19
13.21.

t3.20
13.22

13.21
73.23

13.22
L3.24

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

91

110
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



I IIIlImtil rl r -*, *Ll . .rlit

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

92

111
Public lnterest Rationale
For clarity

The process for reviewing applications for
reinstatement is time consuming and
expensive

The cost burden should be born by the
a pplicant

Recommended Amendments
Tfis A fss of S52 is pavable for the iss+ing
issuance of a document or certificate
respecting a professional corporation,
other than the first certificate of
authorization or one annual renewalef+

A fee of SZSO is oavable bv a oerson
whose certificate of resistration has been
revoked or suspended as a result of a

disciolinarv or incaoacitv oroceedins and
who applies in writing to the registrar to
have a new certificate issued or the
suspensionjemoved.

Current GCO By-law
The fee for the issuing of a document or
certificate respecting a professional
corporation, other than the first
certificate of authorization or one
annual renewal of a certificate of
authorization, is $52.

By-law
13.23
73.25

New Bv-

law
13.26

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

By-Iaw 1 4: PnOFESSIONAL CORPORATIONS

93

112

Public lnterest Rationale

Update regarding registration of Ontario
business corporations

Every individual or family group with a

beneficial interest of 25% or more:
https ://www.onta rio.calpage/beneficia l-

ownersh i p-informatio n-req u irements

Recommended Amendrnents

Every member of CCO shall, for every
professional corporation of which the
member is a shareholder, provide in

writing the following information on the
application and annual renewal forms
for a certificate of authorization, upon

the written request of the registrar
within 30 days and upon any change in

the information within 30 days of the
change:

(a) the name of the professional

corporation as registered with the
@ieesOntario
Business Registry;

(b) any business names used by the
professional corporation;

(c) the name of each beneficial owner as

required to be recorded bv the
professional corporation pursuant to the
Ontario Business Registry;

@
€€#p€+atien;

Gurrent GCO By-law
Every member of CCO shall, for every
professional corporation of which the
member is a shareholder, provide in

writing the following information on the
application and annual renewal forms
for a certificate of authorization, upon

the written request of the registrar
within 30 days and upon any change in

the information within 30 days of the
change:

(a) the name of the professional

corporation as registered with the
Ministry of Government Services;

(b) any business names used by the
professiona I corporatiory

(c) the name, as set out in the register,
and registration number of each

shareholder of the professional

corporation;

By-law
t4.t

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



II r I ll lNlllDnn ll I I l ,I L

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

94

113
Public lnterest Rationale
A corporation's business number is issued by
the CRA. The Ontario Business Registry uses
the same number.
O. Ree. 4OO/2I under the Corporations
lnformation Act

Recommended Amendments
(d) (new) the professional corporation's
business registration number issued bv
the Canada Revenue Aqencv:

(d the name, as set out in the register,
of each officer and director of the
professional corporation, and the title or
office held by each officer and director;

Ifl the principal practice address,
telephone number, facsimile number
and e-mail address of the professional
corporation;

{g} the address and telephone number
of all other locations, other than
residences of clients, at which the
professional services offered by the
professiona I corporation a re provided;
and

lh) a brief description of the
professional activities carried out by the
professional corporation.

Gurrent CCO By-law

(d) the name, as set out in the register,
of each officer and director of the
professional corporation, and the title or
office held by each officer and director;

(e) the principal practice address,
telephone number, facsimile number
and e-mail address of the professional

corporation;

(f) the address and telephone number
of all other locations, other than
residences of clients, at which the
professional services offered by the
professionaI corporation are provided;
and

(g) a brief description of the
professional activities carried out by the
professional corporation.

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved bv Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

BY-uw 15: TnenAPY AND CourusellNc

95

114

Public lnterest Rationale
For clarity and spelling

DEI: gender neutral language

For clarity

DEI: Gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments
CCO shall require a therapistg e+ and

eeunsels+ cou nsel lo rs who is p+eviding
provide therapy or counselline €€u{seli{rg
that is funded th+eu€h pursuant to the
program required under B#a+v section

85.7 of the Codeto provide a written
statement signed by hiplSsr thet
containing details of hjslh€+ their training
and experience and confirming that the
therapy or ee+rnseli+g counsellins is being
provided and that the funds received are

being devoted only to that purpose.

CCO shall require a every person who is
receiving therapy or eeunseling
cgunsellins that is funded +hr€u€h
pursuant to the program required under
gy-b'\# section 85.7 of the Code lo provide

a written statement signed by him/her
them acknowledging that he/she is thev
are aware of the details of the training and
experience of the therapist or ee+*nsele+

counsellor and confirming that the
therapy or eeuns,eling counselling is being
provided and that the funds received are

being devoted only to that purpose.

Current CCO By-law
CCO shall require a therapist or
counselor who is providing therapy or
counseling that is funded through the
program required under By-law 85.7 of
the Code to provide a written statement
signed by him/her containing details of
his/her training and experience and

confirming that the therapy or
counseling is being provided and that
the funds received are being devoted
only to that purpose.

CCO shall require a person who is
receiving therapy or counseling that is

funded through the program required
under By-law 85.7 ofthe Code to
provide a written statement signed by

him/her acknowledging that he/she is

aware of the details of the training and

experience of the therapist or counselor
and confirming that the therapy or
counseling is being provided and that
the funds received are being devoted
only to that purpose.

By-law
15.1

15.2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

BV-uw 16: PnoFESSIoNAL LIABILITY PnorecTloN oR INSURANcE

...: IlrnLlll iii.i._,1,_._ |,l.lll .-..,-.

115

96

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CCO By-law
Each member holding a general or
tem porary certificate of registration
must carry and provide evidence
satisfactory to the registrar of carrying
professional liability protection or
insurance in the applicable minimum
amount per occurrence and minimum
aggregate amount per year, including
coverage for claims after the member
ceases to hold a certificate relating to
occurrences while holding a certificate,
or membership in a protective
association that provides equivalent
protection. A member who is or will be

when registered, an employee of a

member, a health facility or other body
that has equivalent professional liability
insurance coverage or membership in a
protective association that provides
equivalent protection is deemed to
comply with this section.

By-law
L6.1

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsGurrent GGO By-law
The professional liability protection or
insurance referred to in By-law 16.1
must have:

(a) a minimum amount of 55,000,000
per occurrence, and

(b) a minimum aggregate amount of

S5,ooo,ooo per year.

When applying for a general or
temporary certificate of registration or a
renewal of a general or temporary
certificate of registration, an applicant
must sign a declaration that they comply
with By-laws 16.1 and 16.2.

A member holding a generalor
temporary certificate of registration
must have available in their office, in

written or electronic form, evidence that
they comply with By-laws 76.I and 16.2,

or may have the provider of the
protection under By-law 16.1 provide
regular updates to CCO confirming
compliance with By-laws 16.1 and 16.2.

By-law
1"6.2

16.3

1.6.4

Proposed By-law Amendments
Aooroved bv Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

97

116
Public Interest Rationale

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.l .-,r.,1". il I ll]llrmll llir I

98Proposed By-law Amendments
Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

BY.IRw 17:. PueLIc REGISTER
117

Public lnterest Rationale

DEI: gender neutral language

Recommended Amendments

The Registrar may enter a name other
than the name referred to in By-law 17.1
in the register if the Registrar:

(a) has received a written request from
the member;

(b) is satisfied that the memberlgme
has been legally changed his-er$er+am,e;
and

(c) is satisfied that the name change is not
for any improper purpose.

Current GGO By-law
Subjectto By-law 17.2,a member's
name in the register shall be the full
name indicated on the document used

to support the member's initial
registration with the College

The Registrar may enter a name other
than the name referred to in By-law 17.1
in the register if the Registrar:

(a) has received a written request from
the member;

(b) is satisfied that the member has

legally changed his or her name; and

(c) is satisfied that the name change is

not for any improper purpose.

By-law
17.1

17.2

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

99

118
Public lnterest Rationale
Deleting of non-existent provision

For clarity

Recommended Amendments

@Amember's
business address in the register shall be

the address of the location in Ontario
where the member is employed or self-
employed as a chiropractor. ln the event
that the member is employed or self-

employed as a chiropractor in more than
one location in Ontario, the member's
business address shall be then location of
the member's primary practice. ln the
event that the member is not employed or
self-employed in Ontario as a chiropractor,
the registrar shall enter as the member's
business address the location designated

by the member for communication with
cco.

Current GCO By-law
Subject to By-law 17.6(q)(i), a member's
business address in the register shall be

the address of the location in Ontario
where the member is employed or self-
employed as a chiropractor. ln the event
that the member is employed or self-
employed as a chiropractor in more than
one location in Ontario, the member's
business address shall be then
member's primary practice. ln the event
that the member is not employed or
self-employed in Ontario as a

chiropractor, the registrar shall enter as

the member/s business address the
location designated by the member.

By-law
17.3

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



I ttllrtrltnll I I

100Proposed By-law Amendments
Council for Distribution and Feedback: 2023

119
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended Amendments

A member's business telephone number
shall be the telephone number of the
location in Ontario where the member is

employed or self-employed as a

chiropractor. ln the event that the
member is employed or self-employed as

a chiropractor in more than one location
in Ontario, the member's business

telephone number shall be the telephone
number of the member's primary practice.
ln the event that the member is not
employed or self-employed in Ontario as a
chiropractor, the register shall not contain
a business telephone number fer the

designated by the member for
communication with CCO.

Gurrent GCO By-law
A member's business telephone number
shall be the telephone number of the
location in Ontario where the member is

employed or self-employed as a

chiropractor. ln the event that the
member is employed or self-employed
as a chiropractor in more than one
location in Ontario, the member's
business telephone number shall be the
telephone number of the member's
primary practice. ln the event that the
member is not employed or self-
employed in Ontario as a chiropractor,
the register shall not contain a business

telephone number for the member.

The Registrar shall maintain a register in
accordance with section 23 of the Code.

By-law
17.4

11.5

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Typographical error

For clarification

Recommended Amendments
ln addition to the information set out in
subsection 23(2li'i of the Code, the register
shall contain the following g+Ulieal+V

publiclv available information with respect

to each member:

(a) Where a decision of a panel of the
Discipline Committee has been
published by the College with the
member's orformer member's name

included,
(i) a notation ofthat fact; and
(ii) identification of, a link to, or a copy

of the specific publication containing
that decision.

(b) For every caution required by a panel

of the lnquiries, Complaints and Reports

Committee under paragraph 3 of
subsection 26 (L) ofthe Code, and for any

specified continuing education or
remediation programs required by a panel

of the lnquiries, Complaints and Reports

Committee using its powers under
paragraph 4 of subsection 26 (1) of the

eeds
i. the date of the panel's decision,

ii. a synopsis of its content, and
iii. if applicable, a notation that the
panel's decision is subject to review and is

Current CCO By-law
ln addition to the information set out in
subsection 23(2)iii of the Code, the
register shall contain the following
pu blically available information with
respect to each member:

(a) Where a decision of a panel of the
Discipline Committee has been
published by the College with the
member's or former member's name

included,
(i) a notation of that facU and
(ii) identification of, a link to, or a copy

of the specific publication containing
that decision.

(b) For every caution required by a

panel of the lnquiries, Complaints and

Reports Committee under paragraph 3

of subsection 25 (1), and for any
specified continuing education or
remediation programs required by a
panel of the lnquiries, Complaints and

Reports Committee using its powers

under paragraph 4 of subsection 26 (1),

i. the date of the panel's decision,

ii. a synopsis of its content, and

iii. if applicable, a notation that the
panel's decision is subject to review and

is not fina which notation shall be

By-law
17.6

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

101

120
Public lnterest Rationale

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



1, lLtllllillDll$ln l.i:1.]L,l .,..:." i-11 -llL

102Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

121
Public lnterest Rationale

The member's acknowledgement should
waive all rights of appeal and judicial review

Recommended Amendments
not yet final, which notation shall be
removed once the review and any
reconsideration by the lnquiries,
Complaints and Reports Committee is

finally disposed of.

(c) For every acknowledgement and
u nderta king that a member has eiven to
CCO in relation to matters involving
allegations of professional misconduct or
incompetence before the lnquiries,
Complaints and Reports Committee or the
Discipline Committee

@andthata+e
remain in effect, in addition to the
synopsis,
i. the date that the panel accepted the
member's acknowledgment and
undertakine;
ii. a svnopsis of the acknowledsed facts;
and
iii. the terms of the member's undertakins

Aispesea-e+,

Gurrent CGO By-law
removed once the review and any
reconsideration by the lnquiries,
Complaints and Reports Committee is

finally disposed of.

(c) For every acknowledgement and
undertaking in relation to matters
involving allegations of professional
misconduct or incompetence before the
lnquiries, Complaints and Reports
Committee or the Discipline Committee
that a member has entered into with the
College and that are in effect, in addition
to the synopsis,
i. the date of the panel's decision, and
ii. if applicable, a notation that the
panel's decision is subject to review or
appeal and is not yet final, which
notation shall be removed once the
review or appeal and any
reconsideration by the panel is finally
disposed of.

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



(e) is a duplication of (d)

Recommended Amendments
(d) A notation of any finding of guilt for a

criminal offence or an offence under the
Heolth lnsurqnce Act, 1990, of which the
College is aware, made by a court after
July 1, 2016, against a member.

eriminal effenee er an effenee under the

@

l$ A notation that a member is

registered or licensed to practise a

profession inside or outside of Ontario
of which the College is aware.

lfl For every term, condition and limitation
that is in effect on each certificate of
registration, information about the date it
was imposed, the committee that
imposed it and circumstances surrounding
its imposition.

Gurrent GCO By-law
(d) A notation of any finding of guilt for
a criminal offence or an offence under
the Heolth lnsurance Act, L990, of which
the College is aware, made by a court
after July L,20L6, against a member.

(e) A notation of any finding of guilt for
a criminal offence or an offence under
the Heolth lnsurance Act, 1"990, of which
the College is aware, made by a court
afterJuly L,2OL6, against a member.

(f) A notation that a member is

registered or licensed to practise a

profession inside or outside of Ontario
of which the College is aware.

(g) For every term, condition and
limitation that is in effect on each

certif icate of registration, information
about the date it was imposed, the
committee that imposed it and

circumstances su rrounding its
imposition.

By-law

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

103

122
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



[ ]rlrlmmlil ii

Public lnterest Rationale

l-,,J i1,

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

104

123
Recommended Amendments

lgl A notation of every bail condition or
other restriction imposed on, or agreed to,
by the member in connection with a

charge for a criminal offence or an offence
under the Health lnsurance Act of which
the College is aware.

lh) The following practice information
related to a member:
(i) The business address, business

telephone number and business email of
up to three practice locations;
(ii) The membe/s gender;
(iii) the name of the chiropractic
education program graduated by the
member and year of graduation from that
program;
(iv) the year of initial registration with
CCO; and
(v) up to three languages in which the
member offers professional services, as

identified by the member.

Current CGO By-law
(h) A notation of every bail condition or
other restriction imposed on, or agreed
to, by the member in connection with a

charge for a criminal offence or an

offence under the Health lnsurance Act
of which the College is aware.

(i) The following practice information
related to a member:
(i) The business address, business

telephone number and business email of
up to three practice locations;
(ii) The member's gender;
(iii) the name of the chiropractic
education program graduated by the
member and year of graduation from
that program;
(iv) the year of initial registration with
CCO; and
(v) up to three languages in which the
member offers professional services, as

identified by the member.

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Recommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By-law
lf requested, the member shall
immediately provide the College with
the following information, in the form
requested by the College:

(a) information required to be

maintained in the register in accordance
with subsection 23(2) of the Code and
By-law 17.6;

(b) the address and telephone number
of the member's primary residence in

Ontario and, if the member does not
reside in Ontario, the address and

telephone number of the member's
primary residence;

(c) The member's email addresses;

(d) Proof of professional liability
insurance;

(e) The member's areas of practice and
categories of clients seen;

(f) lnformation regarding the member's
employment including:
(i) the member's title and position,
(ii) a description of the member's role,
duties, and responsibilities, and

By-law
17.7

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Councilfor Distribution and Feedback: September 8, 2023

105

124
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.-L .r l t it ]l]rtErttllt ilt I

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

106

125
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GGO By-law

(iii)the member's employment category
and status.

(e) any nicknames or abbreviations that
the member uses in any place of
practice;

(h) information about the member's
registration with any other body that
governs a profession, whether inside or
outside of Ontario, including the name
of the governing body, the member's
registration or license number and the
date the member first became
registered;

(i) information about any finding of
professional misconduct or
incompetence or similar finding that has

been made against the member by a

body that governs a profession, inside or
outside of Ontario, where the finding
has not been reversed on appeal,
including;
(i) the finding,
(ii) the name of the governing body that
made the finding,
(iii) a brief summary of the facts on
which the finding was based,

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

107

126
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsGurrent CCO By-law

(iv) the penalty and any other orders
made relative to the finding,
(v) the date the finding was made, and
(vi) information regarding any appeals

of the finding.

(j) information about any finding of
incapacity or similar finding that has

been made against the member by a

body that governs a profession, inside or
outside of Ontario, where that finding
has not been reversed on appeal,
including:
(i) the finding
(ii) the name of the governing body that
made the finding,
(iii) the date the finding was made,
(iv) a summary of any order made, and
(v) information regarding any appeals
of the finding.

(k) information about the member's
participation in the Quality Assurance
Program,

(l) information for the purpose of
compiling statistical data,

By-law

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



.._ll I rl llllllllllli ll l ...-U.l :..---. -I

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

108

127
Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent CGO By-law

The member shall notify the College, in,
writing, of any changes to the following
information within 30 days of the
effective date ofthe change:

(a) the member's name,

(b) the address and telephone number
of the member's primary residence in

Ontario and, if the member does not
reside in Ontario, the address and
telephone number of the member's
primary residence,

(c) the member's business address or
business telephone num ber.

All of the information in the register is

designated, under subsection 23(6) of
the Code, as information that may be

withheld from the public if the Registrar
has reasonable grounds to believe that
disclosure may jeopardize the safety of
an individual.

By-law
L7.8

17.9

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

By.mw 18: AppoINTMENT oF Non-CnIRoPRACTIG COMMITTEE MEMECNS

109

128

Public lnterest RationaleRecommended AmendmentsCurrent GCO By-law
An individual is eligible for appointment
to a committee as a Non-Chiropractic
Committee Member if, on the date of
the appointment:

(a) The individual resides in Ontario;

(b) The individual has not been

disqualified from serving on Council or a

committee within the six years

immediately preceding the
appointment;

(c) The individual has never been a

Member;

(d) The individual does not have a
conflict of interest in respect of the
committee to which they are to be

appointed; and

(e) The individualwould not be

disqualified from serving as a Non-
CouncilMember if the individualwere a

Member.

By-law
18.1

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



. L tl[l]]. ,ilLl

Recommended AmendmentsGurrent GCO By-law
The Council may remove or disqualify a

Non-Chiropractic Committee Member
from a committee with or without
cause.

By-law
18.2

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

110

129
Public lnterest Rationale

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

111

130
' Section 23(2) The register shall contain the following:
1. Each member's name, business address and business telephone number, and, if applicable, the name of every health profession corporation of which the

member is a shareholder.
2. Where a member is deceased, the name of the deceased member and the date upon which the member died, if known to the Registrar.

3. The name, business address and business telephone number ofevery health profession corporation.
4. The names of the shareholders of each health profession corporation who are members of the College.
5. Each member's class of registration and specialist status.

6. The terms, conditions and limitations that are in effect on each certificate of registration.
7. A notation of every caution that a member has received from a panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee under paragraph 3 of subsection 26

( I ), and any specified continuing education or remedial programs required by a panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee using its powers under

paragraph 4 ofsubsection26 (1).
8. A notation of every matter that has been referred by the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee to the Discipline Committee under section 26 and that
has not been finally resolved, including the date of the referral and the status of the hearing before a panel of the Discipline Committee, until the matter has been

resolved.
9. A copy of the specified allegations against a member for every matter that has been referred by the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee to the

Discipline Committee under section 26 and that has not been finally resolved.

10. Every result ofa disciplinary or incapacity proceeding.

I I . A notation and synopsis of any acknowledgements and undertakings in re ation to matters involving allegations of professional misconduct or incompetence

before the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee or the Discipline Committee that a member has entered into with the College and that are in effect.

12. A notation of every finding of professional negligence or malpractice, which rnay or may not relate to the member's suitability to practise, made against the

member, unless the finding is reversed on appeal.
13. A notation ofevery revocation or suspension ofa certificate ofregistration.
14. A notation ofevery revocation or suspension ofa certificate ofauthorization.
15. Information that a panel of the Registration Committee, Discipline Committee or Fitness to Practise Committee specifies shall be included.

16. Where findings of the Discipline Committee are appealed, a notation that they are under appeal, until the appeal is finally disposed of.
17. Where, during or as a result of a proceeding under section 25, amember has resigned and agreed never to practise again in Ontario, a notation of the

resignation and agreement.
18. Where the College has an inspection program established under clause 95 (1) (h) or (h.1), the outcomes ofinspections conducted by the college.

19. Information that is required to be kept in the register in accordance with regulations made pursuant to clause 43 (l) (t) of the Regulated Health Professions

Act, 1991.
20. Information that is required to be kept in the register in accordance with the by-laws.

iiSection 23(14)For the purpose ofthis section and section 56,

"result",

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



ltl , I Lil IifitfillEXl[ffilll]l ll , lll lJ lltL

Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

112

131
(a) when used in reference to a disciplinary proceeding, means the panel's finding that the member committed an act of professional misconduct or was
incompetent, particulars of the grounds for the finding, a synopsis of the decision and the order made, including any reprimand, and where the panel has made no
such finding, includes a notation that no such finding was made and the reason why no such finding was made, and
(b) when us'ed in reference to an incapacity proceeding, means the panel's finding that the member is incapacitated and the order made by the panel.

@ College of Chiropractors of Ontario



Proposed By-law Amendments
Approved by Council for Distribution and Feedback: September 8,2023

113

132
"' Section 23(2)The register shall contain the following:
1. Each member's name, business address and business telephone number, and, if applicable, the name of every health profession corporation of which the

member is a shareholder.
2. Where a member is deceased, the name of the deceased member and the date upon which the member died, if known to the Registrar.

3. The name, business address and business telephone number of every health profession corporation.
4. The names of the shareholders of each health profession corporation who are members of the College.
5. Each member's class of registration and specialist status.

6. The terms, conditions and limitations that are in effect on each certificate of registration.
7. A notation of every caution that a member has received from a panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee under paragraph 3 of subsection 26

(1), and any specified continuing education or remedial programs required by a panel of the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee using its powers under

paragraph 4 of subsection26 (l).
8. A notation of every matter that has been referred by the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee to the Discipline Committee under section 26 andthat

has not been finally resolved, including the date of the referral and the status of the hearing before a panel of the Discipline Committee, until the matter has been

resolved.
9. A copy of the specified allegations against a member for every matter that has been referred by the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee to the

Discipline Committee under section 26 and,tbat has not been finally resolved.

10. Every result ofa disciplinary or incapacity proceeding.

I l. A notation and synopsis of any acknowledgements and undertakings in relation to matters involving allegations of professional misconduct or incompetence

before the Inquiries, Complaints and Reports Committee or the Discipline Committee that a member has entered into with the College and that are in effect.

12. A notation of every finding of professional negligence or malpractice, which may or may not relate to the member's suitability to practise, made against the

member, unless the finding is reversed on appeal.
13. A notation ofevery revocation or suspension ofa certificate ofregistration.
14. A notation ofevery revocation or suspension ofa certificate ofauthorization.
15. Information that a panel of the Registration Committee, Discipline Committee or Fitness to Practise Committee specifies shall be included.

16. Where findings of the Discipline Committee are appealed, a notation that they are under appeal, until the appeal is finally disposed of.

17. Where, during or as a result ofa proceeding under section 25, a member has resigned and agreed never to practise again in Ontario, a notation ofthe
resignation and agreement.
18. Where the College has an inspection program established under clause 95 (1) (h) or (h.1), the outcomes ofinspections conducted by the college.

19. Information that is required to be kept in the register in accordance with regulations made pursuant to clause 43 (l) (t) of the Regulated Health Professions

AcL 1991.
20. Information that is required to be kept in the register in accordance with the by-laws.

O College of Chiropractors of Ontario



11120123,7:52 AM

Click Rote

Constant Contact l) *+;UA,\IL/.,3,0 ,

"lr0'J. I
i :i:.': ;itr j.'i,:ri ir.,."-,: ;,r'j r..'r.i::iii-'.::i-:rr::l :l--':l:l;l-::::: o

133

7022
Open Rote

75.2o/o

copy

Detoils Reporting Heot Mop

Emoil Performonce
See how your emoils ore doing with your oudience. Compore your results to the industry

overoge.

Sent

4.8o/o
Opens

Sent

Bounces

Successful Deliveries

5167

to22

147

6875

Clicks

Did Not Open

Unsubscribed

Spom Reports

333

1708

6.3o1o

3

Desktop Open Percentoge 93.7o/o Mobile Open Percentoge

Recommendotions
Here ore some things we think would help this compoign even more.

Sociql Shore

Try shoring your ernoil in o socicl post to get your message out there to c brooder audience. lt is c free

post thcrt soys "l'm here!"

https://aop.constantcontact.com/paqes/campaiqnsiemail-details/reportinq/activitv/9aa2bB6e-9308-4838-a aB7-a2412a2oef7b 112



11120123,7:52 AM Constant Contact

i-i*it.llt +
134

11

J
I

=

==

II-

Ri:Pi,',t-i 'r'i! \" v

f\euLll LusLUIllglS 5C(JMlll19 lLJr PT(JUULL> (Jr >CrVrLe> lrKU yUUt5 Uil \JUU9tg uttu utily puy tut uLLLJut LilLns

l

=

Click-Through Distribution
When o contoct clicks o link in your emoil, we'll show you the stots here

Link

https://cco.o n.colwp-content/upl o ods/2o23 / O9lS003 DroftSept82023.pdf

https://cco.on.colwp-content/u plo ods /2023 / 09 /BV -

lowAmendmentChortforFeedbockSept82023.pdf

https://www.su rveymo n key.com/r / KSXBJ J K

https://www.surveymon key.com/r/CWWG RS B

Totol Click-throughs

Send History
History of this emoil being sent including how mony people it wss sent to

121

45

520

Stqtus

Your emoil hcs been successfully sent.

Unique Clicks Distribution

193 37.10/"

161 31o/o

23.3o/o

B.7o/o

100o/o

Dqte

Tue, Sep 19, 2023'1:30 pm EDT

Sent Count

7022

Templote Nonne: cPE-PT1Ofilu" 
o product ideo or request? submit it here!

@ 1996 - 2023 Constont Contact, lnc. Terms of Service Acceptoble Use Policy Anti-Spom

Privocy Center Vulnersbility Disclosure Do Not Sell or Shore My Personol lnformqtion Shore Screen

212



Joel Friedman ITEM 3.3

Deborah Gibson <dgibson@chiropractic.on.ca> on behalf of Caroline Brereton

< cbrereton@chiro practic.on.ca >

Saturday, November 18,2023 1:45 PM

cco.info
Jo-Ann Willson; Dianna Pasic

Ontario Chiropractic Association feedback on proposed CCO By-law Amendments

OCA feedback on proposed CCO By-law Amendments - November 2023.pdf

135
From

Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon Dr. Green,

The attached correspondence is sent on behalf of the Ontario Chiropractic Association. Please note that this
submission has also been submitted on the CCO Portal.

Regards,
Caroline Brereton

Deborah Gibson (she/her)
Office Manager
Mobile: 416-302-2616
Email: doibson@ch irooractic.on.ca
Web : www. ch iropractic. on. ca

Ontario
Chiropractic
Association

70 University Ave., Ste. 201

Toronto, ON MsJ 2M4

o@o9

-ta-
bb-



a5aa
b
ba

Ontario
Chiropractic
Association 136

November 18,2023

Dr. Sarah Green
President, College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden Street, Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7

Dear Dr. Green,

Re: OCA feedback on proposed CCO By-law Amendments

The Ontario Chiropractic Association (OCA) appreciates the opportunity to provide

feedback on the proposed changes to CCO By-law amendments.

With one exception, OCA supports the suite of proposed By-Law amendments and

believes they will serve to enhance the efficacy of CCO's Councils and committees *
and advance the public interest, more broadly. Representing over 78o/o of CCO
registrants, OCA believes that given the relatively small size of the chiropractic
profession in Ontario, and the need to encourage leaders to come fonruard, CCO should
retain the current three year "cooling-off' period for those chiropractors seeking to be
elected after serving on the leadership of a chiropractic advocacy group, or chiropractic
educational organization, or after resigning from CCO Council before completion of their
term, with the exception that the "cooling off' period for those members who have or are

engaged in litigation against CCO, or for those who have had disciplinary decisions,
remains 6 years.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide input on the proposed By-law amendments.

Sincerely,

a--6.-/--,

Caroline Brereton, RN, MBA
Chief Executive Officer

cc Ms. Jo-Ann Willson
Registrar and General Counsel

20t -7O University Ave

Toronto, ON

MsJ 2M4

Tel: 416-860-0070
Toll-free: t-877 -327 -2273

Fax: 416-860-0857

chiropractic.on.ca



ITEM 3.4
Joel Friedman 137 ,

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Brian Ferguson <doc@docferguson.com>

Friday, November 17,2023 9:43 PM

cco.info; Jo-Ann Willson
CCO Feedback

cAUTtON EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

@l ALL_|4NCE FoR c I I E9 P-R-AgTl_c
iri: { (,1,!Y Adqlri\:;.{rrr rIv i liA(JI F:,rlt'

cco,

Thanks for the ability to provide feedback on proposed bylaw changes.

1. Bylaw 6.9 regards a cooling off period for persons serving on other boards/educational institutions. We contend that

this extension does not serve the public interest because this inappropriately excludes/delays the small number of

doctors who actually get involved to serve the profession who would have board experience from being on CCO. We

contend the 3 years is adequate, but if a change is to be made, it would be to decrease the cooling off period.

We would also be opposed to the exclusion of a person involved with litigation with council. While we can understand

that councilwould preferto have a such a party excluded from running for councilforan extended period, we feel

otherwise and we feel that this ineligibility does not serve the public interest..

2. We are in favour of the amendment to Standard of Practice 5-003 regarding the fundamental aspect of chiropractic

practice: the adjustment and including 5 hours of hand-on hours to be included every 3 cycles. This simply makes sense

to us.

Thanks for all that you do in the regulation of our profession and serving the public. The AFC affirms and appreciates the

ability to be a self-regulating profession.

Brian R. Ferguson, DC

CCO Liaison, AFC

L



Jo-Ann Willson
138

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Bria n ferguson < doc@docferg uson.com >

Saturday, November 18,2023 1:58 PM

Jo-Ann Willson
Re: CCO Feedback

Jo-Ann Willson, B.Sc., M.S.W., LL.B.
Registrar & General Counsel

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden Street, Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (416) 922-6355 ext. 1 1 1

Toll Free:'l -877 -577 4772
Fax (416) 925-9610
E-mail: ipwillson@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

College of Chiropractors of Ontario ("CCO") services continue as staff follow recommended health and
safety guidelines related to the COVID-3.9 global pandemic. ln-office services are availabie by appointment
only. Please use the email or phone contact !nformation above or, if you require urgent assistance, please

contact Reception by phone at 4t6-922-6355 ext. 100 or email reception@cco.on.ca
and your inquiry will be directed appropriately.

CCO is committed to providing inclusive, accommodating, and responsive services and ensuring that
individuals are treated with dignity and respect. Please contact us if you require accommodatlons. Please

ensure that all communications with CCO are respectful and professional.

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the person(s)
named above. Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is stricily prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in
enor, please notify CCO immediately by reply e-mail and delete all copies including any attachments without reading it
or making a copy. Thank you.

From: Brian Ferguson <doc@docferguson.com>

Sent: November 17,2023 9:43 PM

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you have verified the sender and know the content is safe.

Of course !

l'll get that answer first of the week.

Brian

Sent from my ridiculously cool iPhone

On Nov 18,2023, at 1:54 PM, Jo-Ann Willson <jpwillson@cco.on.ca> wrote

Good morning and thank you for the feedback. I wonder if you can help us with
something. Can you please advise how many memhgtt the AFC has and whether all

members are CCO members or whether memneilstfiended to individuals who are no+
chiropractors in Ontario? Thank you very much.

1



To: cco.info <cco.info @cco.on.ca>; Jo-Ann Willson <jpwil lson@cco.on.ca>
Subject: CCO Feedback

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you have verified the sender and know the content is safe.

139

x

cco

Thanks for the ability to provide feedback on proposed bylaw changes.

L. Bylaw 6.9 regards a cooling off period for persons serving on other
boards/educational institutions. We contend that this extension does not serve the
public interest because this inappropriately excludes/delays the small number of
doctors who actually get involved to serve the profession who would have board
experience from being on CCO. We contend the 3 years is adequate, but if a change is

to be made, it would be to decrease the cooling off period.

We would also be opposed to the exclusion of a person involved with litigation with
council. While we can understand that councilwould preferto have a such a party
excluded from running for council for an extended period, we feel otherwise and we
feel that this ineligibility does not serve the public interest..

2. We are in favour of the amendment to Standard of Practice 5-003 regarding the
fundamental aspect of chiropractic practice: the adjustment and including 5 hours of
hand-on hours to be included every 3 cycles. This simply makes sense to us.

Thanks for all that you do in the regulation of our profession and serving the public. The

AFC affirms and appreciates the ability to be a self-regulating profession.

Brian R. Ferguson, DC

CCO Liaison, AFC

l

t
I

':

2



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

Q1- Are you a Member of CCO 140
Arrswered: 34 Skippeci: 0

ITEM 3.5

Yes

No

oo/o 100k 20% 30% 400/o 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Yes

No

TOTAL

RFSPONSES

97.O60/o

2.94o/o

.fJ

1

u

Llt



Proposed By-law Amendments - September !9,2023

141
Q2 lf you are not a member of CCO, what type of stakeholder are you?

Arrswered: 34 Skippecl: 0

Member of the
Pu bIic

Chiropractic
Organ izat ion

Not Applicable
(Member of CCO)

ANSWER CHOICES

Member of the Public

Chiropractic Organization

Not Applicable (Member of CCO)

TOTAL

t
Oo/o 1oo/o 2OYo 30% 4Oo/o 50% 600/0 7oo/o 8oo/o 90% IOOYo

RESPONSES

0.00o/o

5.88o/o

94.120/o

0

2

32

34

1. lL



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023 142

Q3 lf you are a member of CCO, how long have you been in practice?

Less than 5

years

6 - 10 years

11 - 20 years

More than 20

years

Not applicabte I

Answered: 34 Skippecl: 0

RESPONSES

5.BB%

5.BBo/o

35.29o/o

50.00%

2.94o/o

O% lOYo 20olo 30o/o 40% 5Oo/o 6o0/o 7Oo/o 8oo/o 90Vo 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Less than 5 years

6 - 10 years

1l- - 20 years

More than 20 years

Not applicable

TOTAL

I

z

L2

17

1

34

1lr



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023
143

Q4 lf you are a member of CCO, what is the location of your primary
practice or residence

Answered: 34 Skipped: 0

ontario

Outside of
Ontario, in...

Outside of
Canada

Not Applicabte

I

ANSWER CHOICES

Ontario

Outside of ontario, in Canada

Outside of Canada

Not Applicable

TOTAL

RESPONSES

94.12o/o

0,0070

2.940/o

2,940/o

0

I

1

JL

u

LIL



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023 
144

Q5 I agree/disagree with the draft proposed amendments to various by-

laws that include gender neutral language, make minor grammatical

changes for sentence clarity, ensure consistency with related by-laws, or to
correct typograPhical errors

Ar-rswered: 32 SkiPPecl: 2

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strong[y
Disagree

I
Oo/o 1}o/o 20% 3OYo 40% 500/o 6OVo 7Oo/o 8oo/o 9Oo/o 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

TOTAL

RESPONSES

28,134/o

3L,250/o

6.25o/o

34.38o/o

I

10

2

11,

a)

rt1



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

145

Q6 Cornments - Explain why relating to CCO's public interest mandate

Answered: 13 Skipped: 21

T

RESPONSES

I don't believe these pronoun changes are necessary or grammatically correct atrd do not add

more clarity to the by-laws.

I don't think the proposed changes are necessary or provide a substantial increase in clarity to

the bylaws. When we change our bylaws to keep pace with social narrative, we risk losing the
intention of the bylaws.

This is a current social justice cause brought about by lhe current federal government. The
duration of this type of language has yet to be seen and CCO should rtot be so quick to uptake
each and ever social justice cause a government may choose to suppoft. The next
governlnent could easily change the language and CCo would then have to respond and

change again.

Relevance: we can argue that the gender of the subject is relevant in certain contexts and that
gencler-neutral language can remove important information. Freedom of Speech: we could also
make an argument that individuals should be free to use the langr-rage they choose without
being conrpelled to adhere to certain forms.

Waste of time. Unnecessary. lt is NOT the CCO'S mandate to be spending time or effort in
matters of morality and lifestyles.

I feel the pronoun/gender neutrality is an unnecessary step that may add confuston rather than
clarity. Making minor grammatical changes seems like common sense.

We must not let this mind disease of language mutilation seep into our profession. 2+2=4, let
us be good students of science and investigate God's created order and call it the way it is!

Anything else is deception and will lead to more of such... not healthy

There is much more than gender neutral language proposed. There are brand new restrictions,
uncirculated fee increases, and bylaw 18 that has never been circulated for feedback. Why is

CCO changes Bylaws so frequently and why is CCO so secretive these days?

I strongly disagree with the neutralization of he or she pronouns. I would except changing the

pronouns to be replaced by "member"

It is completely unnecessary

Grammatical erros should be changed but ihe other language is clear as is.

GENDER EXISTS , AND IT'S NOT DISRESPECTFUL TO USE GENDER PRONOUNS

Spinal manipulation is incredibly archaic and is such a small portion of the profession. l'm not

sure who is trying to hang on to spinal manipulation therapy as the only thing chiropractors do

br-rt there are many other things as a healtlr care practltioner that we shor-rld he allocation CE

hours to.

DATE

LL1I9l2O23 B:45 PM

1"LlLgl2o23 B:40 PM

1,L11912023 5:45 PM

1UI9|2O23 3:41PM

11"1171202311.24 AM

1,11t712A23 9:26 AM

11.1t61202s 6:26 PM

1].11,612023 12:53 PM

11-11,61202312:35 PM

ILlL6l2O2312:13 PM

1]l3ol2o231-0:24 AM

9l2Ol2A23 9:11 AM

9ltgl2o23 9:49 PM

2

J

4

5

6

7

I

9

10

1,1,

t2

a-)

7tt



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

146
Q7 I agree/disagree with the draft proposed amendments to By-law 6:

Election of Council Members

Answered: 30 Skipped: 4

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strong[y
disagree

I

Oo/o 1oo/o 20% 30% 4Oo/o 5a% 600/o 7oo/o 8Oo/o 9Oo/o 10O%

ANSWER CHOICES

Strongly agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

TOTAL

RESPONSES

3.33o/o

26.670/o

23.330/o

46.67o/o

1,

B

7

t4

30

IIL



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

147

Q8 Comments - Explain why relating to CCO's public interest mandate

Answered: 23 Skipped: 11

L

RESPONSES

I believe this cooling off period of 6 years or 6 years and 4 months before running for council
again to be excessive and that a period of 3 years across the board is a more than sufficient
amount of time. I don't believe that a criminal charge alone should require a cooling off period.

However, if there is a criminal conviction and if the nature of the convicted crime relates in a
significant way to the individual's practice or ability to serve on council, a cooling off period

could be applicable. For example, for convicted crimes of physical or sexual assault, theft,
fraud, and where the individual's trust is in serious question. Other lesser convictions may not

have any bearing on a person's ability or capacity to serve on council. Also, we have a.judicial
systetn that will deal with the penalties not the CCO. I believe 3 years is rnore than a sufficient
time period before being able to run for a position on council. This will allow opportunity for
experienced and comnritted nrernbers of our profession to continue to serve our profession.

I disagree with this proposed bylaw amendment. The fact that we have nrembers in good

standing with the college who want to give of their time and effort by serving on the board

should be something we encourage. Having a cooling off period last more than the curretlt 3

years seems to be excessive. With regard to a criminal charge preventing someone from

serving, I clo believe that irr Canada we still operate under the assumption of innocence utrtil
proven guilty. A criminal conviction may be an appropriate line to hold when the offence is of a
ceftain serious rrature (ie sexual assault, assault, fraud, tnurder). We cannot treat each case
broadly but must pay attention to the details as we do when serving our patients. To do less
would speak ill of our profession. ln cases where the person's trust is not called into question,

we should be satisfied with the penalty imposed by the courts. Fufthermore, with regard to
someone being in a litigious situation, this should not prevent thenr fronr running. Vague

language like this leaves too broad a range of meanings that can be interpreted in too many
ways to be truly helpful.

This change likely will exclude the most experlenced and strongest members of the profession

from serving the profession which is not in the public interest. The CCO needs voices of
experience to guide it irr public interest and by removirrg experienced professionals that will not

occur. A 3 year "cooling off" period is more than adequate and quite likely more than
rlecessary.

What is the public interest in a 6 year cooling off period. lt's too long.

Cor-tsistency is a cornerstone in transparent organizations. Transparency builds trust with an

organization and its stakeholders. The Chan's could be made even more consistent if after
serving for 9 years elected council members had to sit for 6 years before running for coul.tcil

again. I do not agree that there needs to be a cooling off period for a member who wants to run

who has Ben in litigation with CCO. There are many reasons why people litigate and once the
case is heard and settled it is over. Writing this in a bylaw almost feels like CCO is saying if
you don't agree with us we don't want you on council. I also believe he reference to criminal
records needs to be a partial list as no all offences reflect on a person's suitability to serve on

council.

No need for a 6 year cooling off period. excessive. 3 years is long enough atrd is what other
Colleges have. 6 years is an obstruction to members who want to serve. Doesn't affect public

interest if left at 3 years. Also, a crimirral charge is not a conviction. A member should not be
penalitied for a charge. Also the crime commited is important and should be considered. Drunk

drivirrg is not rnurder and does not affect the public interest rnandate. More fitresse is required

here.

Please see comments below

Absolutely opposed to a nominatio committee. There are too many personal agenda's steering
the CCO! The president should not be part of this cornmittee. What protects the interests of
the public is allowing the diversity of practice in Chiropractic to flourish. I viewyour change in
cooling off period to 6 years is a personal attempt to stop a particular individual from rutrning.

DATE

I1-lI9l2O23 B:45 PM

ILlLglzOz3 B:40 PM

LI|1912023 5:45 PM

L1'1].912023 4:54 PM

11"1]-912023 9:15 AM

lllIBl2A23 l-2:51 PM

11-1L81202312.34 PM

1-LlL7l2O23 1L:24 AM

2

a

4

5

6

7

B

Lt3



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

Politics must end! A candidate must be allowed to rurr unless convicted. Charges must not
require a cooling off period, as a person is innocent until proven guilty. You are not judges and
should not be in the role of the judicial system. Litigatiorr with the CCO should not prevent
someone from running either. How else will an out of control board be stopped?

I am unclear how a 6 year cooling off period is in the public interest. 3 years seems sufficient.

I believe that justice ought to be sought through legal measures. This should not preclude a
member from rnaking reform from within the CCO.

I'm torn about the increase to 6 yrs - something about that length of time seems extensive;
and a lengthy cooling off petiod, whereas 3 years does feel like an adequate cooling off period.

These changes seem self serving and unethical. Eliminating anyone from running or serving on
CCO council for 6 years is treating these chiropractors as crimnals. This seems unlawful.
What is CCO doing? What is CCO trying to protect themselves from? How does any of this
serve the public interest?

I don't think it is in the best interest of the public for the president to be part of this councrl it
leads to a certain bias

lsupport a2l3maloriIy vote on all by-lawchanges. lt is clearly stated in Robefts Rules of
Order which is the gold standard of governance that a 2/3 majority is need to change a bylaw
as opposed to a simple majority. There is ample rationale for tlris one most important reason is
it protects council from being overthrown by special interests as was the case only last yearA
2/3 nrajority is what the majority of other Regulatory colleges use. By-law changes should
never be considered frivolous and should always been considered with the utmost scrutiny and
I don't believe this is the case right now. Bylaw changes to 6,9 concerning the "rolling off'
period. A change fronr 3 to 6 years in unsuppoftable. This amendment will exclude and
obstruct the committed, experienced and suitable members of our profession from continuing
their service to our profession. This is clearly NOT in the public interest. A three year period is
more than adequate and is even excessive. A criminal charge should not require a cooling off
period. You are inrlocent until a finding of guilt. A criminal conviction rnay be different
depending on the nature of the crime committed. Convictions say under the Highway Tralfic
act have no bearing on a members ability or capacity to run. Offences such as assault,
robbery and fraud are quite different. Penalties are imposed by our judicial system.CCO is not
a penal Council. Three years is sufficient. I am strongly opposed to preventing someone
involved in litigation with the Council from running for Council, This amendment is intentionally
vague and has far reaching implications. I believe it is deliberately intended to prevent specific
individuals from running for Council. This is devious and surreptitious. This clause is also likely
Unconstitutional.

Professionalism and Leadership within the College of Chiropractors of Ontario (CCO) involves
a multifaceted examination of governance policies and eligibility criteria. The notion of a
"coolit'rg off" period, as per the Harvard Business model, aligns with widely-acknowledged best
business practices. Governance training illuminates the potential pitfalls of extended
leadership tenures, emphasizing how prolonged incumbency may inadveftently stifle innovation
under the guise of 1:romoting continuiiy. The recent amendments to by-law 6.9 take center
stage, specifically addressing the disqualification of rnembers from candidacy for the CCO
Council. These stipulations assert that prospective candidates should not have been, within
the preceding six years, involved as an adverse pafty in litigation against the CCO, 6.9(q).
Moreover, candidates must not be currently accused of any criminal offense under the Criminal
Code of Canada, 6.9O. Funhermore, they must rlot have been convicted of a criminal offense
for which they have not received a pardon, pursuant 0f the Criminal Code of Canada, 6.9(s).
The driving force behind these amendments lies in their explicit alignment with the public
interest. lt becomes readily apparent that Sections (q), (r), and (s) of by-law 6.9 are designed
to safeguard the integrity of the CCO Council by precluding members whose engagement could
potentially lead to conflicts of interest. Section 6.9(q) penains to conflicts with the CCO itself,
while Sections 6.9(r) and 6.9(s) encapsulate the imperative of serving and protecting the public
interest, particularly concerning the Council's role in chiropractic regulation. Additionally,
supplementary amendments intended "for the lnterest of consistency" advocate extending the
"cooling off" period from three to six years. This extended period applies to individuals who
have recently engaged with the leadership of chiropractic advocacy groups, chiropractic
education organizatiorrs, or those who have prematurely resigned from the CCO Council before
completing their term. The interpretation offered by the President may not wholly align witlr the
byJaw's definition, especially in cases where the organizations in question extend beyond
mere advocacy groups. The cornerstone of this discourse lies in the bedrock of

148
I I1-11712023 9:26 AM

1111612023 6:26 PM

L11L612A23 2:23 PM

1]'1161202312:53 PM

1111"61202312:35 PM

I1-11-Gl2O23 12:13 PM

1,1,11,412023 12:54 AM

=

T
I-!

10

TI

I2

13

14

15

2t3



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 79,2023

professionalism, as encapsulated withirr the Canadian Chiropractic and Ontario Chiropractic

Associaiions'Codes of Ethics and Codes of Conduct, alongside the Core Competencies for

CCO Members, These guidelir.res underscore the paramount importance of empathy, respect,

and integrity in the conduct of chiropractors and their staff, grounded in the timeless adage

known as the "golden rule"i treating others as one would desire to be treated. Yet, amidst this

intricate mosaic of governance and ethical considerations, a pivotal question emerges. ls the

CCO Council itladveltently equating individuals in leadership roles within other fraternal

organizations with those who have received pardons for criminal offenses or been adjudged

guilty of dtsgraceful, dishonorable, and unprofessional behaviors leading to disciplinary

actions? ln conclusion, the perspective presented here contends that the amendment

extending the "cooling off" period should remain at three years. This perspective seeks to

strike a balance between errsuring the highest standards of governance while respecting the

valuable contributlons and experience of individuals engaged in fraternal chiropractic

orqanizations.

those tha choose to engage in the profession in other capacities should not require a long

cooling off period

Although I understarrd that finding consistently in the bylaws is appropriate, 3 years would be

an effective amount of time to make sure that conflict of interest is not taking place. The

interestitlg thing about our profession is that it is a small nrinority of DCs that get itrvolved, By

making it 6 years, it rnakes those highly motivated and skilled people have to sit out of serving

the profession and the public for a very long time.

I strongly clisagree with the proposal to extend the "cooling off period" to from 3 to 6 years, for

anyone who is involved with OCA/CCAICMCC/ etc. These are often individuals who are

volunteer arrd service rninded people. They are not criminals and have not beetr found to break

any rules. ln a career, 6 years is a significant amount of time, and unnecessarily long time

between roles. The current 3 years is plenty of time for a "cooling off period"

I think this is too all encompassing. Six years seems excessive for what nlay not need a

cooling off period.

nla

3 years is an adequate amount of 'cool off'tirne for a member before reengaging if they so wish

with the college, Six years is a lifetime for most of us and far too long to reengage with the

political culture.

3 years is long enough

6 years cooling off period, particularly for those involved in the educational sector is an

unreasonable amount of time. We would want those at the precipice of education to be

involved in a timely manner so as to be able to provide appropriate feedback relevant to

today's practice atmosphere and research.

149

16 1Al3Ol2O23 10:24 AM

1OlL7l2O2312;18 PM

IAlI3l2O23 5:17 PM

IOl2l2O2310:30 AM

912212023 1:12 AM

912Ol2O23 10:05 AM

911912023 9:49 PM

9lLgl2023 3:28 PM

t7

t-B

1"9

20

21_

22

23

3t3



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023 
1 S0

Qg I agree/disagree with the draft proposed amendments to By-law 7:

Election (within Council)

Answered: 28 Skipped: 6

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongty
Disagree

I

Oo/o 1oo/o 2oo/o 30o/o 4oo/o 5oo/o 6o0/o TOYo 8oo/o 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

TOTAL

RESPONSES

3.57o/o

50.00%

L4.29o/o

32.3,40/o

l"

14

28

4

LIL



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

151

Q10 Comments - Explain why relating to CCO's public interest mandate

Answeied: 16 Sl<ipped: 18

1

RESPONSES

Firstly, I am completely opposed to the fact that there is a nominatiotr cotnmittee and that

there are no longer any nominations allowed from the floor. That being said, I think that

allowing the president of council to be paft o{ the cotnmittee is a conflict of interest and the

president will have too much sway of the council to vote in hislher favour. I am opposed to

having the presidetrt parlicipate in this nornination committe.

It is very inappropriate for the president of the council to be on the nominating committee. To

fling open the door for the president to exen their will to have their favourites or buddies

brought on to committee with them reeks of cronyisrn. This is the last thirrg our college needs.

Keep the president separate from this committee with no input or oversight until they have

completed their due diligence and presented their report. As an aside, having rrominalions lrotn

the floor or from the membership might be very helpful in providing input for this committee.

Having the president vote only in the case of a tie will also allow the council to have its own

voice and not be unduly influenced by the president,

This needs to be seen as impartial in order to be seen as credible to the public. By including

the president there is too much power and influetrce with one individual which can be seen as

corrupt. This is the last thing tlre CCO needs to be seen as by the public.

President could have too much sway over council.

For the same reasons stated relative to the elections bylaw

Please see comments below

Stick with standard practices, 2/3 majority required, best for our profession and public. A

tyrranical CCO council is the worst thing for the public, and there must be a way of stopping

political agendas of board members.

I fully suppott at 2/3 majority vote as it is used by most of the regulated professions in Ontario

and is the gold standard in Governance

president may have greatest experience however, this glves the president an undue amount of

power to influence the council formation which would be very detrimental if one was to go

rogue.

A nomination committee is inconsistent with democracy and the RHPA

I believe a three year cooling off. Period is sufficient.

It is not in the public interest that the CCO president be on the nomination committee for

internal elections. ln fact I don't even agree that there should be a nomination commitiee.

Nominations should be allowed from the floor. The President hold enough power and influence

as it stands and should renrain independent of this committee. lt is not in the public interest for

one council member to hold that much power and it is not in the spirit of the RHPA.

for the reasons you appear to list

The president should be on the nominating cornmittee because they have the best view of all

aspects of cor-rncil and they will be more effective at succession planning which in the best

interest of the CCO and the public it serves. I do worry about the President being able to vote

and if they will still have the same abilities to build consensus when they will have to takes

sides on issues.

n/a

The president is a nominated position and is not elected directly to their role lly the
people/members of CCO. Therefore the president should not be a member of tlre nominating

DATE

13,1]'912023 B:45 PM

lLlLglz1z3 B:40 PM

L1"11912A23 5:45 PM

I3"11U2A23 3:41" PM

11"11912023 9:l-5 AM

11-1181202312:34 PM

11-11712023 1I:24 AM

11-l17l2O23 9:26 AM

1L1L612A23 6:26 PM

1"1"1L612O23 12:53 PM

1L1L612023 12:35 PM

LL!L612023 12"13 PM

L013012023 t0:24 AM

1"O1L712023 12:18 PM

9122120231:12 AM

9lL9l2O23 3:28 PM

3

o

9

10

TI

12

4

5

6

7

13

1.4

15

16

7t2



l

I

Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

committee nor should they have an additional vote. This should be up to the elected tnemberc
T

152

212



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

153

Q11 I agree/disagree with the draft proposed amendments to By-law 1-1:

Committee Composition

Answered: 27 Skipped: 7

Strong[y Agree

Agree

Disagree

StrongLy

Disagree

I

O% 1oo/o 20% 3Oo/o 4Oo/o 50% 600/o '7oo/o BOo/o 90olo 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

TOTAL

RESPONSES

7.41olo

48.L5o/o

22.22a/o

22.22o/o

2

ac

6

6

27

1" l1



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

154

QL2 Comments - Explain why relating to CCO's public interest mandate

Answered. 13 Skippecl: 21

l-

2

3

RESPONSES

I dotl't believe a nominating committee needs to be referenced. I will reiterate that I am

opposed to having a nominating committee at all.

I don't believe that a nominating committee needs to be specifically referenced in the bylaws.

Too much power sitting with the president is not a good thing and can be seen to be corrupt in

the public eye. Any committee should be seen as totally above board and done with integrity,

I dont see a need for a notninating committee unless by a third party

Please see comments below.

I don't believe the president weighing in on every decision is necessary.

agree with changes for clarity

There are changes to Bylaw 1l- that did not accompany the circulation. What is CCO trying to
hide?

See the cornments above.

if its that close it should be defeated.

I think a tie shor-rld be considered as defeating the motion. lt seems reasonable that a 2/3
majority is needed to pass a motion.

nla

I have no issLre with changes relating to clarity or gender neutral terminology.

DATE

11,11912023 B:45 PM

11"lLgl2j23 B:40 PM

1lltsl2023 5:45 PM

11,11912023 4:54 PM

1111812023 12.34 PM

1111712023 1-1:24 AM

t1"lL7l2O23 9:26 AM

LL1L612A23 12;53 PM

1113.612023 12:13 PM

1ol3ol2o23 10:24 AM

101212023 10:30 AM

912212023 I:I2 AM

9lL9l2O23 3:28 PM

4

tr

6

7

8

q

10

11

rz

AJ

717



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

155

Q13 I agree/disagree with the draft proposed amendments to By-law 1-2:

Appointment of Non-Council Members

Answered: 27 Skipped: 7

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly
Disagree

I

Oo/o 10o/o 2oo/o 30% 4Oo/o 50o/o 60% 1Qo/o 8Oo/o 90ok 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

TOTAL

RESPONSES

3.70o/o

62.960/o

1-4.BIo/o

L8.520/o

t

17

4

tr

27

tlr



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023 156

QLA Comments - Explain why relating to CCO's public interest mandate

Arrswered: B Skipped: 26

#

3,

I

J

4

tr

6

7

B

RESPONSES

Please refer to comments relating to bylaw #6

Please see my comments regarding bylaw 6.

Please see comments below

Consistency. 3 years sufticient. Far to blanket

For the same reasons Bylaw 6 changes seem unethical, Bylaw 12 is just as inappropriate

See comments related to changes to by-law 6

nla

I have no issue with this as it is reducing repetition.

DATE

Illtgl2023 B:45 PM

!11]'912023 B:40 PM

1LlIB|2O23 12:34 PM

1111612023 6:26 PM

11-17612023 12:53 PM

1111612023I2:I3 PM

9122120231:1"2 AM

9lI9l2O23 3:28 PM

7tL



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

157

Q15 I agree/disagree with the draft proposed amendments to By-law 13:
Fees

Answered: 27 Skipped: 7

Strong[y Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly
Disagree

O% 1Oo/o 2Oo/o 3ooh 4ook 50% 60o/o TOok 8Ao/o 9Oo/o 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly Disagtee

TOTAL

RESPONSES

7.41o/o

66.67o/o

!8,520/o

7.410/o

1B

27

5

2

1" tL



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

158

Q16 Comments - Explain why relating to CCO's public interest mandate

Answerecl: 6 Skipped: 28

1

2

RESPONSES

More clarity is needed regarding fees for SCERP, specific guidelines are needed..

The lees for the SCERP ought to be specified and not left to the judgement of the president.

This leaves an inordinate amount of opportunity for favouritism and no guideline for fair

equitable treatment of members.

Please see comments below

Bylaw 13 is fee irrcreases. Why is CCO increasirrg fees when the cost of doing business at

CCO with virtr-ral meetings way down. Where is CCO spending membership money? Fees

shoulcl be decreased. lmposing new fines show that CCO is not a safe place and seem to
constantly introduce new penalties to members.

No clear what the application fee is

Test

DAIE

1L1]'912023 B:45 PM

11.11912023 B:40 PM

11t1812A23 L2',34 PM

ILlI6l2O2312:53 PM

912012023 7:57 PM

9t1912023 12.52 PM

a

4

tr

6

LII



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

159

Q17 The following overall amendments would better protect the public
interest:

Answered. l-1 Skipped: 23

#

l_

RESPONSES

ln order to make changes to the bylaws I support a 2/3 majority vote as opposed to a simple
majority vote to change bylaws. Using this method of 2/3 majority vote according to Robeft's

Rules of Order is the standard practice and gold standard for governance. lt is in the public

interest that a government sanctioned regulatory body like the CCO follow this well established
and crafted rule. lt is a standard that is used by the majority of regulated professions in

Ontario. lt is not only imponant standard of practice for rules of governance but also protects

our profession from outside influences that may not have the pLrblic's best interests nor those
of our profession.

A change of the voting process to change a bylaw lo a2l3 majority instead of a simple
majority would be more in keeping with normal rules of function in a committee setting. (Please
see Robert's rules of order)

It appears to be over regulation when the average practitioner is involved with adjusiive
procedures some 20-40 hours per week within practice to now after multiple decades of

oversight by CCO suggest that a 5 hour hands on activity pertaining to adjustments would now

be reqr-rired to better protect the public. ls this really in the public best interest or is it to
enhance CCO's governmental image?

2/3 majority to change a bylaw should be stated

Please see comments below

Too many to list

Cooling off period remains as it stands

ln general, the profession and the public are best served when the rules are followed and

amendments are made by large majorities.

I only disagree with the amendment to include nrandatory 5 hours hatrds on manipulation
continuing education. I see this is wholly unnecessary for those who are practicing daily. There

is no need for me to be randomly adjusted when I am not in therapeutic need. Those seminar
rrormally require us to donate our bodies as practice dummtes. I wont do it.

They wouldn't and your time would be better spent looking at things that actually matter than
this flim{lam.

TeSt

DATE

tlll1lzo2s B:45 PM

I3.lI9l2O23 B:40 PM

I3"11912023 5:45 PM

LL!tgl2o23 4:54 PM

LIlLB|2O23 12:34 PM

11-11612023 1-2:53 PM

r1"11612023 12.13 PM

L01301202310.24 AM

912212023 1:l-2 AM

91201202310:05 AM

9t1912023 12.52 PM

2

J

4

E

6

7

o

9

10

LI

Ll7



Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

Q1B Further Comments

Ansi,vered: 10 Skippecl: 24

RESPONSES

I appreciate the hard work that has been done in preparing all these amendments. lt is no

small task! Please receive my comments as hopeful and helpful for the fufther advancement
of our profession and protection of the public interest. Thank you again.

I would caution CCO in the appearance of consolidation of power to the administrative
personnel lt does not show integrity in the public eye and demonstrates the ability for
corruption and unfainress. None of this benefits the public. CCO should be seen to uphold the
highest of professional and moral standards. This brings confidence to the public in CCO's

ability to govern.

November LB, 2023 Dr. Sarah Green President, College of Chiropractors of Ontario (CCO) 59

Hayden Street, Suite 800 Toronto, oN M4Y 0E7 Dear Dr. Green, Re: OCA feedback on

proposed CCO By-law Amendments The Ontario Chiropractic Association (OCA) appreciates
the opportr,rnity to provide feedback on the proposed changes to CCO By-law amendments.
With one exception, OCA supports the suite of proposed By-Law amendments and believes
they will serve to enhance ihe efficacy of CCO's Councils and committees - and advance the
public interest, more broadly. Representing overTBo/o of CCO registrants, OCA believes that
given the relatively small size of the chiropractic profession in Ontario, and the need to
encourage leaders to come forvuard, CCO should retain the current three year "cooling-off"

period for those chiropractors seeking to be elected after serving on the leadership of a
chiropractic advocacy group, or chiropractic educational organization, or after resigning front

CCO Council before completion of their term, with the exception that the "cooling off" period for

those members who have or are engaged in litigation against CCO, or for those who have had

disciplinary decisions, remains 6 years. Thank you forthe opportuniiy to provide input on the
proposed By-law arnendments. Sincerely, Caroline Brereton, RN, MBA Chief Executive Officer
CC: Ms. Jo-Ann Willson Registrar and General Coltnsel

We must not let this mind disease of language muiilation (gender neutral/nonbinary nonsense)

seep into our profession.2+2=4,let us be good students of science and investigate God's

created order and call it the way it isl Anything else is deception and will lead to more of

such... not healthy!

This portal is believed to be an inappropriate mechanism to capture all the concerns relate to

113 pages of Bylaw amendments.

of grave concern of rnine is the arrogant comment in the executive committee repoft in

regards to the circulatiorr proposed arnendments to the byJaws. I was an elected member to

the very first ever elected CCO in 1994 and I can tell you that 100 percent of by{aw changes
were circulated and have beerr circulated until the past 3 years. Something has changed at the

executive level and it smells really bad! Under the RHPA you may think you are not obligated

to circulate, however, there is son'iething called Precedent of which we have a long history in

circulating by-law changes. This is an essential aspect the spirit of Self Governance and is
part of the spirit of the RHPA. Who better than the profession at large to give input on proposed

changes? How is it that the CCO can prides itself on transperancy, collaboration and respect

without demonstrating those essential qualities to its own members. By not circulating byJaws
you violate your own ethics and this is certainly NOT in the public interest, it is NOT the right

thing to do, it does not follow norms and best practices, and simply put its wrong.

ln my opinion, the profession appears apathetic largely due to the appearance that our opinion

doesnt matter much. This form in parlicular is very poorly designed in that it very unclear what
you are asking.

Regardirrg the 6 year "cooling off" time, I think that duration is too long and 3 years is

sufficient. The duratiolr of a career is about 30 years. A 6 year cooling off time is 200lo of their
career, the|e is not much time to then pursue any role at the CCO. 3 years is more than

enough time between roles. Cunently wlren I read 6 years, I feel the intent is to completely

160

1-

DATE

11"1L9/2023 B:40 PM

L111'912023 5:45 PM

1L1L8l2023 12.34 PM

1,1,11612023 6:26 PM

I1-lLG|2A23 12:53 PM

L711612023 \2:13 PM

10130!2023 l-0:24 AM

2

3

4

5

6

B

7t2

9l2Ol2O23 3:15 PM



9

Proposed By-law Amendments - September 19, 2023

eliminate the ability for a chiropraclor to move from the OCA/CCAiCMCC to the CCO, and l'm
sure that is no{ the CCO council's intent.

Adding a 5 hour hands on requirement for adjustments is an other waste of time. We Adjust
every day in our clinics or should be anyways and courses don-t really and can't make us
proficient in this skill and most of it entails mock adjusting anyways. lf the college finds a
member deficient in this skill they can always recommend courses at that time based on
complaints made against the member. Otherwise leave it alone.

Test gf gf fg fg fg fg fg f gf gfgfgmfglmfg f gf fg g fg fg f gf gf

161

912A1202310:05 AM

10 iltsl21z3 L2:52PM

2t2



Joel Friedman ITEM 3.6 162
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Robbie Berman <t

Thursday, November 9,2023 3:47 PM

Joel Friedman

questions about bylaws

1>

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click lin ks or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe

HiJoel,

Hope all is well, it has been a long time. lf I haven't said so already, congratulations on your promotion to

Deputy Registrar. I remember your first days interning at cco. I need to bring you back to that time for a

moment. you will remember that we worked together intensely on updating CCo Bylaws and together we

recommended the changes necessary to comply with Bill 1-71. Looking back, it took us almost 2 years to make

sure we got it right and it required numerous conversations with Government representatives about what

would be considered the appropriate procedures to follow when amending Bylaws. I recall discussing these

requirements with Ms. Gwen Gignac of the ontario Ministry of Health. There was no question back then CCo

followed Robert's Rules of order which requires a2/3 majority to amend Bylaws. This premise, contained

within Robert's Rules of Order, was considered and is still considered the gold standard.

This leads me to ask you some questions:

At the January 20,zo23Council meeting there was a vote by Council to amend Bylaws but it did not

receive a2l3 majority. The facilitator, after being questioned, announced that Bylaws can be amended

by a simple majority. This also appears in the minutes. This was the first I heard that CCO no longer

requires a2/3maioritytochangeitsBylaws. lhavecompletedathoroughreviewofthepubliccouncil
packages and I cannot find where there was any public discussion about this and I could not find any

Councilvotetochangetherequirementfrom a2l3majoritytoasimplemajority. Couldyouplease

point me to and send me CCo Council minutes that show a CCo Council approved such a change' lt

has been repeatedly stated recently that this is how CCo handles Bylaws. I do question why CCo

believes a simple majority is best practices and why Bylaw 8.8 is believed to overrule Robert's

Rules. CCO has always been silent on amending Bylaws. ln conversation, a Ontario Government

representative explained that by referencing Robert's Rules, CCo need not re-write Robert's Rules into

Bylaws. CCo's reference to Robert's Rules was originally stated in Bylaw 8.18 (now 8'17). Robert's

Rulesarelistedasthedefaultwithinccocouncil'sRulesof order. Asamatteroftransparency,can

you please explain what happened, when, and why?

I have reviewed all 26 Regulatory Colleges Bylaws and it is noted the "Simple Majority Clause" (CCO's

g.g) was not found to be used by any other College to amend Bylaws. lt seems self evident that CCo is

misinterpreting the use of clause 8.8 and therefore is incorrect in applying it. Please provide me with

information why the current cco council believes it applies?

L.

2

1



163
At the January 20, 2023 meeting it was suggested that the amendments to change the cooling off
period from three to six years following a discipline matter was to become consistent with CpSO, CNO,
CPo,andCoO. ThisalsoappearsintheJanuary24,2023President'sMessage. Uponreviewthis
information seems not to be entirely accurate. Nevertheless, the January 24,2023 president's
Message stated "Extending the interval to six years was deemed to be in the public interest, as findings of
professional misconduct or incompetence are serious". I understand both the consistency and seriousness
rationale. However, proposing to make most cooling off periods six years to be internally consistent
becomes a circular argument. lnternal consistency makes cco Byliws inconsistent with most other
Regulators. No other Regulator requires a six year cooling off period after leaving professional
organizations. This change is not consistent with CPSO, CNO, CPO, COO or any other Regulator. please
explain how creating new inconsistencies when compared with other Regulators helps to serve the public
interest? This also raises questions about how serving on other chiropra-tic organizations is considered a
serious issue requiring a sixyearcooling off period? There are numerous past and a current memberof
Council that would have been ineligible to serve on Council if this rule previously existed. I think you
would agree many of those Council members brought valuable knowledge and experience to CCO and
that best serves the public interest. How are members, who developed competence by being involved
with other chiropractic organizations, a serious issue equal to being found guilty of a professional
misconduct? lt is understandable that a cooling off period is necessary, but is a six year hiatus in the
bestinterestofthepublicorCouncil? Dr.Mizel,acurrentCouncil member,couldspeaktoCouncil
about his experience and how his serving on other chiropractic organizations helped him develop skills
to better serve the public interest. I would appreciate any insight to the claim that a six year cooling
off period, other than for discipline or disqualification, serves and protects the public interest?

4. There are many new clauses being circulated that are suspect because they are rare among most other
Regulators. For example, a six year cooling off period for previous staff before running for
Council' Why would Dr. Walton or Dr. Tibor, if they decided to run for Council, have to wait six years
before running for council? How is this in the public's best interest?

There are numerous new restrictions that raise ethical questions and possibly expose CCO to more
legal challenge' Not allowing a member who has been involved in ligation with/against CCO or
with/against an individual Council member from being eligible to run for CCO Council is
questionable. This has never been part of CCO Bylaws before. After speaking to multiple legal friends,
they have suggested that taking away someone's right to defend themself or appeal to HpARB
(tribunal) or appealto courts (litigation) or eliminating a member's right to appear as an expert witness
on behalf of another CCO member might be considered unconstitutional. As written, CCO would only
allowmemberstotestifyonbehalfoftheCollegeandnotontheothersideofanargument. please
explain how restricting these members from running for Council serves the public interest? Most
Colleges only state a member cannot be involved in active litigation. Clauses like this might protect
individuals at CCO but how does it protect the public interest? These type of clauses have the
potential to expose CCO to risk and legal challenge. Financial responsibility and fiduciary duty suggests
it might be in the best interest for CCO Council to further investigate these issues through a legal lens

3

l

5

2



before exposing the organization to possible harm. A brand new clause states that being accused of a

criminal offence makes someone ineligible? ls CCO claiming that everyone is guilty until proven

innocent? Guilty of an offence is justifiable but being charged? Most Regulatory Colleges that have

implemented similar clauses have caveats that a member must be found guilty and the offence must

be related to suitability to practice. ls CCO now recommending disqualifying someone for having even

a minor offence? ls having a speeding ticket now considered serious? A thorough Council review as

well as a legal review may be necessary. A comprehensive investigation may lead to the need for re-

phrasing before finalizing amendments.

6. Having the Executive Committee serve as a Bylaw Review Committee seems contrary to the mandate

of the committee and incongruent with the RHPA. The RHPA says:

Executive Committee's exercise of Council's powers 164

12 (1) Between the meetings of the Counci[, the Executive Committee has att the powers of the Councit

with respect to any matter that, in the Committee's opinion, requires immediate attention, other than the
power to make, amend or revoke a regutation or by-taw.

Having the 7 members of the Executive Committee, who have already recommended the amendments,

present amendments to Council for final approval seems like the Executive Commitee is, for all

practical purposes, making and amending Bylaws. This seems inappropriate. Could you please explain

why a smaller Bylaw subcommittee with expertise in Bylaw review was not established? Without such

a committee there is a very real appearance of bias. Clarification and any comments on this subject is

much appreciated.

As you can imagine there are ever-expanding questions as to whether all ethical and legal issues have been

fully explored, explained to Council, and thoroughly considered by Council. These are massive Bylaw changes

and all aspects must be considered and contemplated so CCO Council does not exposes itself to unnecessary

and avoidable risks. I will be sending in my complete feedback about the Bylaw amendments currently

circulated bythe November L9,2023 deadline. lf you could kindlyprovideclarification and answerstothe

above 6 issues before the feedback deadline it would be most helpful and could limit redundant

feedback. Thank you in advance for your time.

Respectfully,

Dr. Robbie Berman

CCO Member since 1995

Council and non-Council member 2004-2013

Bylaw review 2OO7-2OOg

.J



Joel Friedman ITEM 3.7

Robbie Bermar

Monday, November 13,2023 3:23 PM

Sarah Green

Jo-Ann Willson; Joel Friedman

information and questions about Bylaws

1 Bylaw 8.8 review of 26 colleges.docx

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

165

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello Dr. Green, CCO President

As there are many CCO members who are seekers of truth and fairness, we collectively ask CCO Councilto

evaluate and investigate all information provided. There remains very serious concerns around the accuracy

surroundingtheJanuary20,2023 Council meetingandthe President's MessagefromJanuary24,2023. The

concerns stimulated extensive research into Bylaw amendments. Over the coming days you will be sent

emails with attachments to share with the rest of Council as a matter of transparency. These emails contain

extensive research regarding procedures and expectations when amending Regulatory Bylaws. The

information collected has been gathered from the Ontario Government, government reports, Ontario

Regulators, past CCO Council members, CCO members, CCO's website, past Council packages, past CCO

newsletters, and public observers. lncluded are questions and concerns from various CCO members.

The reason members have ask me to submit elaborate feedback is to protect the integrity of CCO, ensure the

current CCO Council is aware of and follows established procedure, and to avoid the current CCO Council from

unknowingly exposing the organization to further challenge or legal proceedings. CCO has spent

unprecedented amounts of money on legal challenges, hearings, and Code of Conduct proceedings

recently. With financial responsibility as a strategic pillar, it is suggested CCO Council has a financial

responsibility and fiduciary duty to immensely evaluate all feedback along with all other aspects of amending

Bylaws before approving further substantial concept changes to CCO Bylaws. Abrupt changes, with very little
public discussion related to membership and public feedback, were observed at the January 20,2A23 Council

Meeting. The suggested motivation behind amending Bylaw 6 and 12 was to become consistent with the

CPSO, CNO, CPO and COO. This no longer holds true with most of the proposed amendments currently being

ci rcu lated for feedback.

My first emailto you as President stated, "lt is refreshingto see new people at Council and watch them all

strive to best serve the profession while regulating in the public interest. I found CCO extremely fulfilling and

rewarding. lf I can help in any way to mentor new Council members or help out in any other way, I am an

email or call away." My offer still stands.

This information is submitted on behalf of multiple CCO members. lt is doubtful CCO will receive extensive

feedback about Bylaw reform from individual members but that does not equate to CCO amendments being

appropriate or acceptable to the membership. CCO has proven not to be a safe environment to submit

feedback. Members have become scared that CCO will attack those who dissent. CCO Members, including

past Council members and past CCO Presidents, have seen their feedback and information ignored. This has

created a culture of mistrust.

1



With this first email, the attachment is a comprehensive review of the other 25 Regulatory Colleges use of
"The Simple Majority Clause." lt is noted that not a single other Ontario Regulatory College has been found to
apply this clause to amend Bylaws. lt is also noted the majority of Regulatory Colleges explicitly state and
require a2/3 majority. This is consistent with Robert's Rules of Order; the gold standard. All information
provided is to enhance clarity, truth, and transparency. Thank you in advance for making the time to review
this important information.

Respectfully, 166
Dr. Robbie Berman

CCO member since 1995

CCO Council and non-Council member 2OO4-2OI3

2



167

A Review of Ontario Regulatory Colleges Requirements for Amending Bylaws

CCO President's Message from January 24,2023 suggested Bylaw clause 8.8 is applicable to changing Bylaws

8.8 Unless otherwise required by law or by-law, every question which properly comes before the Council may be

decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by council members, and, if there is an equal

number of votes on a question, the chair may cast a deciding vote.

Upon review,all26 Regulators have a'CouncilMeeting'Bylawsimilarto CCO'S Bylaw8 (specificallyclause 8.8).

By reviewing all 26 Regulatory Colleges' websites, it was noted that no Ontario Regulatory College was found to

apply their "simple Majority clause" to amend College Bylaws. The 2023 CCO Council stands alone.

Most Ontario Regulatory Colleges have a separate section within their Bylaws containing specific rules on how to

amend Bylaws. CCO does not. CCO has always defaulted to Robert's Rule of Order. lt is the gold standard.

Robert's Rules clearly state Bylaw amendments require a minimum of a2/3 majority. The "Simple Majority

clause" (CCO's 8.8), originated from an Ontario Government template which all Regulators were given as the

standard framework to develop College Bylaws. CCO Bylaws came into effect in 2001. ln 2023, the wording of

Bylaw clause 8.8 remains identical to the original wording from 2001; the Bylaw wording has not changed.

However, for some undisclosed reason, the current CCO Council is interpreting Bylaw clause 8.8 completely

different from previous CCO Councils. This new interpretation is inconsistent with all other Regulators in

Ontario. Clause 8.8, as written, applies to "ordinary business" of Council. Clause 8.8 was never intended to

apply to "special business" such as amending Bylaws. The Ontario Government explains Regulations and Bylaws

are very different from all other College business and separate rules do apply. Bylaws are the foundational rules

that govern the organization (akin to articles of incorporation). Consistency and transparency is expected across

all Ontario Regulators when dealing with similar situations (with minor exceptions). Therefore, Bylaws are to be

rarely altered unless there are changes in legislation or directed by the Ontario Government. Reviewing Ontario

Regulatory Colleges' websites demonstrate the stability and overall consistency across all Regulators. lncluded

for review: CCO's specific reference to Robert's Rules of Order, a simple explanation on how to amend Bylaws

from Robert's Rules of Order, and relevant Bylaw clauses from the other 25 Regulatory Colleges for comparison.

SUMMARY
NB. The Ontario Regulatory Colleges that have been evaluated for regulatory excellence namely, the College of

Nurses, Dentists, and Occupational Therapists all explicitlv codifv a 2/3 maioritv is required to amend Bylaws.

15 of 21 original Regulatory Colleges (1991) explicitly codify a 213 majority is required to amend their Bylaws.

le. ln 2023, College has specific clauses within their Bylaws stating a2/3 majority is required to amend a Bylaw.

I original Regulatory College explicitly codifies that a simple majority is all that is needed to amend a Bylaw.

(physiothera pists).

5 original Colleges have no specific wording pertaining to Bylaws amendments (silent); CCO is 1 of these.

The Regulatory Colleges that do not specifically mention how to amend Bylaws (silent on requirements) do

reference a parliamentary process as the default. Since 200L CCO has relied on, referenced, and defaulted to

Robert's Rules of Order. Robert's Rules of Order are referenced in CCO's Rules of Order of Council.

BLUE - Simple Majority clause (Clause 8.8)or its equivalent from other Regulatory colleges

BLACK - Specific Bylaw clauses describing requirements for amending Bylaws from other Regulatory colleges

RED - Clause related to whether a President votes or not from other Regulatory colleges



l

l

l

l

t
=
==

:

:

168
Rules of Order of the Council of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario
Approved by Council September 20, 2014 Amended: Ju ne t7 , 2020

20. ln all cases not provided for in these rules or the by-laws, the current edition of Robert's Rules of
Order shall be followed so far as they may be applicable and consistent with these rules.

Robert's Rules of Order
Robert's Rules provide guidance on how to amend constitutions, bylaws, and rules of
orderl. Bylaws can't be changed unless the members get previous notice of any proposed

change and a large majority (commonly two-thirds) is required to enact any proposed
change2. Amending bylaws essentially changes the contract you've made with your fellow
members about how your organization operates, so you need to be really technical and precise

No matter how good a job you've done creating your bylaws, sooner or later you'll need to
change something. Robert's Rules encourages creating bylaws that can't be too easily
amended, but amending them isn't so difficult that you can't consider and make changes within
a reasonable time when necessary.

c) laUymamma-entprocdure: x d RobedsRole'forAmendings- x +

€ A A ,j iri1rr1./M.dummies.com/aftr.t:/l)u31..!:..,.er:.rnoner','buiirei;'!_.reiai-lrilsinee!/f.rbra3 rcJ.'s-l ,i ]l t;

diimmieS Artictes v Books v cotlecttons w custom soluttons search ror articles and bookr Q E

sctting thc condations tor amGnding your bytaws 
clearandransible

Robert's Rules For

Dummies Design Thinking: Creativity

Techniques

Oesign Thinking: The Customer

-o
c*Ga

X

o
q

c
rli

ld

$

c

a

+

$I
*
$

ln amending a previously adopted bylaw, make sure that the rights of all members

continue to be protected. The surest way to provide this protection is to prevent

bylaws from being changed without first giving every member an opportunity to

weigh in on a change. And bylaws should never be changed as long as a minority

greater than one-third disagrees with the proposal.

Always specify in your bylaws the exact

requirements for their amendment. According to

Robert's Rules, you should, at the very least,

require a two-thirds vote aad previous notice to

make any change at all in your bylaws.

b
'lip

Design Thinking: Using an

Empathy lvlap

Explore Book

8uy OnAmazon
Design Thinking: Characterizing

SDlu.k o

so Disruption ls The New Normal
X

@ X



169

Setting the conditions for amending your bylaws (Robert's Rules for Amendins Bvlaws - dummies)

ln amending a previously adopted bylaw, make sure that the rights of all members continue to
be protected. The surest way to provide this protection is to prevent bylaws from being
changed without first giving every member an opportunity to weigh in on a change. And bylaws
should never be changed as long as a minority greater than one-third disagrees with the
proposal.

TIP: Always specify in your bylaws the exact requirements for their amendment, According to
Robert's Rules, you should, at the very least, require a two-thirds vote and previous
notice to make any change at all in your bylaws.

Amending specific articles, sections, or subsections of your bylaws. When you're amending
parts of your bylaws, you propose the amendment as a main motion and specify one of the
same processes you would for any amendment.

The processes of making the motion to amend are:

. Strike out words, sentences, or paragraphs

. lnsert (or add) words, sentences, or paragraphs

. Strike out and insert (or substitute) words, sentences, or paragraphs

Tackling a full revision of your bylaws

A revision to bylaws is an extensive rewrite that often makes fundamental changes in the
structure of the organization By considering a revision of your bylaws, you're proposing to
substitute a new set of bylaws for the existing ones. Your group is free to amend anything in

the proposed revision before it's adopted, as if the bylaws were being considered and adopted
for the first time. There is a necessary procedure.

Bylaw amendments require a two-thirds vote and recording the results of the vote

Bylaw amendments (requiring a two-thirds vote) are handled as a rising vote unless the
amendments are adopted by unanimous consent. However, because of the importance of
bylaws and the impact of their amendment, unless the vote is practically unanimous, the best
and fairest procedure is to count the vote and record the result in the minutes.



:

:

at

=
T
I-

:

l

College of Nurses of Ontario By-Laws 4 pageT 170
7.1"6 Unless otherwise required by law or by the by-laws, every motion which properly comes before the Council
shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by councillors present.

Policy development involves identifying trends or issues that may have an impact on nursing regulation.
New government legislation, direction from Council, and other external factors can play a role in helping the
College identify and shape its policies. These policies in turn shape the College's bv-laws. The College's by-laws
are the rules that govern how the College operates. Government legislation authorizes Council to make by-laws
related to the College's governance, administration and regulatory functions.

Part L: General

2. By-Laws (Pg 4)

2.01 By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended or revoked by a two-thirds majority vote of the
councillors present at a Council meeting duly called for the purpose of considering such enactment, amendment
or revocation.

2.02 Notice of a motion to enact, amend or revoke a by-law shall be given to Councilat leastten days priorto
the meeting referred to in Article 2.01

7.2IThe chair is not required to vote whether or not that vote would affect the outcome.

Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario page 36

2.I0.6 Default is simple majority Except as otherwise provided for in the Act, regulations, or by-laws, each vote
at a Council meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes cast at the meeting.

Our by-laws govern how the College operates. They outline how meetings are held, the committees we have, our
code of conduct, how elections are held, and a great deal more. The Requlated Health Professions Act
(RHPA) gives our Council the power to enact by-laws.

Here's how by-laws are made.

o A new by-law (or changes to an existing by-law) is drafted by a College committee, depending on the subject.
. The by-law is presented at a Council meeting. lf approved it is sent to all Ontario dentists, other dental health care

organizations and members of the public for review and feedback.
. Feedback from the 60-day consultation is considered by the committee and, if needed, additional changes are

made to the by-law.
. The by-law returns to Council for final approval.
. When approved, the by-law comes into effect.

2.10.5 Roll call vote for regulations A vote at a Council meeting on a motion to propose or amend a regulation,
or to submit a proposed regulation or regulation amendment to the Ministry

a. shallbe by rollcallvote; and b. the minute of such vote shall record those members of Councilin favour, those
opposed, those who abstained, and those who were not present.

-
-



Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario pRocEDURE 26. page 176 171
L Enactment, Amendment and Revocation of By-Laws

26.1,.1, Two-thirds vote needed to enact, amend, or revoke a by-law

By-laws may be enacted, amended, or revoked by a two-thirds vote of the members of Council present at a

Council meeting called for that purpose

2.10.7 Vote of chair to be counted where a member of Council is acting as chair of a Council meeting, his or her

vote is counted in any matter brought to a vote.

College of Occupational Therapists of Ontario

1L.07 Majority Vote Unless otherwise specified in these bylaws, matters considered at any meeting of the Board

shall be decided by a majority vote cast upon each matter by the Directors present. Voting by proxy is not

permitted at meetings of the Board,

8.08 Making, Amending and Revoking Bylaws

8.08.1 The bylaws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by a two thirds

majority affirmative vote of Board Directors present and voting at a meeting of the Board called for that
purpose

11.08 In cases of an equality of votes, the Board Chair shall have a deciding vote to break the tie.

The College of Audiologists and Speech-Language Pathologists of Ontario

6.1.10. Except where otherwise specified in the RHPA, Code, ASLPA, or the Reguiations or By-laws of the College,

every issue to be decided at a Board of Directors meeting shall be decided by a simple majority of votes of those

voting at the meeting

15. MAKING, AMENDING AND REVOKING BY-LAWS

15.1. Vote. The By-laws of the College or any part thereof may be enacted, amended or revoked by a resolution

of a two-thirds majority of Directors.

Chair does not make motions, or participate in discussion, or vote

College of Chiropodists/Podiatrists

8.16 Unless otherwise required by law or by the by-laws, every motion which properly comes before Council

shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by councillors present.



172

:
l

2. BY-LAWS

2.01 By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended or revoked by a vote of at least two-thirds of the
councillors present at a Council meeting duly called for the purpose of considering such enactment, amendment
or revocation

Silent on President allowed to vote

College of Dental Hygienists of Ontario

4.7 Quorum and Voting

(1) A majority of Council Members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Unless otherwise
provided for, questions arising at any meeting of the Council shall be decided by a majority of votes of those
present and voting. ln the event that a vote is tied following deliberation of the question, the question shall be

deemed to have been defeated.

ARTICLE 13: ENACTMENT, AMENDMENT AND REPEAL OF BYLAWS

L3.L Enactment, Amendment and Repeal A bylaw of the College may be made, amended and repealed by a vote
of at least two-thirds of the Council Members present and voting at any Council meeting.

13.2 Notice of Proposal Where obligated by the Act, proposed bylaws shall be circulated to every Registrant at
least 60 days before Council approves them

Silent on President voting

College of Dental Technologists of Ontario

11.08 - Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA, or these By-Laws,

every motion which properly comes before the Board shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at
the meeting by the Directors present.

25.02 - Amendments The By-Laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked

by a two thirds majority affirmative vote of the Board of Directors present and voting at a meeting of the Board

called for that purpose.

11,.09 - Chair Vote lf the Chair is a member of the Board, they may vote.

11.10 - Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated.



Goltege of Denturists of ontario 173
22.09 Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or the by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Council members present.

37. BY-LAWS AND AMENDMENT

37.01 Effective Date These by-laws shall become effective as soon as they have been approved by Council.

37.02 Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a two-thirds majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that

purpose.

22.IO Chair Votes lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may participate in the discussion of a matter

before Council but shall not vote unless there is a tie vote and the Chair's vote would break the tie, unless the

Chair wishes to vote against a motion and the Chair's vote would create a tie that would defeat the motion, or

unless there is a rollcallvote (e.g., to enact a regulation).

College of Dietitians of Ontario

7.11Voting at Meetings Unless otherwise required by law or by the by-laws, every motion which properly comes

before the Board of Directors shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by directors

present. ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated.

L7.L Making By-laws

By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended, or revoked by a vote of at least two-thirds of the directors

present at a Board of Directors meeting duly called for the purpose of considering such enactment, amendment

or revocation.

Silent on President voting

College of Homeopaths of Ontario

11.09 - Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA, or the bylaws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Council Members present.

25. BYLAWS AND AMENDMENTS

25.01- - Effective Date These bylaws shall become effective as soon as they have been approved by the Council.

25.02 - Amendments The bylaws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a simple majority of the Council Members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11.10 - Chair Vote lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may vote.

1-1.LL - Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated



l

l

l

-
-

-
=

tI

college of Kinesiologists of ontario 17 4

1L.09 Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA, or the by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the
meeting by the Council members present.

24.O2 Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a simple majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11.10 Chair Vote lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may vote.

11.11 Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated

College of Massage Therapists of Ontario By-Law No. 1

11.09 - Simple Majority

Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or the by-laws, every motion which properly

comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by the Council

members present.

The Health Professions Procedural Code gives CMTO's Council authority to make by-laws relating to
the College's administration and operations:

Amendment or Revocation of By-Laws

3. (A) By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended or repealed by a vote in support from a two thirds
majority of the members of the Council present at a meeting held to considerthe by-law, where a quorum is

present.

(B) Except for amendments of a non-substantive nature, which may be incorporated by Council following notice

and at any time prior to a vote being held, written notice of all motions in respect of the making, amending or
revoking of a by-law shall be circulated:

i. At least 14 days prior to the consideration of such motion by Council; and

ii. Where required under section 9a(2) of the Code, to all registrants at least 60 days prior to the consideration
of such motion.

(C) Every by-law, including every amendment and revocation of a by-law, shall be dated and numbered
according to the date on which it was passed, certified by the President or Vice President, in addition to the
Registrar, and maintained in electronic form in its chronological order.

11 (C)The Chair of the meeting shall not vote on any matter unless there is a tie vote, and then the Chair of the
meeting shall cast the deciding vote

I



coLLEGE oF MEDICAL LABoRAToRY TEcHNoLoGlsrs oF oNrARlo (cMLro) 
1T s

4.10.11, VOTING'

The decisions of the Board shall be made by motion and in accordance with the relevant Board Policy.

r EverV question to be determined shall be determined by a majority of the votes cast at the meeting, excluding

the Chair's, and if there is an equality of votes on a question, the Chair shall cast the deciding vote.

15.1 MAKING, AMENDING, AND REVOKING THE BY-LAW

The By-Law of the College or any part thereof may be enacted, amended or revoked pursuant to S. 94 (1) and (2)

of the Code by a vote of at least two-thirds l2l3l of the Board Members present at a Board meeting duly called

for that purpose.

Medical Radiation and lmaging Technologists

8.1. Questions arising at any Council meeting shall be decided by a rnajority of votes of Councillors present at the

meeting. lf there is an equality of votes, the chairof the meeting shallnot have a second, orcastingvote, and

the motion shall be lost.

24. Procedure - The rules of procedure in Bourinot's Rules of Order shall be followed for meetings of Council.

(2/3 majority to amend Bylaws)

College of Midwives of Ontario

7.07 -Simple Majority Unless otherwise required bythe Code orthe by-laws, Council and Committee members

shall, when making decisions, make every effort to reach a consensus, defined as a state of mutual agreement

among members of a group where all legitimate concerns of individuals have been addressed to the satisfaction

of the group but, where a decision cannot be reached by consensus, a conventional voting process shall be used

and the decision shall be made by a simple majority of the votes cast by the members present.

18.03 - Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked

by a two-thirds majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of the Council called for that

purpose.

b. The Chair shall be entitled to vote on matters before Council;

College of Naturopaths of Ontario

11.09 Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or these by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Council members present.



l

l

I
:

I

l
=1
-l

l

l

lI
==ItE
Il
=1

i

25. BY.LAWS AND AMENDMENTS 17 6
25.01 Effective Date These by-laws shall become effective as soon as they have been approved by Council.

25.02 Amendments These by-laws of the College or any article thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a simple majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11.10 Chair Votes lf the Chair is a Council member, they may vote.

11.11 Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated

College of Opticians of Ontario

8.18 Votes to Govern Each Director is authorized to exercise one vote on every motion at a Board meeting.

Subject to the RHPA and the by-laws, any question arising at any Board meeting shallbe decided by a majority of
votes. ln the case of an equality of votes at any Board meeting, the chair of the meeting shall not have a second
or casting vote and the matter shall be deemed not to have been carried.

ARTICLE 24: BY-LAWS

24.1 Making, Amending and Revoking By-laws The Board shall have the power to make, amend or revoke any or
all of the by-laws or Articles therein, by resolution of a two-thirds majority of those Directors present at a duly-
constituted meeting of the Board or, without such meeting, by written resolution which has been confirmed by
the hand-written signature of all Directors

College of Optometrists of Ontario

14.01 (6) Every motion considered by a Committee shall be decided by a majority of the votes cast at the
meeting. lf the votes cast result in a tie, the chair shall not have a second vote and the motion will be defeated

PART 2 - AMENDMENT OR REVOCATION OF BY-LAWS 2.01

Special Resolution is Required
(1) A Special Resolution is required to amend or revoke these By-laws, or make new By-laws.
(2) Written notice of all motions applying to the making, amending or revoking of a By-law shall be circulated:
(a) to Council Members at least 14 days prior to the tabling of such motion; and

(b)when required under Section 9 (2)of the Code, to all Members at least 60 days priorto the tabling of such

motion.
(3) Every By-law, including every amendment and revocation of a By-law, shallbe dated and numbered
according to the date on which it was passed, certified by the President or Vice-President, in addition to the
Registrar, sealed and maintained in a book in its chronological order.

(2) lf the votes cast result in a tie, the chair shall not have a second vote and the motion will be defeated



oNrARlo CoLLEGE oF PHARMAclsrs and PHARMACV TEcHNlclANs 177

6.1.8 Unless specifically provided for otherwise in the By-Law, any question arising at any meeting of the Board

shall be determined by a majority of votes of Directors present at the meeting and eligible to vote. ln the event

of a tie vote, the Chair shall break the tie with an additional vote.

ARTICLE 24 MAKING, AMENDING AND REVOKING BY-LAWS

24.1 Requirements.

24.1,.1By-Laws may be made, repealed or amended by at least two-thirds of all Directors present at a meeting

of the Board and eligible to vote.

The College of Physicians and Surgeons of Ontario

authority is defined by government legislation and College by-laws

29 (8) Unless otherwise required by law or by the by-laws, every motion which properly comes before the

councilshall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by the councillors in attendance

(including a councillor who is the presiding officer) and, if there is an equality of votes on a motion, the motion

shall be deemed to have been defeated.

54. (1) A by-law may be made, amended and revoked by an ordinary motion except that subclause 2g(aXbXiv)

does not permit the making, amending or revoking of a by-law.

(2) Every by-law and every amendment and revocation of a by-law shall be numbered according to the order in

which it was passed, certified by the presiding and recording officers of the meeting at which it was passed and

maintained in a book in its numerical order

18. Except where inconsistent with the Regulated Health Professions Act, 1991, the Medicine Act, L991, the

regulations or the by-laws of the College, any questions of procedure at or for any meetings of Council shall be

determined by the chair of such meeting in accordance with the rules of order as contained in the current

version of Wainberg's Society Meetings lncluding Rules of Order.

Silent on President voting

College of Physiotherapists of Ontario

4.8. Kerr and King's Procedures for Meetings and Organizations, Third Edition, are the rules of order for

meetings of Council and form part of these By-laws.

BY-LAWS 2.8. (1) The making, amending or revoking of a by-law shall be determined by a majority vote of the

Councillors present and voting. Advance notice is required for all motions or resolutions applying to the making,

amending or revoking of a by-law.

(2) Proposed by-laws made under the authority of clauses (1.2), (1.3), (s), (t), (v), (w) or (y) of subsection 94 (1) of

the Code shall be circulated to every Member at least 60 days before they are approved by Council.

Silent on President voting



I
1

r1

tr

College of Psychologists of Ontario 178

3.14 Meetings of Councilshall be conducted in accordance with Keesey's "Modern Parliamentary Procedures

a. A majority vote shall be defined as a majority of Council members who are eligible to vote and in attendance;

By-law L7: Procedure for Making, Amending or Revoking By-laws

17 .1, A By-law may be made, amended or revoked by a resolution of Council subject to subsectio n 9aQ) of the
Code.

17.4 A copy of the By-laws made by the Council shall be given to the Minister and to each member and shall be

made available to the public in accordance with the provisions of the Regulated Health Professions Act, 1991..

Silent on President voting

College of Registered Psychotherapists of Ontario

11.09 - Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or the by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Council members present.

24.02 - Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked

by a simple majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11.10 - Chair Votes lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may vote1.

1) Ordinarily, a Chair does not vote unless it would affect the result.

n J.L - Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated

College of Respiratory Therapists of Ontario

4.11 Matters shall be decided by vote as follows

a) Making amending and revoking the By-Law and regulations shall require a two-thirds (2/3) majority
vote of those Council Members in attendance.

b) Unless otherwise required by law or by this By-Law, every motion which properly comes before the
Council may be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by those Council Members
in attendance.

c) lf there is a tie vote on a motion, the motion shall be defeated

5.01 - By-Laws of the CRTO may be made, amended, or revoked by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the sitting Council

Members in attendance at a duly constituted meeting or by the signatures of all actual Council Members.



179
College of Traditional Chinese Medicine and Acupuncturists of Ontario

(i) Except where otherwise provided in the Act, regulations or By-Laws, every motion coming before

any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes cast at the meeting, including the chair,

provided that the chair is a member of the Council. ln the case of equality of votes, the chair shall

not have a second vote and the motion shall be considered to be defeated.

23. BY-LAWS AND AMENDMENTS

23.01 Make, Amend, Revoke By-Law The College's By-Laws may be made, amended or revoked in the same

manner as other resolutions or motions that appear before Council. A motion to amend or revoke these By-

Laws requires a vote of the majority of those in attendance and voting at the meeting.



Joel Friedman ITEM 3.8
190 .

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Robbie Berman <drrjberman@hotmail.com>

Thursday, November 16,2023 1:22 PM

Joel Friedman

feedback about Bylaw amendments circulated September 19,2023
1 Specific concerns to bylaw amendments.docx; 1 Ontario Regulatory colleges voting

procedures.docx; 1 Ontario Regulatory colleges cooling off chart.docx

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

HiJoel,

As you are aware, I am very passionate and knowledgeable about CCO Bylaws. There are 1L3 pages of
proposed Bylaw amendments. I believe that the CCO feedback portal cannot capture such a large quantity of
information or do justice to comments made about the most massive Bylaw changes ever proposed by

CCO. Please accept this email and attachments as partial feedback related to Bylaw changes and to alert

Council members to numerous concerns and inconsistencies with other Regulators in Ontario. Please include

these attachments in the public feedback section of CCO's Public package for clarity and transparency. I have

spent many hours with others accumulating this information. We hope Council will give proper evaluation and

respect to the efforts of CCO members who had the bravery and felt it important to provided comprehensive

feedback.

Currently proposed CCO Bylaw changes will make CCO very different than all other Regulators in Ontario

t. Concerns with proposed Bylaw changes

2. Chart of how the 26 Regulatory Colleges apply "the simple majority clause"

3. Chart of "cooling off" requirements from 25 Colleges

Please let me know this feedback has been received with a confirmation email

Thank you,

Respectfully,

Dr. Robbie Berman

CCO member since 1995

CCO Council and non-Council member 2004-20L3



Concerns about Bylaw amendments 181
There are many more concerns than could be listed here about the most substantive Bylaw reforms ever

postposed by CCO. With the limitations of the feedback portal, it seems to be an unreasonable request to
provide complete feedback and information about the concerns of L13 pages of Bylaw reform. The feedback

portal is not the right mechanism. This is the reason I submitted this type of response. Please see the attached

charts to see what other Regulators consider appropriate. Over the last year there seems to be an undisclosed

emphasis and rush to get new CCO Bylaws in place. Many Bylaws are inconsistent with other Regulators.

Most changes have no public interest rationale. As member, I can only ask why? ls CCO hiding something?

Concern:Why has CCO Council been removed from approving finances? lnconsistent with other colleges and RHPA

4.L0 Goods or services may be purchased or leased forthe benefit of CCO if the purchase or lease is approved by:

(a) the registrar or the deputy registrar, if the resulting obligation does not exceed 525,000;

(b)the registrarorthe deputy registrar and one of the president, vice-president, ortreasurer if the resulting obligation is

between S25,000 and 550,000; and

(c) the registrar or the deputy registrar and two of the president, vice-president, or treasurer if the resulting obligation

exceeds 5

Concern: 6 year cooling off periods are not consistent with most other Regulatory colleges. How does this serve the

public interest? No other College has 6 year cooling off periods across the board as proposed by CCO.

6.9 (g) the member has not resigned from a position on Council, before completing the their term, within the last six

years and four months;
Concern: This does not make sense for resignations due to pregnancy, health reasons, personal crisis, etc.

Suggestion: Need to re-phrase to allow reasonable exceptions and/or previous approval from Council

i) the member is not, and has not been in preceding t$+ee six years, an employee, officer or director of any professional

chiropractic association such that a real or apparent conflict of interest may arise, including but not limited to being an

employee, officer or director of the ocA, ccA, ccPA, AFc, ccEB, cscE, the ccEc of the Fcc, ccRF or GNAC;

Concern: eliminates competent leaders. This would create a public interest concern and a CCO bias

(m) the member has not been a member of the staff of CCO at any time within the preceding th+ee six years; (why?)

(q) (new) the member is not, and has not been within the preceding six years, an adverse party in litigation against CCO,

the Council of CCO, a committee of CCO, or any of CCO's directors, officers, employees or agents, on a matter related to

CCO business;

Concern: members will no longer have the right to defend themselves? Discipline, tribunals, HPARB, or code of conduct?

ls it not a person's right to bring litigation against a party that has caused them harm? Other colleges state only in a

conflictifengagedinactivelitigation.Nosixyearhiatusfromanyothercollege. lsthisclauselawful?Unconstitutional?

(o)(new) becomes an adverse party in litigation against CCO, the Councilof CCO, a committee of CCO, orany of CCO's

directors, officers, employees or agents, on a matter related to CCO business;

Concern: this eliminates anyone from testifying against CCO. Both sides must be treated equally. lt seems unethical to

eliminate anyone who defends a member against CCO. This would not allow someone to act as an expert witness in

courtordisciplinehearings. ThisseemsprotectiveofCCObutnotethicalorinthebestinterestofthepublic. Howdoes

this clause address a public interest issue? lt may be deemed unconstitutional. This only allows a member to be a

witness for the CCO but threatens those whose who testify against CCO? Has CCO thought this through?



(p) (new) is charged with a criminal offence contrary to the Criminal Code of Canada; and
Concern: members are innocent until proven guilty; eliminates members before they are found guilty? Prejudicial?

7.11The president of the Councilshall be the chair of the Executive Committee and shall participate in the Nominating
Committee. Concern: internal nomination committee creates personal bias and unsubstantiated endorsements. This

has not been explained to or approved by the membership. lt seems to shift the power away from Council. This seems

contrary to the RHPA and eliminates the democratic election process. How is a non-democratic process in the Public
interest? Why does the current Council believe these processes need to be changed?

182
7.21,The president, while chairing a Council meeting or Executive Committee Meeting, votes only to break a tie
after all others have voted.
Concern: President voting creates a voting bias and gives too much power to the individual who sets the agenda.

9.7 At the discretion of Council, this by-law 9 applies to Non-Chiropractic Committee Members with necessary
modifications.
Concern: The Non-chiropractic appointment Bylaw 18 was created during COVID crisis in non-transparent fashion.
Therewasnoconsultationwithmembership. Therehasbeennopublicpostingofthistypeof appointmentonCCO's
website or President Messages. How is CCO transparently posting this opportunity? Do other Colleges do this?

1"3.8 Council may, without, amending these by-laws, adjust the amount of any fees or penalties in By-law 13 to reflect
annual changes to the Cost of Living

Concern: Bylaw 13 must be circulated to change fees. This is legislated in RHPA. Would this not be in breach of RHPA?

13.14 Where a member is required to complete a Specified Continuing Education or Remediation Program (SCERP), the
member shall pay the prescribed fee or the fee set by the registrar.
Concern: ls a cost penalty imposed by an ICRC committee permitted by the RHPA? lf not, this clause violates RHPA

Ii-
=

I
rt1



Summarv of Votine Procedures used bv Ontario Regulatorv Colleges
183

CCO's Bvlaw Clause 8.8: Unless otherwise required by law or by-law, every question which properly comes before the

Council may be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by council members, and, if there is an equal

number of votes on a question, the chair may cast a deciding vote.

Rules used or referenced

Or Other unique clauses

Robert's Rules of Order

President votes

Only to break
the tie

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Gouncil/committee
2/3 of Council

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

Silent

(no specific clause
or specific
requirements listed)

Robert's Rules of
order specifically
referenced in CCO's
Rules of Council.

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
(GCO Bvlaw 8.8)
Yes (see above)

2023 Council
applied this clause
to Bylaw changes in

January 2023

CCO did not apply
this clause to Bylaw
amendments in
2009 or 201 5-16

Year
created

1 991

Ontario
Regulatory

college
College of
Chiropractors of
Ontario

Rules used or referenced

Or Other unique clauses

Bourinot's Rules of Order

Sturgis - The Standard Code of
Parliamentary Proced u re

Robert's Rules of Order

President votes

Never

silent
ln the event of a
tie vote, the motion
is defeated

silent

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Gouncil/committee

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
same/similar to
CCO Bvlaw 8.8
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

Year
created

1 991

1 991

'1991

Ontario
Regulatory

college

College of
Audiologists and
Speech-Language
Pathologists of
Ontario
College of
Chiropodists and
Podiatrists of Ontario

College of Dental
Hygienists of Ontario



-.:1.1.-lli ..". Ll .!l.L il iilImlmlllltLrl -L-,_

Robert's Rules of Order

The Standard Code of Parliamentary
Procedure

Robert's Rules of Order

determined by the chair or presiding officer
of such meeting in accordance with the
rules of order that the Board of Directors
adopts from time to time.
Robert's Rules of Order

Robert's Rules of Order

None referenced

The Board of Directors shall set or adopt
such rules of order that it deems
appropriate to govern and guide the
conduct of its meetings
Bourinot's Rules of Order

None referenced

Robert's Rules of Order

American lnstitute of Parliamentarians'
Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure

President votes

Yes

Yes

Only to break
the tie

silent

Yes

Yes

Only to break
the tie

Only to break
the tie

No second vote
motion defeated

Yes

Yes

No

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Council/committee

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

majority of Council

2/3 of Council

silent

213 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

silent

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

213 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Simple majority
explicitly stated

Simple majority
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Bourinot's Rules of
Order
(213 m$orlty required)

213 of Council
explicitly stated

Simple majority
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
same/similar to
CCO Bvlaw 8.8
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Year
created

1 991

1 991

1 991

'1991

2007

2007

1 991

1 991

1 991
updated
2017

1 991

2007

1 991

Ontario
Regulatory

college

College of Dental
Technologists of
Ontario
RoyalCollege of
Dental Surgeons of
Ontario
College of Denturists
of Ontario

College of Dietitians
of Ontario

College of
Homeopaths of
Ontario
College of
Kinesiologists of
Ontario
College of Massage
Therapists of Ontario

College of Medical
Laboratory
Technologists of
Ontario

College of Medical
Radiation and
lmaging
Technoloqists
College of Midwives
of Ontario

College of
Naturopaths of
Ontario
College of Nurses of
Ontario

Parliamentary Rules used
or referenced

Other unique clauses 184



Rules used or referenced

Or Other unique clauses 185
such rules of order as it deems appropriate
to govern the conduct of each Board

meeting
Robert's Rules of Order

Robert's Rules of Order

None referenced
The Board may, from time to time, set or
adopt Rules of Order to guide the conduct
of Board meetings.
Wainberg's Society Meetings Rules of Order

Kerr and King's Procedures

Keesey's Modern Parliamentary Procedures

Robert's Rules of Order

Robert's Rules of Order

The Nomination Committee will consist of at
least two (2) members of Council who are not
running for election to the Executive

Committee, at least one of whom shall be a
public member and at least one of whom shall

be a professional member

Robert's Rules of Order

President votes

Only to break
the tie

No second vote
motion defeated

No second vote
motion defeated

Yes
with additional
vote to break
the tie

silent

silent

silent

Yes

No

No second vote
motion defeated

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Council/committee

2/3 of Council

silent

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

silent

Simple majority

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Special resolution
-defaults to Roberts
Rules in Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Wainberg's Society

Meetings Rules of
Order
Simple majority
explicitly stated

Keesey's Modern
Parliamentary
Procedures
Simple majority
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Simple majority
explicitly stated

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
same/similar to
GGO bvlaw 8.8
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Year
created

1 991

1 991

1 991

199'1

1 991

1 991

1 991

2007

1 991

2006

Ontario
Regulatory

college

College of
Occupational
Therapists of Ontario

College of opticians
of Ontario

College of
Optometrists of
Ontario

Ontario College of
Pharmacists

College of Physicians
and Surgeons of
Ontario

College of
Physiotherapists of
Ontario
College of
Psychologists of
Ontario
College of Registered
Psychotherapists of
Ontario
College of
Respiratory
Therapists of Ontario

College of Traditional
Chinese Medicine
and Acupuncturists of
Ontario



COOLING OFF PERIODS FROM ALL 26 REGULATORY COLLEGES in ONTARIO

After litigation or
other legal
proceedings
against the
College or
members of
Council

silent

1 year
after being part of a
legal proceeding
against the college

silent

never

current
proceedings

current
proceedings

silent

silent

After resigning
from Council

silent

3 years except if
resigned with
permission

silent

silent

silent

silent

silent

silent

3 years

- other than for
health or personal
reasons acceptable
to Council

After being
disqualified
from Council

3 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

silent

6 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

after license
revoked or
suspended

6 years
except for
nonpayment
of dues

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues

silent

6 years
- except for
nonpayment
of dues

silent

6 years

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
6 years

silent

After guilty of
criminal offence

silent

silent

3 years

silent

never
-has an Eligibility
Committee to evaluate

silent

never

silent

a criminal finding
relevant to the
registrant's ability to
practise the
profession

after
discipline
decision

6 years

3 years

6 years

3 years

never

3 years

never

3 years

3 years

after 9
consecutive
years on
Council

12 months

5 years

1 year

12 months

5 years

3 years

3 years

silent

3 years

after being
an employee
of the
College

1 year

silent

1 year

1 year

6 years

Not current
employee

2 years

2 years

3 years

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
institution
1 year

1 year

I year

1 year

3 years

1 year

3 years

Agrees to resign
before taking
office

3 years

'Cooling Off'
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory

colleges

College of
Audiologists
and Speech-
Language
Pathologists of
Ontario
Gollege of
Chiropodists
and Podiatrists
of Ontario
College of
Dental
Hygienists of
Ontario
College of
Dental
Technologists
of Ontario
RoyalCollege
of Dental
Surgeons of
Ontario
College of
Denturists of
Ontario
College of
Dietitians of
Ontario

College of
Homeopaths of
Ontario
College of
Kinesiologists
of Ontario

silent

186



_-*t I ll lllnnLlllrr

After litigation or
other legal
proceedings
against the
College or
members of
Council

6 years

silent

silent

current

silent

current

6 years

silent

current

After resigning
from Gouncil

silent

silent

silent

silent

silent

16 months

3 years

silent

silent

silent

After being
disqualified
from Council

6 years

5 years

silent

3 years

3 years

3 years

6 years

6 years

6 years for
Council
3 year to
committees
6 years

after license
revoked or
suspended

6 years
-if related to
discipline
order

6 years
- except for
nonpayment
of dues

6 years

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
silent

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
silent

6 years

After guilty of
criminal offence

guilty of an offence
that is relevant to
their suitability to
serve
silent

silent

silent

Prior conviction or
current charges

silent

Finding of guilt
relevant to suitability to
practice

silent

silent

current

after
discipline
decision

6 years

silent

3 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

6 years

6 years

Current
proceeding

No current
finding

after 9
consecutive
years on
Gouncil

silent

12 months

silent

silent

silent

3 years

3 years

3 years

silent

3 years

after being
an employee
of the
College

2 years

12 months

silent

Cant be
current
employee

2years

Resign
before
nomination
deadline
6 years

3 years

silent

silent

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
institution
2 years

12 months

12 months

12 months

2 years

Resign before
nomination
deadline

3 years

3 years

Resign if elected

3 years

'Cooling Off'
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory
colleges

College of
Massage
Therapists of
Ontario

College of
Medical
Laboratory
Technologists
of Ontario
College of
Medical
Radiation and
lmaging
Technoloqists
College of
Midwives of
Ontario

College of
Naturopaths of
Ontario

College of
Nurses of
Ontario

College of
Occupational
Therapists of
Ontario
College of
opticians of
Ontario

College of
Optometrists of
Ontario

Ontario
College of
Pharmacists

silent

187



After litigation or
other legal
proceedings
against the
College or
members of
Council

current

silent

6 years
after being part of a
legal proceeding
against the college

silent

current

After resigning
from Council

5 years
related to a

proposed
disqualification
silent

silent

silent

silent

3 years

After being
disqualified
from Council

5 years

3 years

silent

3 years

6 years

3 years

after license
revoked or
suspended

6 years

silent

6 years

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues

silent

6 years

After guilty of
criminal offence

silent

relevant to the
Registrant's suitability
to serve as a

Councillor
2/3 of Council vote to
disqualify

opinion of Council, is

of such a nature that
warrants
disq ua lification
offence relevant to
their suitability to be
licensed

in the opinion of
Council, is of such a

nature that warrants
disq ua Iification

after
discipline
decision

silent

6 years

2 years

3 years

6 years

6 years

after 9
consecutive
years on
Gouncil

never

1 year

silent

silent

silent

3 years

after being
an employee
of the
College

5 years

12 months

1 year

12 months

12 months

1 year

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
institution
1 year

12 months

1 year

1 year

current

2 years

'Cooling Off'
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory
colleges

College of
Physicians and
Surgeons of
Ontario
College of
Physiotherapist
s of Ontario

College of
Psychologists
of Ontario
College of
Registered
Psychotherapis
ts of Ontario

College of
Respiratory
Therapists of
Ontario
College of
Traditional
Chinese
Medicine and
Acupuncturists
of Ontario

silent

188



ll .,..1,I|J'ir

COOLING OFF PERIODS BEING RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL BY CCO EXECUTIVE (compared to other Colleges)

After litigation or
other legal
proceedings
against the College
or membens of
Council

After resigning
from Council

Currently
3 years
and 4 mths

Proposing to
make 6 years
and 4 months

NO other college
requires 6 years

ONLY 4 Colleges
requires 3 years

19 Colleges are
silent

1 College requires
5 years

1 College requires
16 months

After being
disqualified
from Council

6 years

Just amended
from 3 years
in Jan 2023

13 Colleges
requires
3 years

9 Colleges
requires 5-6
years

3 Colleges are
silent

after license
revoked or
suspended

6 years

Just amended
from 3 years
in Jan 2023

18 Colleges
requires 6
years

most say
"except for
nonpayment of
dues"

7 Colleges are
silent

After guilty of
criminal offence

Currently none

Proposlng to make a
6 years

NO other college
requires 6 years

12 Colleges are silent

8 Colleges evaluate
suitability to practice
and whether it
warrants
disqualification

2 Colleges are never

3 Colleges unclear
and unique

after
discipline
decision

6 years

Just
amended
from 3 years
in Jan 2O23

10 Colleges
requires 6 or
more years

13 Colleges
requlre 3
years or less

2 Colleges
are silent

after 9
consecutive
yeans on
Council

3 years

No change

Most
Colleges
require 0-3
years

2 colleges
require
5 years

9 Colleges
are silent

'l college is
never

after being
an employee
of the
Gollege

Currently
3 years

Proposing to
make 6 years

ONLY 3
Colleges
requires 5-6
years

All other
Colleges
require 0-3
years

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
institution
Currently 3 years

Proposing to
make 6 years

NO other college
requires 6 years

All other Colleges
require 0-3 years

'Gooling Off
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory
colleges

College of
Chiropractors

of Ontario

Proposed
Cooling Off

requirements

Currently none

189
Proposing to make a

years

ONLY 3 Colleges
requires 6 years

7 Colleges only if
involved in current
proceedings

1 College requires
1 year

'14 Colleges are silent

Summary

A "6 years Cooling Off period" was not found to be consistent with most Regulatory colleges except in matters related to
Discipline decisions, a revoked license, or a disqualification from Council after a proper investigation and vote by Council.

Most colleges have between L to 3 years "cooling off period" from associations, educational institutions, and staff positions.

A 6 year Cooling Off period following litigation/defending oneself against the College may be considered unconstitutional.



Joel Friedman ITEM 3.9
190

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Robbie Berman

Friday, November 17,2023 1:30 PM

.+l

!.1:i :'-' ' ':rr^^-

(Private and Confidential) Questions and Concerns for CCO Council members to review

Concerns and observations.pdf; Bylaw 8.8 review of 26 colleges.pdf

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello Dr. Green, CCO President and elected Council members,

Many CCO members are seekers of truth, transparency, and fairness. As such, we collectively ask CCO Council

members to evaluate and investigate all information provided. As a matter of transparency, we ask that this

email and attachments be forwarded to the public members of Council. Not all public members have emails

publicly available. This email contains extensive research into concepts currently being evaluated by CCO

Council. The information collected has been gathered from the Ontario Government, government reports,

Ontario Regulators, past CCO Council members, CCO members, CCO's website, past Council packages, past

CCO newsletters, and public observers. lncluded are various questions and concerns from CCO members.

This information is beingsent in good faith and intended to assistthe 2023 Council in decision making.

This information is being sent directlyto all elected members of Council in orderto ensure each elected

Council member receives the same information at the same time.

As a past Council member, indemnified by Bylaw 1"0, multiple CCO members have entrusted me to show

honesty and integrity and be brave enough to submit elaborate correspondence. This collaboratively
collected information is submitted on behalf of many CCO members to help protect the integrity of CCO,

ensure the current CCO Council is aware of and follows established procedure, and to avoid the current CCO

Council from unknowingly exposing the organization to further challenge or legal proceedings. CCO has spent

unprecedented amounts of money on legal challenges, hearings, and Code of Conduct proceedings

recently. We believe spending members' dues, on avoidable legal proceedings, is not in the best interest of
CCO, CCO members, or the public. With fiscal responsibility listed as a strategic objective, it is suggested CCO

Council has a financial responsibility and fiduciary duty to immensely evaluate all concerns and feedback,

along with all other aspects of amending Bylaws, before moving forward with substantial concept changes to
CCO Bylaws. We trust that by having complete information in front of Council members, Council will have the
integrity to thoroughly read, evaluate, verify, and identify what is fact. CCO is expected to follow transparent
processes and proper procedures. CCO's conduct and adherence to procedure are on public display. lt is not
the intention of this submission to anger anyone or for anyone to take comments personally. The purpose of
this submission is to assure CCO remains viable and is allowed to continue to regulate the Chiropractic
profession in the public interest. CCO Members have expressed true concerns about the sustainability of self-

regulation. As a past Council member, I can truly appreciate the effort, commitment, and humility needed to
serve on CCO Council. Thank you to all for your dedication.

1



==E
II
t
I

=

The first email attachment is an observational report about very real concerns, expressed by various members
and outside observers, in regards to the June2L,2023 and September 8,2023 Council meetings. There are

additional concerns about the upcoming Novemb er 23,2023 meeting. This report is submitted to enhance
clarity, truth, and transparency; it is not intended to discredit individuals or Council. 

rcl
(from November t3,2023 email)
There remains very serious concerns around the accuracy surrounding the January 20,2023 Council meeting

and the President's Message from January 24,2023. The concerns stimulated extensive research into Bylaw

amendments.

It is doubtful CCO will receive extensive feedback about Bylaw reform from individual members but that does

not equate to CCO amendments being appropriate or acceptable to the membership. CCO has proven not to
be a safe environment to submit feedback. Members have become scared that CCO will attack those who
dissent. CCO Members, including past Council members and past CCO Presidents, have seen their feedback

and information ignored. This has created a culture of mistrust.

The (second email) attachment is a comprehensive review of the other 25 Regulatory Colleges use of "The

Simple Majority Clause." lt is noted that not a single other Ontario Regulatory College has been found to apply
this clause to amend Bylaws. lt is also noted the majority of Regulatory Colleges explicitly state and require a

2/3 majority, This is consistent with Robert's Rules of Order; the gold standard.

For clarity and simplicity, charts have been developed by a group of CCO members that accurately show how
each of the other 25 Regulatory Colleges approach voting on Bylaw amendments, President voting, and

cooling off periods. Those charts have been submitted separately as feedback related directly to the Bylaw

amendments being circulated.

Council members are welcomed and expected to verify the authenticity of this information. Thank you in
advance for taking the time to review this important information.

Respectfully,

Dr. Robbie Berman

CCO member since 1995

CCO Council and non-Council member 2OO4-20I3

=

2



November 17,2023

Attention: Dr. Sarah Green, CCO President, and CCO Council members

Cc: Ms. Willson, Registrar, and Mr. Friedman, Deputy Registrar

This letter is to reporl very real concerns to the 2023 CCO Council. Concerns relate to CCO Council meetings,

transparency, and availability of and access to public information. Major concerns revolve around the

appropriateness of the massive fundamental Bylaw changes recommended by the 2023 Executive Committee.

Comments and concerns submitted here are to assist, add historical prospective, and to provide and ask for clarity.

This information is submitted in good faith. Comments are not intended to discredit individuals or Council.

Questions and comments are not an individual's view, rather a collection of comments from CCO members and

outside observers who have expressed concerns regardingthe observable behaviour ofthe2023 CCO Council.

Question: Does the current CCO Executive and the 2023 CCO Council understand that recommending any

changes to a CCO document requires CCO Council to publicly disclose and discuss all relevant information under

consideration? Does the current CCO Executive and the 2023 CCO Council understand the necessity to provide

reasonable explanations why each proposed change would better serve and protect the public interest?

Multiple observers at the September 8,2023 Council meeting found the meeting extremely concerning.

Concerns revolved around statements made that seemed to be or perpetuate misconceptions, misintetpretations,

or misunderstandings about established and recommended governing policies. Additionally, there were concerns

around transparency, information bias, appearance of personal bias, conflicts of interests, and limited information

being made available to the public. These concerns are genuine and there is a reasonable expectation that CCO

Council will undertake a transparent, comprehensive, and appropriate investigation into each of the concems.

Is Council aware: prior to the pandemicin2020, CCO had no nomination committee for intemal elections, the

Ontario Government emphasized transparency over confidentiality, and both Regulation and Bylaw amendments

required a2l3 malority vote. This is verifiable information.

Misconceptions/Misinterpretations

1) It was stated that only the Colleges of Nurses of Ontario require a2l3 majorily to change Bylaws.
This can be shown to be incorrect.

2) There seems to be a presumption by the 2023 Council that CCO has always required just a simple

majority to amend Bylaws. This can be shown to be incorrect.

3) It has been stated that Bylaw clause 8.8 applies to all business of CCO and was meant to be used for
making and amending Bylaws. This can be shown to be incorrect.

There is a question whether the 2023 CCO Council recognizes CCO meetings are on public display. The public,

CCO members, other stakeholders, various groups, and representatives from the Ministry of Health are observing.

There is a question whether the2023 Council understands that the primary purpose of a public Council meeting is

to conduct all CCO business transparently, and that means, in front of the public. The Government explains

public Council meetings as the way to update Council, stakeholders, and the Ontario public about the issues of the

day and about the work being done at the committee level. Open meetings and public discussion, revealing what

each committee is recommending or doing behind closed doors (committee work occurs behind closed doors), is

the expected norm. Transparent Council discussions as well as publicly presented committee reports demonstrate

to the public that CCO's activities focus on serving and protecting the public interest. Council meetings are

necessary, not just for CCO Council to consider recommendations or make decisions, but to publicly display why

such recommendations and decisions are made. Any lack of transparency or inconsistencies in process may

expose CCO to challenge and may lead to ineparable harm. This is real a concem.

192



193
:
:

i

l

=:

.
=-
E
T
I-

Respectfully, with only two Council members remaining from the pre-pandemic days, the 2023 Council has

limited Council experience predating the pandemic. It appears to observers some of the past institutional
knowledge and established institutional procedures have been undisclosed, lost, or forgotten. There seems to be

confusion about what is meant by "manage and administer the affairs" of the college (in RHPA) compared to
16 Council members expressing person opinions about how they would like CCO to ftmction. CCO is not suppose

to be ruled by people or opinion, rather by consistent fair process and transparent procedure. This is real concern.

Question: How does the most massive re-write of CCO Bylaws ever proposed in CCO's 30 + years of existent

better serve and protect the public interest? Why are such changes being rushed and forced into existence?

Modemization of CCO Bylaws, including gender neutralify and aligning CCO Bylaws to be consistent with other
Regulators, is an admirable goal. However, that is not all that is being proposed within the curuently circulated
amendments. This most recent CCO Bylaw reform seems to incorporate undisclosed opinions. Little, if any,
public rationale to explain how or why such changes better serves the public interest accompanied the circulation.
Many proposed changes are not consistent with the majority of other Ontario Regulators. This is real concem.

Question: How does eliminating the chiropractic leadership from running for Council after serving on any other
chiropractic organization serve the public interest? For CCO, an organization that is focusing on selecting and
developing competency, this does not make logical sense. Members who have developed board competency by
serving in other capacities at various chiropractic organizations would be unreasonably ostracized for 6 years.

Even ifa 1-3 year cooling offperiod isjustified (used by other Regulators), how does a 6-year hiatus allow
anyone to maintain competency? Where else can potential candidates develop and maintain competency?

Numerous new restrictions raise ethical questions. Not allowing a member, who has been involved in ligation
with/against CCO or with/against an individual on Council, from being eligible to run for CCO Council seems
questionable and may be unlawful. This has never been parl of CCO Bylaws before. Removing someone's
fundamental right to defend themselves seems threatening and unethical. Is CCO suggesting an appeal to
HPARB (tribunal) or an appeal to courts (litigation) or appearing as an expert witness on behalf of another CCO
member would eliminate that member from running for a position on Council? This seems unreasonable and
might be considered unconstitutional. As written, CCO would only allow members to testify on behalf of the
College and not on the other side of an argument. Clauses like this seem to protect individuals involved with
CCO, but how does it protect the public interest? These new clauses have the very real potential of exposing
CCO to unnecessary risk and possible legal challenge. When any regulator is challenged in court, win or lose,
they lose in the public eye; sometimes public respect and sometimes trust. Financial responsibility and fiduciary
duty suggest it is in Council's best interest to further investigate these issues. Bylaw changes carurot and should
not be rushed. A comprehensive investigation may lead to needed re-phrasing in the public interest.

Identifuing these weaknesses in the current proposal of Bylaw reform, reveals the2023 CCO Council may not
have allocated the necessary time and attention to evaluate each amendment in an all-encompassing way. It has

become extremely alarming how little investigation has occurred into researching the basic concepts of why a

213 majority is the accepted gold standard, used by many institutions and the majority of Ontario Regulators,

compared to a simple majority. It is frightening to hear individuals express that they 'feel' a simple majority is
best. Regulatory Colleges must adhere to logical and defensible principles. Since January 2023, CCO Council
has proposed the greatest number of new amendments and changes to Bylaws than have ever been proposed in
CCO's 32-year existence. This is truly shocking to observers and does raise serious questions. It is reasonable to
expect |he 2023 Council, having so many newer members, would spend the necessary time and resources to seek

out and analyse all the facts before forever changing CCO Bylaws. With respect, many observers feel there is not
enough experience on Council or enoughjustification presented by Council to propose such drastic changes to
CCO Bylaws. Making changes to CCO Bylaws is a serious undertaking and changes must only be implemented

after a comprehensive investigation and a thorough understanding of the process. Complete evaluation of ethics,
legality, and justifiability are necessary tasks before implementing any substantial changes to established Bylaws.

:l



194
Ministry of Health representatives explain that substantial changes to governing rules (Bylaw construct) must be

clearly explained, and must answer, with appropriate justification and comprehensive rationale, each change as to:

1) \ 4ry a change is required?
2) What change is being proposed?

3) Have public discussion and public rationale about how the proposed change better serves the public interest?

We collectively implore the 2023 Executive and CCO Council to gather all the relevant facts before embarking on

re-writing or finalizing the rules that govem themselves. The amount of membership response is less important

than the substance and quality of each submission. The Ontario Government expects goveming Bylaws to remain

relatively consistent and stable among Regulators. The newly proposed Bylaw changes are the most drastic and

numerous in CCO's history. Council has introduced changes that will make CCO a stand-alone College in

regards to many new stances proposed within the recently circulated Bylaw amendments. This is a real concern.

Internal Nomination Committee: Internal selection committees are froth with inherent conflict of interests,

appearance of bias, and personal opinion. For a nomination committee to be successful, anyone selected to serve

on a nomination committee would need to have specialty training on competency selection. If not, any

recommendations are just personal opinions and unqualified endorsements. Real conflicts exist when someone

nominates oneself(direct conflict ofinterest) or by selecting "friends" (appearance ofpersonal bias). This is

inevitable with this newly introduced nomination committee first implemented for internal elections in2021.
Mr. de Domenico highlighted this "elephant in the room" at the September 8,2023 Council meeting. By
reviewing Cayton reports, a nomination (selection) committee was a recommendation to aid in selecting skilled

and competent committees. However, for a nomination (selection) committee to be unbiased and truly qualified,

Cayton suggests that the committee would need to be external to Council. Members of a nomination committee

would need to show a superior ability to select competency over that of Council members. If not extemal, the

powers of Council would shift into the hands of only a few individuals on Council instead of Council as a whole.

This seems contrary to the RHPA. Endorsements from any nomination committee (internal or external) would

not necessarily assure competency but does open the door to the possibly ofunsubstantiated endorsements,

personal bias, and creates an unlevelled playing field. It is noted, Council members are not permitted to endorse

any candidate running in an external CCO election (election to Council), and so, it must be questioned why

internal endorsements are permissible or considered best practice? The RHPA grants Council the powers to

"manage and administer the affairs" of the College. A nomination committee shifts this power to a few

individuals. There is a very real potential for abuse. The introduction of an internal nomination committee,

created by the CCO Executive in202l, has not necessarily proven to produce improved competency. Bylaw 7
describes the fair and well-established democratic internal election process. An internal Nomination Committee

seems inconsistent with the RHPA and Bylaw 7. This is a real concern.

President voting: There are well-established and clear reasons why a President does not vote except when voting
by secret ballot (ie. internal elections). The President sets the agenda, facilitates discussion, and is in a leadership

role. This creates an inherent bias in deciding what items appear on the agenda, what issues are discussed at

Council, and for how long. When Council members observe the actions of the President, one may be influenced

by or simply copy the actions of the President out of fear or admiration. This creates a voting bias. Even when

the President votes last, and only to break atie, it still gives tremendous power to one individual. This is contrary

to the RHPA. This is why it is suggested the President votes to maintain status quo (if tied, President votes to
defeat the motion). Although legally the President may be entitled to vote, the ethical considerations come into

play when that single vote could alter the results. Council is on public display; it remains vital for the integrity of
the organization that the opinion ofthe President is not the one deciding vote. This is a real concern.



195

:
=I

II
I

-

Transparency: Questions continue to swirl why complete and comprehensive background information is not
being distributed, presented, discussed, or published in CCO Council packages. This is a real concern.

Is Council aware: The Public package for the September 8,2023 Council meeting was missing much of the
information that was provided to each Council member? Below is the relevant legislation that clearly spells out
what information is legislatively required to be made available to the public and Council members alike.

SCHEDULE 2 OF THE HEALTH PROFESSIONS PROCEDURAL CODE

Meetings

7 (1) The meetings of the Council shall be open to the public and reasonable notice shall be given to the members
oftheCollege,totheMinister,andtothepublic.200T,c.l0,Sched.M,s.20(1).

Posting of meeting information

(1. i ) The College shall post on its website information regarding upcoming meetings of the Council, including tlie
dates of those meetings, matters to be discussed at those meetings, and information and documentation that
will be provided to members of the Council for the purpose of those meetings. 207i, c. I l, Sched. 5, s. 8.

Is Council aware: Not a single page referenced by any committee chair presenting a report or making a

recommendation to Council on September 8,2023 was made available in the public package? Not a single draft
document was included in the public Council package. By observing the public portion of the Council meeting, it
seemed as though even Council members had limited information about the topic being discussed. Council
discussion seems to lack a fulsome and balanced understanding of enormity of the topics. There was no past

precedence discussed. No one explained or asked "why" the current document say what it does? No Council
member asked "why" is the proposed change necessary? or "how" does the proposed change better serves the
public interest? The bias to reach a pre-determined conclusion was palpable. It is commendable Council voted to
circulation all documents for stakeholder feedback. Consultation and feedback is considered best practices
according to the June 21,2023 SML Law presentation.

Nowadays, CCO seems to emphasis confidentiality over transparency. The Ontario Government expects the
primary focus of a Regulator to be that of transparency. Without full transparency it becomes almost impossible
for the public to reasonably be 'in the know' of what Council is discussing, deliberating, and what information is

being considered in making a decision. With much of the information not included in the public package, it
became next to impossible for observers to comprehend if the September 8,2023 Council package contained
fulsome information, if the information was well balanced, or if the information evaluated was incomplete. There
seems to be a transparency issue related to what information is available to the public. This is a real concem.

Cayton stated, "Conflicts arise when there is a real or perceived clash between two different objectives or
responsibilities. When activities are carried out in secret, you must ask what it is an organisation is trying to hide?
When that organisation is a legal regulator, aware that justice not only needs to be done but to be seen to be done,

doubts may be justified."

At the June 21,2023 Council meeting, according to the SML Law training session, transparency is I of the 4 core
fundamentalresponsibilitiesofaRegulaloryboard. Itwasstated,only4%ofCouncil(1 ofl6Councilmembers)
chose transparency as one of their top 4 core responsibilities. This was very telling and is a real concern.

Is Council aware: Ln2074, the Honourable Minister of Health Dr. Eric Hoskins instructed all Regulators to
become more transparent with their processes, provide more information to the public, and required more
information to appear on the public register (see CCO website). Some Colleges have transparency position
statements on their website. CCO does not.

I

j



196
Is Council aware: Only 36.6 o/o of the September 8,2023 Council package was made available to the public?

There were only 378 pages in CCO Council's public package. The actual Council package contained 1033 pages

It is reasonable to expect the public package did not contain the Executive minutes. Committee minutes remain

confidential. Council also has the ability to keep legal opinion privileged. However, Steineke Grey Zone article

2015 and the Registrar's report in CCO's 2015 Annual Reporl discusses how this is not always the best choice.

It can be assumed pages 15-39 were the Executive committee minutes excluded from the public package.

Following this gap, the public package is missing pages 41-43, 49-364 (a 315 page gap). Following this massive

gap in information, the public package is missing pages 373-482, 497-504,506-518, 529-544, 547-555, 551-562,

61 0, 6 1 3-630 ,720-7 58,767 -77 1,786-788,8 1 5-8 1 9, 821-828,853-888, 892-900, and 9 i 0-95 1.

Schedule 2:The Health Professions Procedure Code section 7 of the RHPA codifies 'items to be excluded'from
the public. Can all the non-disclosed information be justified under section 7? This is a real concern.

Bylaw Reform: It behooves any organization that, before making sweeping changes to the Bylaw rules that

govern themselves, the organization identifies and clearly understands where the original rules came from and

why the current rules say what they say. It is a necessity to have a comprehensive understanding why the rules,

currently in place, werelare considered best practices and how and why they serve and protect the public interest.

The next step is developing a clear understanding of the mechanisms and process required to approve Bylaws.

This critical analysis is a prerequisite before embarking on or introducing substantial Bylaw amendments.

Undoubtedly, there are undisclosed legal and other personal opinions differing in perspective. Opinions might

suggest that the proposed Bylaw changes are in some way beneficial and can be adopted by a simple majority.

However, none of that information was made public, discussed publicly, or published in CCO's public package.

Even ifsuch opinions exist, understanding past precedence, past procedures, and the original rationale for the

rules currently in place, would be considered by most to be an essential component of best practices, proper

process, transparency, and due diligence. Cayton states, "Council members should remember that whatever the

legal advice, it is only advice; they are responsible for the decision."

The information that follows is intended to assist the 2023 CCO Council in understanding and thoroughly

investigating CCO's past protocol and recognized well-established procedures. The 2023 Council has the

same responsibility as past Councils to make appropriate and transparent decisions consistent with its mandate:

DUU

(2)lncanyingoutitsobjects,theCollegehasadutytoserveandprotectthepublicinterest. 1991,c. 18,Sched.2,s.3{2).

Starling at the beginning...

CCO is 1 of 26 Colleges regulated by the Ontario Government. CCO was lof the original 21 Regulatory Colleges

established in 199 I . These 21 Colleges were distributed the same set of Bylaw templates to assist each College in

developing consistent foundational rules that would govern their respective organizations in the public interest.

In 2001, CCO implemented a set of Bylaws. These were the Rules of Order setting out how CCO will behave and

operate. The CCO Bylaws incorporated and defaulted to Robert's Rules of Order by reference in Bylaw 8.18.

In 2005, the Red Tape Act permitted CCO to revoke two Regulations namely:

O. Res. 910193: ELECTION OF MEMBERS (ontario.ca)

O. Rce. 672193 : COMMITTEE COMPOSITION (ontario.ca)

The Ontario Government allowed CCO to revoke Regulations O. Reg. 910193 and O. Reg. 672193 based on CCO

having its election processes additionally codified within CCO Bylaws 6 and 7 by 2001.

. By-law 6: Election of Council Members

. By-law 7: Elections (within Council)



===
T
T-
I
J

I

197
To make, amend, or revoke a Regulation requires a more onerous process than is required to make or amend a
Bylaw. Amending a Regulation requires circulation for 60 days, 213 majority of Council in favour, and a
recorded vote. Even then, a Regulation still requires final approval by the Ontario Government. These

requirements have not changed in2023. Directed by the Ministry of Health, CCO recently used these precise
procedures (rules) to amend Regulation 137 ll l when adding the "Emergency Class" of Registration.

Recognizing CCO's Election of Council Members and Committee Composition Bylaws were originally set out in
Regulations, it can be objectively understood why the 213 majority requirement to amend Election Bylaws
remained. Recently, CCO claimed Bylaw amendments no longer require a2l3 majority. This is a real concern.

There are interrelationships between Bylaws and Regulations described in section 43 of the RHPA and in
Sections 94 and 95 of the Health Professions Procedural Code. Regulations and Bylaws establish fundamental
organizational rules. The difference, Regulations require final government approval whereas Bylaw only require
Council approval. The Ministry's (best practices) protocol can be found within the February 24,2023 Council
package. Regulations and Bylaws are expected to remain relatively stable according to the Ministry of Health.

Understanding the "why" Regulations, Bylaws, and other special business of Council, including the removal of a
Council member from a chair or an Executive position, requires a2l3 majority, is essential. Requiring a

minimum of a2l3 majority to change any foundational or fundamental rule is well established in Robert's Rules
of Order. Votes, requiring a2l3 majority, eliminate the very serious risk of a simple majority disrupting the
functions of Council. By understanding the principles and purposes behind Bylaws, as the foundational rules that
governs organizational behaviour, one can recognize changing these fundamental rules by a simple majority
exposes anorganization to the unintended risk ofupheaval by a majority alliance. This is a real concern.

There seems to be a promoted belief that a simple majority vote to amend CCO Bylaws has always been the status
quo at CCO. This is untrue. This fact can be verified by speaking to past Council members and by reviewing
past Council minutes. A2l3 majority is CCO's well-established norm. The change to a simple majority could not
be found in CCO minutes or within the CPMF or any other govemment report. Since CCO is working towards
best practices, it is reasonable to assume CCO has and can point out to members a recognized authority, which
substantiates a simple majority would be considered a new gold standard or best practice. This is a real concern.

A recent review of CCO Bylaws reveals there have been over 40 dated amendments since June 2019. This does
not include the newest proposals. Major changes occuned in the midst of COVID but were not COVID related.
Limited, if any circulation or request for feedback occurred before approving such changes. This is a real concem.

Frequent Bylaw amendments were rare before 2019. CCO first amended its Bylaws in 2009 . At that time, all
proposed Bylaws amendments were circulated for 60 days to be transparent and for ethical reasons, even though
not legally required by the RHPA. The Bylaws were then approved sequentially but individually. Each Bylaw
required a2l3 majority; the vote was recorded. The primary reason for updating Bylaws in2009 was due to
changes in legislation requiring Bylaw amendments. The process was thorough, completely transparent, driven
by full disclosure, and included publicly presented logical explanations for every change. Legal requirements
were not the only measure stick. The goals were to live up to CCO values of integrity, respect, and transparency.

Ln2015-2016, the Ontario Government once again required CCO to amend its Bylaws because the Ontario
Government increased the transparency requirements in the RHPA. Again, the same 60-day circulation was
followed by a2l3 majority vote. This was CCO's established protocol to amend Bylaws. This can be verified.

If the cunently proposed amendments proceed without Council comprehensively investigating the rules around
making Bylaw changes, Bylaw 6 (Elections) will have changed 10 times in the last 5 years. For a Bylaw,
originally codified in Regulation (O. Reg. 910193), amending it so frequently seems highly unusual. Knowing
this, it is suggested CCO revert back to the previous well-established2l3 majority requirement used by CCO
pre-pandemic and to limit the frequency of Bylaw changes. A full 60-day circulation is considered best practice
and is utilized by other Regulatory Colleges. Some Regulators display this 60-day requirement on their website.



198
Robeft's Rules of Order extensively describes, explains, and justifies the principles of why a2l3 majority is

required in Bylaw reform. Bylaws act as the measuring tools for past, current, and future Councils to function

under consistent framework. Without stable processes and procedures each year's Council could do its own thing.

The optics, fairness, and transparency ofthe organization would be called into question. This is a real concern.

Since the Special Meeting of Council on January 20,2023, where CCO Council abruptly amended Bylaw 6
(Elections), there has been ever expanding questions and concerns. This was the first time CCO Council

introduce a 6-year cooling off period. No rationale was provided at the time to justiff this substantial change,

other than a few other Regulators had done so. There was no public discussion about why the 1 or 3 year cooling

off periods were no longer sufficient. There was no discussion about why the other 20 + Colleges did not change

their cooling off periods to 6 years. No discussion of what matter of public interest was being addressed by

implementing these changes or why such changes better served the public interest. This is a real concern.

Then, by a simple majority vote (6-5), 30 years of precedence was altered. Not a single elected member of
Council voted in favour of the change. This was the first time CCO publicly claimed Bylaw amendments only

required a simple majority. This raised serious red flags. The declaration of only needing a simple majority

seems inconsistent with 30 years of past precedence and is out of step with Robert's Rules of Order. Robeft's

Rules of Order is the gold standard and remains CCO's default listed in its Rules of Order. This is a real concern.

On Novemb er 13, 2023 , the public Council package for the November 23, 2023 meeting had already been posted

on CCO's website. The Executive report states, "I anticipate the following recommendation at the November 23,

2023 Council meeting". "Recommendation 2:That Council approve the bylaw amendments as circulated".

With the closing date to submit feedback not until November 19,2023, it seems that the Executive repoft reveals

a pre-determined conclusion without considering or implementing any changes or taking the necessary time at

Council to analysis the solicited stakeholder feedback. Feedback, yet to come in, might identifu problems that

require consideration by Council. There may be suggested improvements, which would need to be integrated into

Bylaws before finalizing. Evaluating all suggestions and feedback would be in the spirit of self-regulation,

transparency, due diligence, and best practices. Ifthe purpose ofthe circulation is truly to gather comprehensive

feedback from stakeholders, it is questionable why this premature recommendation. It is justified to ask whether

further feedback is going to be included and properly considered or left out and ignored. This is a real concern.

Having the seven Executive Committee members (440/o of Council), who have already reported there intention to

approve amendments, creates a voting bias. Without having a fulsome discussion and comprehensive review of
all feedback at the Council level, it seems as if the Executive Committee is, for all practical purposes, making and

amending Bylaws. It is questionable why the Executive Committee feels they collectively can serve as a Bylaw

Review Committee. Observers, who understand the RHPA, suggest this seems most inappropriate.

Executive Committee's exercise of Council's powers (stated in The RHPA)

12 (l) Between the meetings of the Council, the Executive Committee has all the powers of the Council with

respect to any matter that, in the Committee's opinion, requires immediate attention, other than the power to

make. amend or revoke a regulation or b)t-law. This is a real concern.

Members remain hopeful that the 2023 Council will take these concerns seriously and comprehensively

investigate the20 + questions and concerns listed. Should these concems and information be ignored, there is a

very real possibility such behaviour will trigger an external investigation. The Minister, according to the RHPA,

has the ability to impose a College supervisor should CCO Council be deemed not to be focused on serving and

protecting the public interest. This has happened to other Regulatory Colleges in the past. This is a real concern.



199
As CCO members, we simply ask that the questions and concems within this letter be properly considered,
addressed, and CCO Council prepare and provide the membership with a transparent response before moving
forward with Bylaw reform. There is no expectation or request for CCO to go backwards or unwind the past.

There is a reasonable expectation that CCO Council, vested with new knowledge and a thorough understanding of
past precedence, will move forward cautiously and with integrity congruent with its mandate to serve and protect
the public interest. Massive, substantial, and rapid Bylaws changes have the very real potential of causing
ineparable harm to self-regulation of the Chiropractic profession. All information is submitted in good faith and
is intended to assist the 2023 CCO Council so it may adopt the most appropriate, fair, and transparent procedures
consistent with best practices and the RHPA.

Thank you for your indulgence

I

-:
j
I



200
A Review of Ontario Regulatory Colleges Requirements for Amending Bylaws

CCO President's Message from January 24,2023 suggested Bylaw clause 8.8 is applicable to changing Bylaws

8.8 Unless otherwise required by law or by-law, every question which properly comes before the Council rnay be

decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by council members, and, if there is an equal

number of votes on a question, the chair may cast a deciding vote.

Upon review , all26 Regulators have a 'Council Meeting' Bylaw similar to CCO'S Bylaw 8 (specifically clause 8.8).

By reviewing all 26 Regulatory Colleges'websites, it was noted that no Ontario Regulatory College was found to

apply their "simple Majority clause" to amend College Bylaws. The 2023 CCO Council stands alone.

Most Ontario Regulatory Colleges have a separate section within their Bylaws containing specific rules on how to

amend Bylaws. CCO does not. CCO has always defaulted to Robert's Rule of Order. lt is the gold standard.

Robert's Rules clearly state Bylaw amendments require a minimum of a2/3 majority. The "Simple Majority

clause" (CCO's 8.8), originated from an Ontario Government template which all Regulators were given as the

standard framework to develop College Bylaws. CCO Bylaws came into effect in 2001. ln 2023, the wording of

Bylaw clause 8.8 remains identical to the original wording from 2001; the Bylaw wording has not changed.

However, for some undisclosed reason, the current CCO Council is interpreting Bylaw clause 8.8 completely

different from previous CCO Councils. This new interpretation is inconsistent with all other Regulators in

Ontario. Clause8.8,aswritten,appliesto"ordinarybusiness"ofCouncil. Clause8.8wasneverintendedto

apply to "special business" such as amending Bylaws. The Ontario Government explains Regulations and Bylaws

are very different from all other College business and separate rules do apply. Bylaws are the foundational rules

that govern the organization (akin to articles of incorporation). Consistency and transparency is expected across

all Ontario Regulators when dealing with similar situations (with minor exceptions). Therefore, Bylaws are to be

rarely altered unless there are changes in legislation or directed by the Ontario Government. Reviewing Ontario

Regulatory Colleges' websites demonstrate the stability and overall consistency across all Regulators. lncluded

for review: CCO's specific reference to Robert's Rules of Order, a simple explanation on how to amend Bylaws

from Robert's Rules of Order, and relevant Bylaw clauses from the other 25 Regulatory Colleges for comparison.

SUMMARY
NB. The Ontario Regulatory Colleges that have been evaluated for regulatory excellence namely, the College of

Nurses, Dentists, and Occupational Therapists all explicitlv codifv a 2/3 maioritv is required to amend Bylaws.

15 of 21 original Regulatory Cotleges (1991) explicitly codify a 213 majority is required to amend their Bylaws.

le. ln 2023, College has specific clauses within their Bylaws stating a 2/3 maiority is required to amend a Bylaw.

1 original Regulatory College explicitly codifies that a simple majority is all that is needed to amend a Bylaw.

(physiothera pists).

5 originat Colleges have no specific wording pertaining to Bylaws amendments (silent); CCO is 1 of these.

The Regulatory Colleges that do not specifically mention how to amend Bylaws (silent on requirements) do

reference a parliamentary process as the default. Since 2001 CCO has relied on, referenced, and defaulted to
Robert's Rules of Order. Robert's Rules of Order are referenced in CCO's Rules of Order of Council.

BLUE - Simple Majority clause (Clause 8.8) or its equivalent from other Regulatory colleges

BLACK - Specific Bylaw clauses describing requirements for amending Bylaws from other Regulatory colleges

RED - Clause related to whether a President votes or not from other Regulatory colleges



l

-
l

"1

=I
I
tsI

i-
.:

:

201

Rules of Order of the Council of the College of Chiropractors of Ontario
Approved by Council September 20,2Ot4 Amended: Ju ne 17,2O2O

20. ln all cases not provided for in these rules or the by-laws, the current edition of Robert's Rules of
Order shall be followed so far as they may be applicable and consistent with these rules.

Robert's Rules of Order
Robert's Rules provide guidance on how to amend constitutions, bylaws, and rules of
orderl. Bylaws can't be changed unless the members get previous notice of any proposed

change and a large majority (commonly two-thirds) is required to enact any proposed

change2. Amending bylaws essentially changes the contract you've made with your fellow
members about how your organization operates, so you need to be really technical and precise

No matter how good a job you've done creating your bylaws, sooner or later you'll need to
change something. Robert's Rules encourages creating bylaws that can't be too easily
amended, but amending them isn't so difficult that you can't consider and make changes within
a reasonable time when necessary.

O q ry* **a.d r|wd!.e' x d ffobsns 8!las tcr Anending B, x +

+ O A ..; .,,. !M!.d0mmte5<om it,::--.::.r,,:r'.-i: ij,,l.rr' .. ,. :r C

diimmigs Adlcles v 8ook5 v call*dons v Csstom sotuttons sea.ch ror artictes and bookj qrwtt&'d

CIear and Tangible

-5

*G3 ilt
,.1,

J
rt

lr
fi
(I

"l

+

;

Dummies

Scttlng thc conditlons for amcnding your bylaws

ln amending a previously adopled bylaw. make sure thal the rights of all members

continue lo be protected. The surest way to provide this protection is to prevent

bylalvs from being changed wilhout llrst giving every menrber an oppo.lunity to

weigh in on a change. And bylaws should never be changed as long as a minority

greater lhan one-third di$grees wili the proposal.

Always speciiy in your bylaws the exact

requarements for lheir amendment. According to

Robert's Rules, you should. at the very least,

r€quire a two'thirds vote and previous nolice lo

make any change at all in your bylaws

Deslgn Thinking: Creaiivity

T6chniques

Doslgn Thinkino: The Cuslomor

Design Thinking: Usrng an

Enrpathy Map

E!plore Book

Buy On ADEon

b
'Iip

Design Thinking: Characteizing

!!i.i:r: O

s.. Disruption ls The New Normal

Log ln

Robert's
Rules

I

X
Gil X



202

a

a

a

Setting the conditions for amending your bylawS (Robert's Rules for Amending Bvlaws - dummies)

ln amending a previously adopted bylaw, make sure that the rights of all members continue to
be protected. The surest way to provide this protection is to prevent bylaws from being
changed without first giving every member an opportunity to weigh in on a change. And bylaws
should never be changed as long as a minority greater than one-third disagrees with the
proposal.

TIP: Always specify in your bylaws the exact requirements for their amendment. According to
Robert's Rules, you should, at the very least, require a two-thirds vote and previous
notice to make any change at all in your bylaws.

Amending specific articles, sections, or subsections of your bylaws. When you're amending
parts of your bylaws, you propose the amendment as a main motion and specify one of the
same processes you would for any amendment.

The processes of making the motion to amend are:

Strike out words, sentences, or paragraphs

lnsert (or add) words, sentences, or paragraphs

Strike out and insert (or substitute) words, sentences, or paragraphs

Tackling a full revision of your bylaws

A revision to bylaws is an extensive rewrite that often makes fundamental changes in the
structure of the organization. By considering a revision of your bylaws, you're proposing to
substitute a new set of bylaws for the existing ones. Your group is free to amend anything in

the proposed revision before it's adopted, as if the bylaws were being considered and adopted
for the first time. There is a necessary procedure.

Bylaw amendments require a twothirds vote and recording the results of the vote

Bylaw amendments (requiring a twothirds vote) are handled as a rising vote unless the
amendments are adopted by unanimous consent. However, because of the importance of
bylaws and the impact of their amendment, unless the vote is practically unanimous, the best
and fairest procedure is to count the vote and record the result in the minutes.



i

I

l

=
:

203
College of Nurses of Ontario By-Laws 4 paseT

7.L6 Unless otherwise required by law or by the by-laws, every motion which properly comes before the Council
shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by councillors present.

Policy development involves identifying trends or issues that may have an impact on nursing regulation.
New government legislation, direction from Council, and other external factors can play a role in helping the
College identify and shape its policies. These policies in turn shape the College's bv-laws. The College's by-laws
are the rules that govern how the College operates. Government legislation authorizes Council to make by-laws
related to the College's governance, administration and regulatory functions.

Part L: General

2. By-Laws (Pg 4)

2.01 By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended or revoked by a two-thirds majority vote of the
councillors present at a Council meeting duly called for the purpose of considering such enactment, amendment
or revocation.

2.02 Notice of a motion to enact, amend or revoke a by-law shall be given to Council at least ten days prior to
the meeting referred to in Article 2.01

7.2IThe chair is not required to vote whether or not that vote would affect the outcome.

Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario page 36

2.10.6 Default is sinrple majority Except as otherwise provided for in the Act, regulations, or by-laws, each vote
at a Council meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes cast at the meeting.

Our by-laws govern how the College operates. They outline how meetings are held, the committees we have, our
code of conduct, how elections are held, and a great deal more. The Requlated Health Professions Act
(RHPA) gives our Council the power to enact by-laws.

Here's how by-laws are made.

A new by-law (or changes to an existing by-law) is drafted by a College committee, depending on the subject.
The by-law is presented at a Council meeting. lf approved it is sent to all Ontario dentists, other dental health care
organizations and members of the public for review and feedback.
Feedback from the 60-day consultation is considered by the committee and, if needed, additional changes are
made to the by-law.

The by-law returns to Council for final approval.
When approved, the by-law comes into effect.

2.10,5 Roll call vote for regulations A vote at a Council meeting on a motion to propose or amend a regulation,
or to submit a proposed regulation or regulation amendment to the Ministry

a. shall be by roll call vote; and b. the minute of such vote shall record those members of Council in favour, those
opposed, those who abstained, and those who were not present.

a

a

I

a

a



204
Royal Gollege of Dental Surgeons of Ontario pRocEDURE 26.Page176

L Enactment, Amendment and Revocation of By-Laws

26.I.LTwo-thirds vote needed to enact, amend, or revoke a by-law

By-laws may be enacted, amended, or revoked by a two-thirds vote of the members of Council present at a

Council meeting called for that purpose

2.10J Vote of chair to be counted where a member of Council is acting as chair of a Council meeting, his or her

vote is counted in any matter brought to a vote.

College of OccupationalTherapists of Ontario

L1.07 Majority Vote Unless otherwise specified in these bylaws, matters considered at any meeting of the Board

shall be decided by a majority vote cast upon each matter by the Directors present. Voting by proxy is not

permitted at meetings of the Board.

8.08 Making, Amending and Revoking Bylaws

8.08.1 The bylaws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by a two thirds

majority affirmative vote of Board Directors present and voting at a meeting of the Board called for that
purpose

1 1 .08 In cases of an equality of votes, the Board Chair shall have a deciding vote to break the tie.

The College of Audiologists and Speech-Language Pathologists of Ontario

6.1.10. Except where otherwise specified in the RHPA, Code, ASLPA, or the Regulations or By-laws of the College,

every issue io be decided at a Board of Directors meeting shall be decided by a simple majority of votes of those

voting at the meeting

15. MAKING, AMENDING AND REVOKING BY-LAWS

1-5.1. Vote. The By-laws of the College or any part thereof may be enacted, amended or revoked by a resolution

of a two-thirds majority of Directors.

Chair does not make motions, or participate in discussion, or vote

College of Chiropodists/Podiatrists

8.15 Unless otherwise required by law or bythe by-laws, every motion which properly comes before Council

shall be decided by a sinrple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by councillors present.



205

=ar
E
T
!

2. BY-LAWS

2.01 By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended or revoked by a vote of at least two-thirds of the
councillors present at a Council meeting duly called for the purpose of considering such enactment, amendment
or revocation

Silent on President allowed to vote

College of Dental Hygienists of Ontario

4.7 Quorum and Voting

(1) AmajorityofCouncil Membersshall constituteaquorumforthetransactionof business. Urrlessotherwise
provided for, questions arising at any meeting of the Courrcil shall be decided by a majority of votes of those

present and voting. ln the event that a vote is tied following deliberation of the question, the question shall be

deemed to have been defeated.

ARTICLE 1.3: ENACTMENI AMENDMENT AND REPEAL OF BYLAWS

13.1, Enactment, Amendment and Repeal A bylaw of the College may be made, amended and repealed by a vote

of at least two-thirds of the Council Members present and voting at any Council meeting.

13.2 Notice of ProposalWhere obligated by the Act, proposed bylaws shall be circulated to every Registrant at

least 50 days before Council approves them

Silent on President voting

College of DentalTechnologists of Ontario

11.08 - Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA, or these By-Laws,

every motion which properly comes before the Board shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at

tlre meeting by the Directors present.

25.02- Amendments The By-Laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked

by a two thirds majority affirmative vote of the Board of Directors present and voting at a meeting of the Board

called for that purpose.

11.09 - Chair Vote lf the Chair is a member of the Board, they may vote.

11.10 - Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated.



206
College of Denturists of Ontario

22.09 Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or the by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shali be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Council nrembers present.

37. BY.LAWS AND AMENDMENT

37.0L Effective Date These by-laws shall become effective as soon as they have been approved by Council.

37.02 Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a two-thirds majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that
purpose.

22.10 Chair Votes lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may participate in the discussion of a matter

before Council but shall not vote unless there is a tie vote and the Chair's vote would break the tie, unless the

Chair wishes to vote against a motion and the Chair's vote would create a tie that would defeat the motion, or

unless there is a roll callvote (e.g., to enact a regulation).

College of Dietitians of Ontario

7.11 Voting at Meetings Unless otherwise required by law or by the by-laws, every rnotion which properly comes

before the Board of Directors shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by directors
present. ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated.

17.1 Making By-laws

By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended, or revoked by a vote of at least two-thirds of the directors
present at a Board of Directors meeting duly called for the purpose of considering such enactment, amendment

or revocation.

Silent on President voting

College of Homeopaths of Ontario

11.09 - 5imple Majority Urrless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA, or the bylaws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Councii Members present.

25. BYLAWS AND AMENDMENTS

25.01 - Effective Date These bylaws shall become effective as soon as they have been approved by the Council.

25.02 - Amendments The bylaws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a simple majority of the Council Members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11,10 - Chair Vote lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may vote.

1,1.1,1,- Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated



207
College of Kinesiologists of Ontario

11.09 Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA, or the by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Council members present.

24.02 Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a simple majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11.10 Chair Vote lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may vote.

11.1"1Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated

College of Massage Therapists of Ontario By-Law No. 1

11.09 * Simple Majority

Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or the by-laws, every motion which properly

comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by the Council

members present.

The Health Professions Procedural Code gives CMTO's Council authority to make by-laws relating to
the College's administration and operations:

Amendment or Revocation of By-Laws

3. (A) By-laws of the College may be enacted, amended or repealed by a vote in support from a two thirds
majority of the members of the Council present at a meeting held to consider the by-law, where a quorum is

present.

(B) Except for amendments of a non-substantive nature, which may be incorporated by Council following notice

and at any time prior to a vote being held, written notice of all motions in respect of the making, amending or

revoking of a by-law shall be circulated:

i, At least 14 days prior to the consideration of such motion by Council; and

ii. Where required under section9aQ) of the Code, to all registrants at least 60 days prior to the consideration

of such motion.

(C) Every by-law, including every amendment and revocation of a by-law, shall be dated and numbered

according to the date on which it was passed, certified by the President or Vice President, in addition to the

Registrar, and maintained in electronic form in its chronological order.

11 (C) The Chair of the meeting shall not vote on any matter unless there is a tie vote, and then the Chair of the
meeting shall cast the deciding vote

=
j
i



208
CoLLEGE OF MEDTCAL LABORATORY TECHNOLOGISTS OF ONTARIO (CMLTO)

4.10.11VOT|NG .

The decisions of the Board shall be made by rnotion and in accordance with the relevant Board Policy.

r EverV question to be deternrined shall be determined by a nrajority of the votes cast at the nteeting, excluding

the Chair's, and if there is an equality of votes on a question, the Chair shall cast the deciding vote.

1.5.1 MAKING, AMENDING, AND REVOKING THE BY-LAW

The By-Law ofthe College or any part thereof may be enacted, amended or revoked pursuant to S. 94 (1) and (2)

of the Code by a vote of at least two-thirds (2131 of the Board Members present at a Board meeting duly called

for that purpose.

Medical Radiation and lmaging Technologists

8.1. Questiotrs arising at any Council meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes of Councillors present at the

meeting. lf there is an equality of votes, the chair of the meeting shall not have a second, or casting vote, and

the motion shall be lost.

24. Procedure - The rules of procedure in Bourinot's Rules of Order shall be followed for meetings of Council.

(2/3 majority to amend Bylaws)

College of Midwives of Ontario

7.07 - Simple Majority Unless otherwise required bythe Code orthe by-laws, Council and Cotnmittee rnenrbers

shall, wheri making decisions, make every effort to reach a consensus, defined as a state of mutualagreement

among rnembers of a group where all legiiimate concerns of individuals have been addressed to the satisfaction

of the group but, where a decision cannot be reached by corrsensus, a conventionalvoting process shall be used

and the decision shall be made by a simple majority of the votes cast by the nrembers present.

18.03 - Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked

by a two-thirds majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of the Council called for that
purpose.

b. The Chair shall be entitled to vote on matters before Council;

College of Naturopaths of Ontario

L1.09 Sirrrple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or these by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple nrajority of the votes cast at the

meeting by tlre Council members present.



209
25. BY-LAWS AND AMENDMENTS

25.01 Effective Date These by-laws shall become effective as soon as they have been approved by Council.

25.02 Amendments These by-laws of the College or any article thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked by

a simple majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11.10 Chair Votes lf the Chair is a Council member, they may vote.

11.11Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated

College of Opticians of Ontario

8.1"8 Votes to Govern Fach Director is authorized to exercise one vote on every motion at a Board meeting.

Subject to the RHPA and the by-laws, any question arising at any Board meeting shall be decided by a majority of
votes. ln the case of an equality of votes at any Board meeting, the chair of the meeting shall not have a second

or casting vote and the matter shall be deemed not to have been carried.

ARTICLE 24: BY-LAWS

24.1 Making, Amending and Revoking By-laws The Board shall have the power to make, amend or revoke any or
all of the by-laws or Articles therein, by resolution of a two-thirds majority of those Directors present at a duly-

constituted meeting of the Board or, without such meeting, by written resolution which has been confirmed by

the hand-written signature of all Directors

College of Optometrists of Ontario

14.01 (6) Every motion considered by a Committee shall be decided by a majority of the votes cast at the
meeting. lf the votes cast result in a tie, the chair shall not have a second vote and the motion will be defeated

PART 2 - AMENDMENT OR REVOCATION OF BY.LAWS 2.01

Special Resolution is Required

(1) A Special Resolution is required to amend or revoke these By-laws, or make new By-laws.

(2) Written notice of all motions applying to the making, amending or revoking of a By-law shall be circulated:
(a) to Council Members at least 1"4 days prior to the tabling of such motion; and

(b) when required under Section 9aQ) of the Code, to all Members at least 60 days prior to the tabling of such

motion.
(3) Every By-law, including every amendment and revocation of a By-law, shall be dated and numbered

according to the date on which it was passed, certified by the President or Vice-President, in addition to the
Registrar, sealed and maintained in a book in its chronological order.

(2) lf the votes cast result in a tie, the chair shall not have a second vote and the motion will be defeated



210
ONTARIO COLLEGE OF PHARMACISTS and PHARMACY TECHNICIANS

6.1.8 Unless specifically provided for otherwise irr the By-Law, any question arising at any meeting of the Board

shall be determined by a majority of votes of Directors present at the nreeting and eligible to vote. ln the event

of a tie vote, the Chair shall break the tie with an additional vote.

ARTICLE 24 MAKING, AMENDING AND REVOKING BY-LAWS

24.1- Requirements.

24.L.1. By-Laws may be made, repealed or amended by at least two-thirds of all Directors present at a meeting

of the Board and eligible to vote.

The College of Physicians and Surgeons of Ontario

authority is defined by government legislation and College by-laws

29 (8) Unless otherwise required by law or by the by-laws, every motion which properly comes before the

council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by the councillors in attendance

(including a councillor who is the presidirrg officer) and, if there is an equality of votes on a motion, the motion

shall be deemed to have been defeated.

54. (1) A by-law may be made, amended and revoked by an ordinary motion except that subclause 29(a)(b)(iv)

does not permit the making, amending or revoking of a by-law.

(2) Every by-law and every amendment and revocation of a by-law shall be numbered according to the order in

which it was passed, certified by the presiding and recording officers of the meeting at which it was passed and

maintained in a book in its numerical order

18. Except where inconsistent with the Regulated Health Professions Act, L99L, the Medicine Act, 1991, the

regulations or the by-laws of the College, any questions of procedure at or for any meetings of Council shall be

determined by the chair of such meeting in accordance with the rules of order as contained in the current

version of Wainberg's Society Meetings lncluding Rules of Order.

Silent on President voting

College of Physiotherapists of Ontario

4.8. Kerr and King's Procedures for Meetings and Organizations, Third Edition, are the rules of order for

meetings of Council and form part of these By-laws.

BY-LAWS 2.8. (1) The making, amending or revoking of a by-law shall be determined by a majority vote of the

Councillors present and voting. Advance notice is required for all motions or resolutions applying to the making,

amending or revoking of a by-law.

(2) proposed by-laws made under the authority of clauses (1.2), (1.3), (s), (t), (v), (w) or (y) of subsection 94 (1) of

the Code shall be circulated to every Member at least 60 days before they are approved by Council.

Silent on President voting



Ir
I
t

211
College of Psychologists of Ontario

3.14 Meetings of Council shall be conducted in accordance with Keesey's "Modern Parliamentary Procedures".

a. A majority vote shall be defined as a majority of Council members who are eligible to vote and in attendance;

By-law 17: Procedure for Making, Amending or Revoking By-laws

17.I A By-law may be made, amended or revoked by a resolution of Council subject to subsection 94(2) of the
Code.

17.4 A copy of the By-laws made by the Council shall be given to the Minister and to each member and shall be
made available to the public in accordance with the provisions of the Regulated Health Professions Act, 1991.

Silent on President voting

College of Registered Psychotherapists of Ontario

11,09 - Simple Majority Unless specifically provided for otherwise under the Act, the RHPA or the by-laws, every

motion which properly comes before Council shall be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the

meeting by the Council members present.

24.02 - Amendments The by-laws of the College or any section thereof may be enacted, amended, or revoked
by a simple majority of the Council members present and voting at a meeting of Council called for that purpose

11.10 - Chair Votes lf the Chair is a member of Council, he or she may vote1.
1) Ordinarily, a Chair does not vote unless it would affect the result.

1,L.L1- Tie Votes ln the event of a tie vote, the motion is defeated

College of Respiratory Therapists of Ontario

4.11 Matters shall be decided by vote as follows:

a) Making amending and revoking the By-Law and regulations shall require a two-thirds (2/3) majority
vote of those Council Members in attendance.

b) Unless otherwise required by law or by this By-Law, every motion which properly comes before the
Council may be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the rneeting by those Council Members
in attenda rrce.

c) lf there is a tie vote on a motion, the motion shall be defeated

6.01 - By-Laws of the CRTO may be made, amended, or revoked by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the sitting Council
Members in attendance at a duly constituted meeting or by the signatures of all actual Council Members.

:!
J

:]



212
College of Traditional Chinese Medicine and Acupuncturists of Ontario

(i) Except where otherwise provided in the Act, regulations or By-Laws, every motion coming before

any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes cast at the meeting, including the chair,

provided that the chair is a member of the Council. ln the case of equality of votes, the chair shall

not have a second vote and the motion shall be considered to be defeated.

23. BY-LAWS AND AMENDMENTS

23.OL Make, Amend, Revoke By-Law The College's By-Laws may be made, amended or revoked in the same

manner as other resolutions or motions that appear before Council. A motion to amend or revoke these By-

Laws requires a vote of the majority of those in attendance and voting at the meeting.



Joel Friedman

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING:
This e-mail including any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only for the
disclosure is strictly prohibited. lf you have received this e-mail in error, please notify CCO immediately
attachments without reading it or making a copy. Thank you.

213

person(s) named above. Any other distribution, copying or
by reply e-mail and delete all copies including any

ITEM 3.10

Rose Bustria

Friday, November 17 , 2423 1:28 PM

Robbie Berman

: -__ ')

Correspondence dated November 17,2023 to Dr. Berman from Dr. Green, CCO

President

20231117132233.pdf

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Attachments:

Please see attached correspondence dated November 17,2023 from Dr. Green, CCO President.

Rose Bustria
Executive Assistant

College of Chiropractors of Ontario
59 Hayden Street, Suite 800
Toronto, ON M4Y 0E7
Tel: (4'16) 922-6355 ext. 101

Toll Free: 1-877-577-4772
Fax: (416) 925-9610
E-mail : rbustria@cco.on.ca
Web Site: www.cco.on.ca

College of Chiropractors of Ontario ("CCO") services continue as staff follow recommended health and safety guldelines related to the COVID-19

global pandemic, In-office services are available by appointment only. Please use the email nr phone contact information above or, if you require

urgent assistance, please contact Reception by phone at4L6-922-6355 ext. 100 oremail reception@cco.on.ca

and your inquiry will be directed appropriately.

CCO is committed to providing inclusive, accommodating, and responsive services and ensuring that individuals are treated with dignity and

respect. Please contact us if you require accommodations. Piease ensure that ali communications with CCO are respectful and professionai.

1



College of
€hiropractors
of ontario

November 17,2023

UOrdre des
Chiropraticiens
de I'Ontario

59 Hayden Streei
Suite 800
Toronto, Oniario
M4Y OE7

Tel:416-922-6355
Toll Free: 1 -877 -577 -47 7 2

Fax;41 6-925-961 0

cco.info@cco.on.ca
www.cco.on,ca

214Personal and Confidential

Via e-mail ir,'t"^*-

Dr. Robbie Berman
17 Rollingwood Dr.
NorthYork, ON MZHZM4

Dear Dr. Berman:

Thank you for your November 9 and 13, 2023 emails.

As you will know from my Sepember 19, 2Q23 President's message, CCO has.been

engiging in a systematic review of the by-laws for some time. It is one of my priorities to

r116"gttu"n CCO's governance, and I see having by-laws that are supported by best practices

and take into account the public interest as being a key part of that work.

CCO has retained experts on an ongoing basis to provide advice regarding best practices, as

well as other aspecti of governance. They have worked with CCO staff, the Executive

Committee and Council to develop a set of proposed amendments, which has been circulated

to the membership and other stakeholders for feedback and comment. The feedback from

all stakeholders r-hting to the most recent circulation will be reviewed by the Executive

Committee, who will be providing further recommendations to Council, informed by the

feedback. Council will have the opportunity to review all the feedback on the proposed by-

law amendments before making any decisions regarding by-law amendments. As part ofthis

process, your feedback will be reviewed and considered, along with the feedback provided

by other stakeholders, including members'

I note you continue to allege that Council did not review or evaluate feedback regarding

propo."d changes to ByJaws 6 and 12 at its January 20,2023, meeting and otherwise acted

improperty in passing the amendments. As you know, Dr. Benjamin Hardick brought an

upfti.atiott forludicial review regarding the January 20,2023 by-law amendments. Justice

dbrien, of the Divisional Court, had the opportunity to review all the evidence regarding

the process that led to the amendments in the course of considering Dr. Hardick's request

for an interim order. I am enclosing a copy of Justice O'Brien's decision with this letter, as

I think you will find it helpful in understanding the sequence of events, and the significant

steps that the CCO took to ensure Council had all relevant information, including feedback

from members and stakeholders, before rnaking its decision.



Correspondence dated November 17,2A23, to Dr. Berman from Dr. Green, CCO president 2 215
In particular, after considering all the evidenee, Justice O'Brien concluded as follows at
paragraph 26 and 39 ofher decision:

The College fully achtowledges that Council's EC began to look into the issue of
the cooling-offperiod after Dr. Hardick conlacted the College's Registrar in
August and September 2022 to express an interest in runningfor Council. The EC
was aware that Dr. Hardick had beenfound to have cornmitted professional
misconduct. This type of issue had not arisen at the College since 1999, u,hen a
Council member had been the subject of a Discipline Committee hearing,

[.,.] Although the process af amending the Bylavt was triggered by Dr. Hardick's
expression of interest, the basis for the review was to ensure the College's
qualification rules complied with best practice. The CoIIege proceeded on an
expedited basis and ultimately Council decided to pass the amendment with
immediate ffict. But it only did so after engaging in consultations with the
profession and public, lhrough which the proposed amendment received broad
support."

In short, the issue before Justice O'Brien was whether CCO acted in the public interest,
which is the essence of its statutory mandate. The court concluded that CCO did act in the
public interest, not only in passing the amendments to the by-laws, but also in concluding
that the amendments should be implernented immediately.

I trust that once you have the opportunity to review Justice O'Brien's decision you will
gain a fuller understanding of the basis for Councilos decision on January 20,2023.

once again, thank you for your interest and feedback regarding the proposed by-law
amendments that I circulated in September 2023, and we look forward to reviewing your
feedback, as well as the feedback from other members and stakeholders. CCO will
continue to review best practices and to carefully consider feedback and advice from
experts in making policy decisions consistent with its role and mandate.

Regards,

fr,e,A&*
Dr. Sarah Green
President, CCO

1

=l

-t



216

CITATION: Hardick v. College of Chiropractors of Ontario,2023 ONSC 1479

DIYISIONAL COURT FILE NO.: 060123

DATE:20230303

SUPERIOR COURT OF'JUSTICE - ONTARIO
DIVISIONAL COURT

RE: BENJAMIN FIARDICK

AND:

COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTORS OF ONTARIO

BEFORE: Justice O'Brien

COUNSEL: D. Cowling and A. Boissonneau-Lehner, for the Applicant

C. Paliare, K. Jones, and D. Rosenbluth, for the Respondent

HEARD: February 17,2A23

Applicant

Respondent

ENDORSEMENT

0verview

lll The moving party Dr. Hardick seeks an interim stay of the operation of a bylaw of the

respondent College of Chiropractors of Ontario (the "College") pending the hearing of his

application for judicial review. The by-law has the effect of disqualifuing Dr. Hardick from
running in the upcoming election to become a member of the College's Council, which is akin to

its board of directors.

l2l In approximately October 2022, after Dr. Hardick had contacted the College to express an

interest in running for Council, the College's Executive Committee ("EC") began considering an

amsndment to its By-Law 6: Election of Council Members (the "Bylaw"). Until the events at issue

in this proceeding, s. 6.9(e) ofthe Bylaw provided that members were ineligible to run for Council

if they had been the subject of a finding of professional misconduct within the three years before

the election. After a number of meetings and a process of consultation, the College decided to

amend the Bylaw to provide that members were ineligible for election to Council if they had been

the subject of a finding of professional misconduct in the preceding six years.

t3l In 2018, Dr. Hardick was the subject of professional discipline by the College's Discipline
Committee. According to the previous version ofthe Bylaw, Dr. Hardick would have been eligible
to run for the upcoming election. However, the amended Bylaw precluded Dr. Hardick's
candidature.



:

I

I

d{
I

I

l

Ij
i

i

=I
l

_l

E

Ix
I-
I
.j

Page:2

t4l Dr. Hardick submits that the College amended the Bylaw specifically to render him
ineligible to stand for election to Council in the 2023 election. In his submission, this constituted
bad faith and an improper purpose. He further submits the Bylaw should be struck on the basis that
it impermissibly purports to have retrospective effect by providing consequences for past conduct.

I5l Dr. Hardick goes on to say that in the absence of a stay, he will suffer irreparable harm, as

he will have been wrongfully denied his right to run for th e 2023 Council election. He submits that
the balance of convenience weighs in his favour given that a stay would simply continue a status
quo that existed for well over 20 years prior to the Bylaw amendment. He has underlaken to
terminate his candidacy and/or resign his seat on Council should he win a seat but fail on the
appl ication for j udicial review.

t6l The deadline for submitting nomination papers for election to Council was the date this
motion was heard, February 17,2023. At the conclusion of argument on the motion, I advised
orally that the stay was denied and Dr. Hardick's motion dismissed, with reasons to follow. I
dismissed the motion for the following reasons.

Analvsis

Testfor Granting a Stay

17) The test regarding whether to grant a stay is set out in RJR-MacDonald Inc. v. Canado
(AttorneyGeneral),U99411 S,C.R.3ll.Ordinarily,themovingpartymustdemonstratethatthere
is a serious issue to be tried; that it will suffer imeparable harm if the stay is not granted; and that
the balance of convenience favours a stay. However, the minimalthreshold at the first step assumes
that the stay will operate as a temporary measure pending the full hearing. In cases where, as a
practical matter, the rights of the parties will be determined by the outcome of the stay motion, the
question becomes whether there is a strong likelihood that the case will succeed on the merits:
Toronto (City) v. Ontario (Attorney General),2018 ONCA 761,142 O.R. (3d) 481, at para. 10.

t8] Dr. Hardick disputes the relevance of the Toronto case. There, the province passed
legislation during a municipal election period to change the ward structure from 47 to 25 wards.
The city successfully challenged the constitutionality of the new legislation in the Superior Court
of Justice. In response to the Attorney General's motion seeking a stay pending appeal, the Court
of Appeal articulated the first part of the stay test as whether there was a strong likelihood that the
appeal would succeed. This more onerous test was necessary because the Court's decision on the
stay could effectively determine whether the election proceeded on the basis of 25 or 47 wards.

t9] Dr. Hardick submits that the case is distinguishable in that there was no way to undo the
municipal election once it occurred. In the current case, he says, it will be possible to reverse a
decision to stay the Bylaw given that, should Dr. Hardick win a seat on Council but be unsuccessful
on judicial review, he has undertaken to resign his Council seat.

ll0] I disagree that Dr. Hardick resigning his seat would effectively "undo" the election. First,
I am not as confident as Dr. Hardick that his judicial review, which has not yet been scheduled,
will be heard and decided quickly enough to avoid a period during which he would be involved in
the College's governance. More importantly, resigning from his seat would not reverse the
election. Although there was a suggestion in the evidence that the second-place candidate might

217



Page:3

be able to assume his seat, the College's bylaws provide that when a seat of an elected Council

member becomes vacant, an election will be held. This would be an entirely new election with
new dynamics. It is unknown, for example, which of the previous candidates or which new

candidates would choose to run. In other words, if Dr. Hardick won his seat and was ultimately

unsuccessful on his judicial review, he likely would have held office for some period although

unqualified to do so and a new election would then need to be held. In these circumstances, the

stay effectively would detcrmine the parties' rights in the pending election. This leads me to apply

the higher standard at the first stage of the stay test.

Is there o strang likelihood the iudicial teview will succeed?

tlll Turning then to the first part of the test, I am unable to find a strong likelihood that the

.iudicial review will succeed. The standard of review applicable to the review of a professional

regulator's bylaw is reasonableness. As the Supreme Court of Canada stated in Green v. Law

Society of Manitoba,2017 SCC 20, 407 D.L.R. (4th) 573, at para.20, in the context of a law

sociefy rule, the rule will be set aside only if it "is one no reasonable body informed by the relevant

factors could have enacted."

Uzl Dr. Hardick has not demonstrated a strong likelihood that the Bylaw will be found to be

unreasonable. Dr. Hardick does not take issue with what the College describes as a "cooling off
period" following a finding of professional misconduct. His position is that it was unreasonable

for the College to make the Bylaw amendment effective immediately. He submits that in
implementing the amendment immediately, the College gave the amendment impermissible

retrospective effect. He also submits that Council's actions demonstrate bad faith and an improper

purpose.

A. Rctrospective Effect

tl3l As explained by the Supreme Court of Canada in Tran v. Canada (Public Safety and

Emergency Preparedness),2017 SCC 50, l20l7l2 S,C.R. 289, atpara.43,the presumption against

retrospectivity is a ruie of statutory interpretation. Its purpose is to protect acquired rights and

prevent a change in the law from attaching new prejudicial consequences to a completed

transaction. The presumption works such that "statutes are not to be construed as having

retrospective operation unless such a construction is expressly or by necessary implication required

by the language of the Act": Tran, at para. 43, quoting from Gustavson Drilling (1964) Ltd'

v. Minister of National Revenlte,llgTTl I s.c.R. 271,1975 CanLII4 (SCC), atp.279.

ll4] However, the presumption exists to ensure laws will apply retrospectively only where the

legislature has clearly signaled that it has weighed the benefits of retrospectivity with its potential

unfairness. Where the legislature signals by express language or necessary implication that it has

turned its mind to the issue of retrospectivity, the presumption does not apply: Tran, at para. 50,

tl5l In this case, I accept, as submitted by the College, that there is a strong likelihood a panel

would flnd that Council expressly engaged with the issue of retrospectivity.

[6] The issue of the Bylaw amendment came before Council at a special meeting held on

January 20, 2023. Eleven of Council's 16 members were present. They voted unanimously to

approve the proposed amendment to the Bylaw.

218



l

i
1

;

l

:
-1

I

l

:

*{

a

I
ri

i

Page:4

117) There was then a debate as to when the amendment should come into effect. Some Council
members took the position that the effective date should be delayed until after the upcomin 92023
elections for Council. Others held the view that an irnmediate effective date was in the public
interest. They reasoned that if it was in the public interest to amend the Bylaw, it was equally in
the public interest to implement the amendments immediately and not wait until after the next
election.

[l 8] Ultimately, Council voted 6-5 in favour of implementing the amendments immediately. Of
Council's 16 members,9 are chiropractors who are elected by their peers in specific electoral
districts andT are public members appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council. All six votes
in favour of immediate implementation came from Council's public members.

[19] The vote as to whether the amendment should be delayed was an express engagement with
the issue of retrospectivity. The only concern with immediate implementation was the question of
fairness to anyone caught by the changes in the 2023 election. Council was aware that the issue of
the Bylaw amendment was triggered by Dr. Hardick's interest in running. Indeed, the package of
material provided to Council members in advance of the meeting included letters from
Dr. Hardick's supporters specifically raising the issue of his disqualification for candidacy should
the amendment be passed immediately. In shofi, there is a strong argument to say that Council,
after debate and some dissent, voted that the amended Bylaw should have retrospective effect and
should capture those who would be impacted retrospectively in the 2023 election.

[20] Dr. Hardick points to a statement in the EC report to Council for the January 20,2023
meeting, which, he submits, provides evidence that Council did not consider the impact of the
amendment on him. The report states: "Consistent with legal advice, Council was €ncouraged to
make its policy decision on a principled basis, and information concerning individual(s) who had
already expressed an interest in running for election was not part of Council's deliberations." The
report goes on to state:

The By-law Amendments do not target any one member. Rather, the By-law
Amendments will affect anyone who, following a full and fair investigation,
hearing, and referral to the discipline committee, has been found to have committed
an act of misconduct or is incompetent as reflected on the COO's public register at
any time up to six years from the finding.

[2ll In my view, this excerpt should be read to say that Council was not targeting Dr. Hardick
to prevent him from running for Council. This does not mean Council was unaware of the possible
retrospective impact of the amended Bylaw.

l22l Dr. Hardick also submits that it was not open to Council to pass a bylaw with retrospective
application where the enabling statuteo the Ilealth Professions Procedural Code (the "Code"),
being Schedule 2 to the Regulated Health Professions Act, l,991, S.O. 1991, c. 18 (the "RHPA"),
does not expressly authorize it to do so.

[23] It goes without saying that delegated legislation must fall within the bounds ofthe authority
provided by the enabling statute, However, the Supreme Court of Canada has repeatedly
emphasized a professional regulator's broad discretion to regulate. ln Green, for example, it

219



Page: 5

compared rules made by a law society to bylaws passed by municipal councils. The Court

emphasized that such bylaws "must reflect the broad discretion provincial legislators have

traditionally accorded to municipalitie s engaged in delegated legislation": atpata.2l, quoting from

Catalyst Paper Corp. v. North Cowichan (District),2012 SCC 2, l20l2l 1 S.C.R. 5, at parc. 79.

The Court further underscored, al para. 22, the professional regulator's "broad discretion to

regulate ... on the basis of a number of policy considerations related to the public interest." See

also Trinity Western University v. Law Society of Upper Canada,2018 SCC 33, [2018] 2 S.C.R.

453,atpara.18.

l24l Here, the College has a duty under s. 3(2) of the Code to serve and protect the public

interest. Further, Council is granted broad powers to pass bylaws relating to the administration and

internal affairs of the College, combined with express authority to pass bylaws regarding

qualifications for members to run for Council, as well as conditions disqualifoing members of
Council. Subsection 94(1) of the Code provides, in relevant part:

94(l) The Councii may make by-laws relating to the administrative and internal

affairs of the College and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the

Council may make by-laws,

(d.1) respecting the election of Council members, including requirements

for members to be able to vote, electoral districts and election recounts;

(d.2) respecting the qualification and terms of office of Council members

who are elected;

(d.3) prescribing conditions disqualifying elected members from sitting on

the Council and governing the removal of disqualified Council members;

t25l In the circumstances of this case, Council expressly passed the Bylaw amendment to serve

and protect the public interest. I will deal more fully below with the allegations that the Collegc

targeted Dr, Hardick with its amendments to the Bylaw. For now, I focus on the evidence the

College relies on to say it was focused on the public interest.

126l The College fully acknowledges that Council's EC began to look into the issue of the

cooling-off period after Dr. Hardick contacted the College's Registrar in August and September

2022 to express an interest in running for Council. The EC was aware that Dr. Hardick had been

found to have committed professional misconduct. This type of issue had not arisen at the College

since 1999, when a Council member had been the subject of a Discipline Committee hearing.

I27l Since 1999, the environment in which the College operates as a regulatory health college

had changed substantially. There had been significant changes to the expectation that regulatory

collcges act in the public interest, including stricter requirements related, for example, to the

publication of information regarding members on the public register. In addition, in 2020, the

Ontario Ministry of Health established annual reporting requirements for all regulated health

220



i

I

't

=
=E
E

II-
==

=
i

:

Page: 6 221
profession colleges using a College Performance Measurement Framework ("CPMF") to measure
and report, in a standardized manner, how they were acting in the public interest. An important
aim of the CPMF was consistency across colleges. The College had been working to improve its
processes and structures, guided by the goals of the CPMF.

[28] In this context, the College's EC considered Dr. Hardick's potential candidacy to raise an
important issue for consideration in the current regulatory environment. During its initial meetings
to discuss the issue triggered by Dr. Hardick's candidacy, the EC received information that a
number of other regulated health colleges had a six-year cooling off period, including the three
largest colleges: the College of Nurses of Ontario, the College of Physicians and Surgeons of
Ontario and the Ontario College of Pharmacists.

1291 The EC came to the view and recommendation that the six-year cooling off period was a
best practice. It reasoned that such a change increased the chances that the candidate would be
running for election to regulate the profession in the public interest rather than to address their
recent interactions with the College. Further, it found the amendment to be in the public interest
because of enhanced public confidence in the College by members of the public who might be
concerned about Council members who had recently been found to have committed professional
misconduct or be incompetent. Finally, the EC was of the view that the amendment reduced the
chance of a candidate, if elected, having a conflict of interest when dealing with issues related to
a recent finding of professional misconduct.

[30] At the same time that it was considering the amendment in dispute, the EC also looked at
other cooling off periods in the bylaws. It recommended an additional amendment so that the six-
year cooling off period would also apply to the appointment of non-Council members to
committees.

t3l] The EC's recommendation came before Council at the November 24,2022 meeting.
Council decided that it was in the public interest to solicit stakeholder feedback regarding the
proposed amendments. Therefore, on December 2,2022, it circulated a request for feedback. The
College received extensive responses to this request, most of which were supportive of the
proposed changes. Among other positive responses, the Ontario Chiropractic Association, which
represents approximately 80% of the College's members, sent a supportive letter. The College also
received some feedback opposing the timing of the changes.

132) Prior to the January 20, 2023 meeting at which Council held its votes, each Council
member received an information package containing the complete set of feedback received during
the consultation process. As set out above, the amendment passed unanimously, though the
decision to implement the changes immediatcly passcd 6-5 with thc public members all voting in
favour of immediate implementation.

[33] In brief, Council passed the amendment with a focus on adhering to best practices in
protecting the public and in the context of a regulatory environment intent on public accountability.
It also expressly considered and voted in favour of the Bylaw's retrospective application.



Page:7

t34l Dr. Hardick has not provided any authority for the proposition that a public regulator is not

intitl"a to pass a bylaw with retrospective application where the bylaw is expressly intended to

protect the public interest and wherc the delegated authority specifically turned its mind to its
ietrospective impact. In view of the College's broad statutory mandate to serve and protect the

publiC, combined with Council's wide bylaw powers, Dr. Hardick has not demonstrated his clairn

bn this point has a strong likelihood of success. Put otherwise, in the circumstances of this case,

Dr. Hardick has not shown a strong likelihood that, on judicial review, a panel of this Court would

find Council's amendment to be outside the range of options available to the College applying a

reasonableness standard.

B. Bad Faithllrnproper Motive

t35l Dr, Hardick also submits that the Bylaw amendment should be quashed on the basis that

Council passed it in bad faith and pursuant to an improper motive. He submits that the College's

claims that it was acting in the public interest constitute a "thin veneer" hiding the real substance

of the matter, which was to target his candidacy. He asks the Coufi to infer bad faith and improper

purposes from factors such as the following: But for the fact of Dr. Hardick having notified the

Coiege's Registrar that he intended to run for ele ction, there would have been no amendment prior

to the current election cycle; the process was accelerated to capture him prior to the current

election; he was the only member affected by the change for the current election; Council did not

apply the same rule to sitting Council members; and there was no urgency to the amendment given

that the College had considered the prior version of the Bylaw to be in the public interest for the

previous 20 years.

t36] Bad faith connotes a lack of candour, frankness and impartiality, lt includes arbitrary or

unfair conduct and the exercise of power to serve private purposes at the expense of the public

interest: Equity Waste Management of Canada Corp v. Halton Hills (lown), 1997 CanLll 2742

(Ont.C.A.),35O.R. (3d)32l,atpara.6l.Bylawsalsomaybesetasidewheretheyarepassedfor
an improper purpose, including a purpose collateral to the one for which the power to make the

bylaw was granted : Hummel Properttes Inc. v. N iagara-onlhe Lake (fown),2022 ONCA 737 , at

ptara. 26) Markham v. Sandwich South (fownship ofl, I 998 CanLII 5312 (Ont. C.A.), at para.24'

I37l Dr. Hardick faces a heavy burden in seeking to demonstrate bad faith on the part of the

majority of Council members: Friends of Lansdowne Inc. v. Ottawa (City),2012 ONCA 273,114

O.R. (3d) l,atpara.79.

t38] Dr. Hardick has not identified any private purpose or other personal reason that the public

members of Council voted in favour of the immediate implementatiotl of the Bylaw. Indeed, he

acknowledged on cross-examination that he was not aware of any public member of Council

having a bias against him, nor was he able to identifu any motivation against him.

t39l I do not find a strong likelihood that on judicial review this Court would find the College

acted for a purpose other than the public interest. Although the process of amending the Bylaw

was triggered by Dr. Hardick's expression of interest, the basis for the review was to ensure the

College\ qualification rules complied with best practice. The College proceeded on an expedited

basis ind uitimately Council decided to pass the amendment with imrnediate effect. But it only did

222



l

-
a
II
I
I

=

-!
=i=

Page: 8

so after engaging in consultations with the profession and public, through which the proposed
amendment received broad support.

[40] With respect to the argument that the amendment did not potentially disqualiff sitting
Council members, there is a distinction between the retroactive and retrospective application of a
bylaw. Retrospectivity changes the future legal effect of past events whereas retroactivity changes
the legal effect of past events as if the law were different when those events occurred: Ruth
Sullivan, Sullivan on the Construction of Statutes, Tth ed (lvfarkham: LexisNexis, 2022), at $ 25.02
[4] and 25 .05 [ 1 ]; Gustavson, at p. 279 . The fact that Council did not give the Bylaw retroactive
effect does not detract from its ability to give the Bylaw retrospective effect. Sitting Council
members are in a different position than those running for election. To disqualifu them would mean
undoing the results of an election ex posl fccfo. Moreovero there is no evidence that any current
Council member would have been captured by such a rule.

t4ll Overall, in my view, a panel of this Court on judicial review would likely interpret the
College as having acted in the public interest in a manner that impacted a particular member,
Dr. Hardick, but not with the purpose of doing so. Therefore, in my view, Dr. Hardick has not
demonstrated a strong likelihood that, on judicial review, the Bylaw would be found unreasonable.

Mll Dr. Hardick saffer irueparable hsrm?

[42] I accept that Dr. Hardick will suffer irreparable harm if prevented from running in the
election. The next election for the seat on Council in his electoral district will be in2026. By then,
the finding of professional misconduct against him will be sufficiently outdated that the Bylaw
will not prevent him from running. Still, I do not consider the oppoftunity to run in the next election
to obviate the three-year wait and losl opportunity to parlicipate in the current governance of the
College.

Does the balance ofconveniencefavour a stay?

l43l Overall, the balance of convenience weighs in favour of denying a stay. When a coult is
considering a request for a stay suspending the operation of a validly enacted law, the law is
presumed to be in the public good. In asse ssing the balance of convenience, therefore, the motions
judge must proceed on the assumption that the law, or bylaw in this case, is directed to the public
interest and serves a valid public purpose: Harper v. Canada (Attorney General),2000 SCC 57, 2
S,C.R. 764, al para.9; RJR-MacDonold, at pp.348-49.

[44] This presumed public interest must be weighed against Dr. Hardick's assertion of his own
rights. I have found that he stands to suffer irreparable harm ifhe is prevented from running in the
election. That said, and although not a cure for the harm he will suffer, he will have the opporfunity
to run again in the next election. Meanwhile, if the election proceeds on an invalid basis, this must
be presumed to harm the public interest as a whole. Practically speaking, as I have said above, the
election cannot simply be undone by Dr. Hardick's undertaking to resign. Requiring that an
entirely new election be held, potentially with new candidates, in my view constitutes a greater
harm than requiring Dr. Hardick to wait for the next election cycle,

223



Page:9

224
Disnosition

t45] Therefore, as indicated at the conclusion of the hearing, the motion is dismissed.

Dr. Hardick shall pay costs to the College in the agreed-upon amount of $20,000.

O'Brien J

Date: March3,2023



Joel Friedman |TEM 3.1 1 225
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Krista RYan "t^'+r r

Friday, November 17,2023 1 1:17 AM

cco.info
Proposed changes

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

1. A number By-taws are being changed to be more inctusive and neutrat, changing pronouns from her/his to their or
member. I am opposed to att of it. lt's a stippery slope.

2. The way I understand it, with a Nomination Committee there are no longer any nominations altowed from the ftoor. I

am opposed to the President of the Council being part of this committee as the President could have too much sway

over the Councit.

3. By-taw changes to By-law 6.9 deating with "cooling off period" as it pertains to someone's etigibitity to run for
Counci[ seeks to change the period from 3 to 6 years. This is a change that wilt obstruct and exctude the most
experienced, enthusiastic and committed members of our profession from continuing their service to the profession.

This amendment is ctearly not in the public interest. A 3 year cooting off period across the board is more than
adequate. A criminal charqe shoutd NOT require a cooting off period. A criminat conviction, depending on the nature of
the crime may be different lF the crime is such that it has significance to an individuat's practice or their abitity to
serve on Council. Examptes of this are physical or sexual assautt, robbery, fraud and the tike where a person's trust is
in serious question. Convictions such as stunt driving, impaired driving etc are different and shoutd be treated as such.

They have no bearing on a person's capacity on Council. With regards to someone who is in a titigious situation with the
CCO, I betieve that someone in this position shoutd not be prevented from running for Councit. I understand we stitt live
in a democracy and shoutd have the abitity to make actionabte change without restricting service.

4. I support the amendment which addresses the type of vote needed to pass changes to By-taws. I support a 2/3
majority vote as opposed to a simpte majority vote to change By-[aws"

Warm Regards,

Dr. Krista Ryan
M: t^



Joel Friedman 226
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dr. Glenn <4"^t^

Friday, November 17,2023 10:52 AM
cco.info
CCO PROPOSED BY-LAW AMENDMENTS

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

1. A number By-taws are being changed to be more inclusive and neutral, changing pronouns from her/his to their or
member. I am opposed to att of it. lt's a slippery slope.

2. The way I understand it, with a Nomination Committee there are no longer any nominations allowed from the floor. I

am opposed to the President of the Council being part of this committee as the President coutd have too much sway

over the Counci[.

3. By-taw changes to By-taw 6.9 deating with "cooting off period" as it pertains to someone's etigibitity to run for
Council seeks to change the period from 3 to 6 years. This is a change that witt obstruct and exclude the most
experienced, enthusiastic and committed members of our profession from continuing their service to the profession.

This amendment is ctearty not in the public interest. A 3 year cooting off period across the board is more than
adequate. A criminal charqe shoutd NOT require a cooling off period. A criminat conviction, depending on the nature of
the crime may be different lF the crime is such that it has significance to an individuat's practice or their abitity to
serve on Council. Examples of this are physical or sexual assautt, robbery, fraud and the tike where a person's trust is
in serious question. Convictions such as stunt driving, impaired driving etc are different and should be treated as such.

They have no bearing on a person's capacity on Councit. With regards to someone who is in a litigious situation with the
CCO, I betieve that someone in this position shoutd not be prevented from running for Council. I understand we stitt tive
in a democracy and shoutd have the abitity to make actionabte change without restricting service.

4. I support the amendment which addresses the type of vote needed to pass changes to By-taws. I support a 2/3
majority vote as opposed to a simple majority vote to change By-laws.

Sincerely,

Dr. Glenn Lang

box 1030 - 920 Yonge St

Walkerton, Ontario
NOG 2VO

t't tt t., ,, "'

1



Joel Friedman 227
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Gord Burkholder <3^" '

Friday, November 17,2023 9:59 PM

Joel Friedman

Feedback - Bylaw amendments circulated September 19,2023 (2 attachments)

1 Ontario Regulatory colleges cooling off chart.pdf; 1 Ontario Regulatory colleges

voting procedures (5).pdf

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

November 17,2023

College of Chiropractors of Ontario

Attn: Joel Friedman-Deputy Registrar
Ms Jo-Ann Willson - Registrar
Dr. Sarah Green-President
Executive Committee
Quality Assu rance Committee
Council members

Re: Feedback - Bylaw amendments circulated September 19,2023

I would like to submit my feedback regarding the recent proposed by-law amendments. I ask that
my feedback be distributed to all council members and taken under consideration. These are my
opinions and are submitted in good faith. I echo the sentiment of many of my peers that the
feedback portal is grossly inadequate to provide quality feedback. I urge the council to look into a
new feedback system.

Bvlaw 6
Extending the cooling off periods from 3 to 6 years for an individualwho has served as a director on
other chiropractic boards is unnecessary and excessive. Just a few years ago there was no cooling
off period and the council functioned extremely well. Then a one year cooling off period came into
effect which seemed a reasonable addition to the election bylaws. But then it was followed by 3
years...now 6 years? Where does this end? Members that have served on other boards and
organizations bring a wealth of knowledge and skill to the table. By excluding people for 6 years we
prevent highly competent, committed people from serving on council. ln some cases, depending on
the date of resignation and the election cycle, this could exclude a member for almost 9 years. I

wonder if this same exclusionary rule applies to the appointed public members? This is certainly not
consistent with the majority of Colleges. A review of other college bylaws demonstrates that no other
college requires 6 years(see attachment). The proposed amendment appears excessive. lt is not in
the public interest.

The Bylaw 6 I (0 prohibits a member who resigns from running for 6 years and 4 months. I hope this
amendment is an error because it is not consistent and the optics are not good. Why the extra 4

months? lt appears it may be targeting specific individuals who resigned from council. lf the college
is targeting individuals then the council should be honest and transparent about this, and let the

1



I
i

public and membership decide if this is appropriate. As stated in the President's Message "...when
examining our by-laws we should not just ask if something is technically permrbstble within
the relevant governing statutes, but also whether it is the right thing to do," ln my opinion
targeting specific individuals is unethical, possibly unconstitutional and optically bad for our
profession. I personally believe the majority of members and the public would feel the
same. Consider someone resigning from council for health reasons, to look after a sick relative, or for
maternity leave? Should they be excluded from returning to council for 6 years? ls this ethical? A
review of other college bylaws shows that no other college prohibits for 6 years after
resignation. This amendment is not in the public interest.

228
Excluding a member who has been involved in litigation with the college for 6 years is not
appropriate. Members must have their right to challenge the college preserved. lt is a
fundamental right. ls a discipline hearing or an appeal to HPARB considered litigation? This bylaw is
very vague and there are numerous scenarios that must be considered. lf a member successfully
wins the appeal because the college was in error, should they be excluded from running for
council?There are simply too many scenarios that could be interpreted as "litigation" leaving this open
to interpretation and legal challenges. A review of other colleges shows that only 3 colleges use 6
years for this rule, the majority are silent or state "if currently involved in proceedings". This
amendment as drafted is not in the public interest.

Excluding a member for 6 years after being charged with a criminal offence may be inappropriate and
excessive in some cases. ln Canada an individual is innocent until proven guilty. A charge does not
equate to guilt. Also the nature of the criminal act should be taken into account.The majority are
either silent on this issue or evaluate each situation to determine suitability. I believe the latter would
be the appropriate amendment. For these reasons I believe this proposed bylaw amendment, as
drafted, is not in the public interest.

Nom i nation comm ittee/president
The president should not be allowed to sit on the nomination committee for internal elections for the
same reason presidents generally don't vote (except to break a tie). The rationale for this (Robert's
rules of order) is that the president has significant influence over the council. Members will often side
with the president because they are in a position of authority and they are usually
"popular". Nominations should be based on competency. Popularity is not in the public interest.
When did the CCO start using a nomination committee? lt is my understanding that, in the past,
nominations always came from the floor. When did this change?

Bvlaw 8.8 Simple maioritv
It is interesting that the college is applying bylaw 8.8, a simple majority, to amend bylaws. I am
absolutely perplexed that the CCO thinks the simple majority is the appropriate rule to
apply. Robert's rules of order specifies that a 213 majority is required to amend a bylaw. The
rationale for this is that a simple majority could allow the organization to be hijacked by a small group
with ulterior motives. Doesn't it seem odd that a 213 majority vote is required to remove a chair or
president, but a simple majority can be used to rewrite bylaws thus changing the rules that govern the
entire organization? Robert's Rules of Order is the gold standard and has been used by nonprofits,
corporations, regulatory bodies etc. since 1876. The majority of Colleges currently require a 213
majority vote to pass a bylaw amendment (See attached chart). The CCO appears to be the only
college that does not specify how it amends bylaws. lt is my opinion that the college needs to clarify
how bylaw amendments are adopted. lt is in the public interest that a 213 majority vote be required to
amend all current and future bylaws.

2

Recent council package



229
When reviewing the executive committee report in the public package I noticed somethtng extremely
concerning. lt states that " Council is not required by the RHPA to circulate many of these by'
law amendments,.." While this may be true, we have years of precedent that conflict with this
statement. I have been a member since 1995. To my knowledge, until recent years, all by-law
amendments (both minor and major) were circulated for feedback. The feedback was considered and
the document was edited and recirculated if needed. This allowed for the best possible document to
be created. lt was transparent and done in the spirit of self regulation. Circulation and feedback is

also in alignment with CCO's core values of collaboration, respect and transparency. To not circulate
shows disrespect to the public, the profession and the self regulatory process. I also noticed this
statement'. "l anticipate the following recommendation at the November 23,2023 Council
meeting: That Council approve the bylaw amendmenfs as circulated." Feedback is not due until
November 19,2023. Are we to assume that the council is not going to take all relevant feedback into
consideration? ls circulation and feedback viewed by council as just a formality? This is not
appropriate and not in the public interest. All relevant feedback should be taken into account before a

bylaw is amended. ln some cases a bylaw amendment should be rejected, in other cases it may
require editing and recirculation before it is adopted. To think that 16 council members can possibly
think of all the possible ramifications of a bylaw change is unrealistic. This is unlikely to produce the
best possible document. I urge the council to give Circulation and feedback the respect it

deserves. As stated in the President's message "a regulatory system is not just supported by
formal rules, but also by norms, besf practices and, of equal importance, community
expectations. Ihrb ,s why when examining our by-laws we should not just ask if something is
technically permissible within the relevant governing statutes, but also whether it is the right
thing to do." Providing circulation and giving due consideration to all relevant feedback is "the
norm". lt is in the public interest and in alignment with the CCO's core values statement. While it is
not mandatory, it is "the right thing to do." lt is in the public interest.

ln the past, bylaw changes were rare and usually came about due to changes in government
legislation or simply to clarify wording issues. More recently there has been an
unprecedented number of bylaw amendments. I understand the need for consistency with other
colleges and the CPMF. However, many recent bylaw changes do not align with the majority of
colleges and have nothing to do with the CPMF. ln some cases they have an appearance of being
driven by internal politics and/or agendas. The optics of this are not good for our profession. I

believe the CCO needs to revisit its bylaw amendment procedures and ensure that they align with the
core values of lntegrity, Respect, Collaboration, and Transparency. Circulation and feedback is a
vital component of the self regulatory process. lt yields the best possible documents that are likely to
stand the test of time. lt is important that the college stays in alignment with best practices and the
majority of Colleges. This is in the public interest.

Respectfully yours,

Gordon Burkholder D.C.
Member in good standing since

3



230

COOLING OFF PERIODS FROM ALL 26 REGULATORY COLLEGES in ONTARIO

'Gooling Off'
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory

colleges

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee ofan
educational
institution

after being
an employee
of the
College

aner 9
consecutive
years on
Council

after discipline
decision

After guilty ot
Driminal
offence

after license
revoked or
suspended

After
being
disqualifi
ed from
Council

After resigning
from Council

After litigation
or other legal
proceedings
against the
College or
members ot
Council

College of
Audiologists
and Speech-
Language
Pathologists of
Ontario

1 year year 2 months 6 years silent years
except for
nonpayment of
dues

3 years silent silent

College of
Chiropodists
and Podiatrists
of Ontario

1 year silent 5 years 3 years si lent 6 years
-except for
nonpayment of
dues

3 years 3 years except if
resigned with
permission

silent

College of
Dental
Hygienists of
Ontario

I yeat 1 year 1 year 6 years 3 years silent 3 years silent 1 year
afler being part
of a legal
oroceeding
against the
:olleoe

College of
Dental
Technologists
of Ontario

1 year 1 year 1 2 months 3 years silent 6 years
- except for
nonpayment of
dues

3 years silent silent

Royal College
of Dental
Surgeons of
Ontario

3 years 6 years 5 years never never
-has an
Elisibilily
Commiltee to
evaluate

silent silent silent never

College of
Denturists of
Ontario

1 year Not current
employee

3 years 3 years silenl 6 years 6 years silent current
proceedings

College of
Dietitians of
Ontario

3 years 2 years 3 years never never 5 years
.except for
.tonpayment of
Cues

3 years silent current
proceedings

College of
Homeopaths of
Onterio

Agrees lo resign
before taking
ifflce

2 years silent 3 years silent 5 years 3 years silent silent

College of
Kinesiologists
of Ontario

years 3 years 3 years 3 years a criminal
finding
relevant to

silent 3 years 3 years

'other than for
health or personal

silent



231
:

=i

=E
IIi
=-1

l

i1
-

the
registrant's
ability to
practise the
profession

reasons acceptable to
Council

'Gooling Off
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory

colleges

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
instltrltion

after being
an employee
ofthe
College

after 9
consecutive
yeals on
Council

after dlsclpline
decision

Ater guilty of
Driminal
offence

after llcense
revoked or
suspended

After
being
disqualifi
ed from
Gouncil

After resigning from
Council

After litigation
or other legal
proceedings
dgainst the
College or
members of
Council

College of
Massage
Therapists of
Ontario

years 2yearc silent 6 years guilty of an

offence that is

relevant to
thelr
suitability to
serve

6 years
-if related to
discipline order

6 years silent silent

College of
Medical
Laboratory
Technologists
of Ontario

12 months 12 months 12 months silent silent 6 years
- except for
nonpayment of
dues

5 years silent 6 years

College of
Medical
Radiation and
lmaging
Technolooists

12 months silent silent 3 years silent 6 years silent silent silent

College of
Midwives of
Ontario

12 months Cant be
current
employee

silent 3 years silent 6 years
-except for
nonpayment of
dues

3 years silent silent

College of
Naturopaths of
Ontario

2 years 2 years silent 3 years PfloT
conviction or
current
charoes

6 years
.exc€pt for
nonpayment of
dues

3 years silenl currenl

College of
Nurses of
Ontario

Resign before
nominalion
deadline

Resign
before
nominatlon
deadline

3 years 3 years silent 6 years
.except for
nonpayment of
dues

3 years 16 months silent

College of
Occupatlonal
Therapists of
Ontario

3 years 6 years 3 years 6 years Finding of guilt
relevant to
suitability to
practi ce

silent 6 years 3 years currenl

College of
opticians of
Ontario

3 years 3 years 3 years 6 years silent 0 years
"except for
nonpayment of
Cues

6 years silent 6 years



232

College of
Optometrists of
Ontario

Resign if elected silent silent Current proceeding silent silent 6 years for
Council
3 year to
committee
S

silent silenl

Ontario
College of
Pharmacists

3 years silent 3 years No current finding current 6 years 6 years sileni :urrent

'Gooling OfF
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory

colleges

after being a
director of an
association
ot
employee of an
educational
institution

after being
an employee
ofthe
College

affer 9
consecutive
years on
Council

after discipline
decision

Afrer guilty of
criminal
offence

after license
revoked or
suspended

After
being
disqualifi
ed from
Council

Afier tesigning from
Council

After litigauon
or other legal
proceedings
against the
College or
members of
lnrrncil

College of
Physicians and
Surgeons of
Ontario

1 year 5 years never silenl silent 6 years 5 years 5 years
related to a proposed

disqualification

silent

College of
Physiotherapisl
s of Ontario

12 months 12 months 1 yeat 6 years relevant to
the
Registrant's

suitability to
serve as a

Cou ncillor

silent years silent :urrent

College of
Psychologists
of Ontario

1 year 1 year silenl 2 yeats 2/3 of Council
vole to
disqualify

5 years silent silent silenl

College of
Registered
Psychotherapis
ts of Ontario

1 year 1 2 months silent 3 years opinion of
Council, is of
such a nature
that warrants
disqualificatio
n

years
'except for
ronpaymenl of
lues

years silent 5 years
after being part
cf a legal
proceeding
against the
college

College of
Respiratory
Therapists of
Ontario

currenl 12 months silent 6 years offence
relevant to
their
suitability to
be licensed

silent 6 years silent silent

College of
Traditional
Chinese
Medicine and
Acupuncturists
of Ontario

years 1 year 3 years 6 years in the opinion
of Council, is

of such a

nature that
wa rrants
disqu alificatio
n

years years 3 years current



233

:
=E
IIt
I
!

COOLING OFF PERIODS BEING RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL BY CCO EXECUTIVE (compared to other Colleges)

'Cooling Off'
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory

colleges

afrer being e
dlrector of an
assoclatlon
ot
employee of an
educatlonal
lnstitutlon

after belng
an employee
ofthe
College

afrer 9
consecutive
years on
Council

after dlscipline
declsion

After gullty
of
Drimlnal
offence

afrer llcense
revoked or
suspended

After
being
disqualifi
ed from
Council

After reslgnlng
from Councll

After liugatlon
or other legal
proceedlngs
agalnst the
College or
members of
Council

College of
Chiropractors

of Ontario

Proposed
Cooling Off

requirements

Currently 3 years

Proposing to
make 6 years

NO other college
requires 6 years

All other Colleges
require 0-3 years

Currently
3 years

Proposing to
make 6 years

ONLY 3
Colleges
requires 5-6
years

All other
Colleges
require 0-3
years

3 years

No change

Most
Colleges
require 0-3
years

2 colleges
require
5 years

I Colleges
are silent

'l college is
never

years

Just amended from 3
years in Jan 2023

10 Colleges requires
6 or more years

13 Colleges require 3
years or less

2 Colleges are silent

Currently
none

Proposing to
make a 6
years

NO olher
college
requires 6
years

12 Colleges
are silent

I Colleges
evaluate
suitability to
practice and
whether it
warrants
disqualificatio
n

2 Colleges
are never

3 Colleges
unclear and
rrniorre

years

Just amended from
3 years in Jan
2023

18 Colleges
requires 6 years

most say "except
for nonpayment of
dues"

7 Colleges are
silent

years

Just
amended
from 3
years in
Jan ?O23

13
Colleges
requires
3 years

I Colleges
requires 5-
6 years

3 Colleges
are silent

Currently
3 years
mths

and 4

Proposing to make 6
years and 4 months

NO other college
requires 6 years

ONLY 4 Colleges
requires 3 years

19 Colleges are silent

1 College requires
5 years

1 College requires
16 months

Currently none

Proposing to
make a 6 years

ONLY 3
Colleges
requires 6 years

7 Colleges only
if involved in
currenl
proceedings

1 College
requires
year

1

14 Colleges are
silent



234

Summarv of Votine Procedures used by Ontario Reeulatorv Colleges

CCO's Bvlaw Clause 8.8: Unless otherwise required by law or by-law, every question which properly comes before the

Council may be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by council members, and, if there is an equal

number of votes on a question, the chair may cast a deciding vote.

Ontario
Regulatory

college

Year
created

Has a
Simple Majority
votlng clause
(CGO Bylaw 8.8)

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

Reguired votes
to remove from
a posltion on
CounclYcommltt
ee

President votes Rules used or referenced

0r Other unlque clauses

College of
Chiropractors of
Ontario

1 991 Yes (see above)

2023 Council
applied this clause
lo Bylaw changes in
January 2023

CCO did not apply
this clause to Bylaw
emendments in
2009 or 2015-16

Silent

(no specific clause
cr specific requirements
isted)

Robert's Rules of order
specifically referenced
in CCO's Rules of
Council.

2/3 of Council Only to break
the tie

Robert's Rules of Order

Ontario
Regulatory

college

Year
created

llas a
Slmple MaJority
yoting clause
same/slmllar to
CCO Bvlaw 8.8

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

Required votes
to remove from
a position on
Council/commil
tee

President votes Rules used or referenced

Or Other unlque clauses

College of
Audiologists and
Speech-Language
Pathologists of
Ontario

1 991 Yes
-noi used to change
bylaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Never Bourinot's Rules of Order

College of
Chiropodists and
Podiatrists of Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2i3 of Council silent
ln the event of a
tie vote, the motion
is defeated

Sturgis - The Standard Code oi
Parliamentary Procedure

College of Dental
Hygienists of Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Gouncil silent Robert's Rules of Order



235

II
I

-:
l

I

I--

Ontario
Regulatory

college

Year
created

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
samelsimilar to
GCO Bvlaw 8.8

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

Required votes
to remove from
a position on
Councillcommil
tee

President votes Parliamentary Rules used
or referenced

Other unique clauses

College of Dental
Technologists of
Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Yes Robert's Rules of Order

Royal College of
Dental Surgeons of
Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
siated

2/3 of Council Yes The Standard Code of Parliamentary
Proced u re

College of Denturists
of Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

Majority of
Council

Only to break
lhe tie

Robert's Rules of Order

College of Dietitians
of Ontario

199'1 Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council silent determined by the chair or presiding officer
of such meeting in accordance with the
rules of order that the Board of Directors
adopts from time to time.

College of
Homeopaths of
Ontario

2007 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

Simple majority explicitly
stated

silent Yes Robert's Rules of Order

College of
Kinesiologists of
Ontario

2007 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

Simple majority explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Yes Robert's Rules of Order

College of Massage
Therapists of Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2i3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Only to break
lhe tie

None referenced

College of Medical
Laboratory
Technologists of
Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Only to break
the tie

The Board of Directors shall set or adopt
such rules of order that it deems
appropriate to govern and guide the
conduct of its meetines

College of Medical
Radiation and
lmaging
Technolooists

1 991
updated
2017

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Bourinot's Rules of
Order
(2/3 majority required)

silent No second vote
motion defeated

Bourinot's Rules of Order

College of Midwives
of Ontario

199 1 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Councll Yes None referenced

College of
Naturopaths of
Ontario

2007 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

Simple majority explicitly
stated

2i3 of Council Yes Robert's Rules of Order

College of Nurses of
Ontario

4 00{ Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council No American lnstitute of Parliamentarians'
Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure



236

Ontario
Regulatory

college

Year
created

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
same/similar to
CCO bvlaw 8-8

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

Required votes
to remove from
a position on
Council/commit
lee

President votes Rules used or referenced

Or Other unique clauses

College of
Occupational
Therapists of Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

2i3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Only to break
the tie

such rules of order as it deems appropriate

to govern the conduct of each Board

meeting
College of opticians
cf Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

silent No second vote
motion defeated

Robert's Rules of Order

College of
Optometrists of
Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Special resolution
-defaults to Roberts
Rules in Bylaws

2/3 of Council No second vote
motion defeated

Robert's Rules of Order

Ontario College of
Pharmacists

1991 Yes
.not used to change
bylaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Yes
with additional
vote to break
the tie

None referenced
The Board may, from time to time, set or
adopt Rules of Order to guide the conduct
of Board meetinss.

College of Physicians
and Surgeons of
Ontario

1 991 Vac

-not used to change
bvlaws

Wainberg's Society
Meetings Rules of Order

2/3 of Council silent Wainberg's Society Meetings Rules of Order

College of
Physiotherapists of
Ontario

1 991 Yes
.not used to change
bvlaws

Simple majority explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council silent Kerr and King's Procedures

College of
Psychologists of
Ontario

1 991 Yes
.not used to change
bvlaws

Keesey's Modern
Parliamentary
Procedures

2/3 of Council silent Keesey's Modern Parliamentary Procedures

College of Registered
Psychotherapists of
Ontario

2007 Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

Simple majority explicitly
stated

2/3 of Council Yes Robert's Rules of Order

College of
Respiratory
Therapists of Ontario

1 991 Yes
-not used to change
oylaws

2/3 of Council explicitly
stated

silent No Robert's Rules of Order

fhe Nomination Committee will consist of at
least trivo (2) members of Council who are not
running for election to the Executive
Committee, at least one of whom shall be a

public member and at least one of whom shall

be a professional member

College of Traditional
Chinese Medicine
and Acupuncturists of
Ontario

2006 Yes
-not used to change
oylaws

Simple majority explicitly
stated

Simple majority No second vote
motion defeated

Robert's Rules of Order



Joel Friedman

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

ieff Winchestev
Saturday, November 18,2023 9:30 AM

Joel Friedman

Feedback

237

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

I have always assumed that councils and boards were non-biased and fair in the their assessment of the responsibility

they carry out. I understand it is likely a thankless job in many ways. I do appreciate the work required.

However, when a board becomes weaponized then is the public really being protected? The board says "fiduciary " and I

hear "gaslighting ".

My biggest concern I would like to give feedback on is what I see as arbitrary number decisions. ljust don't see where

these numbers are coming from. lf you had to defend these in a court of law then could you? I feelthe changes in time

frames have an absolute agenda attached to them.

Like lstated earlier, I used to think boards and councils were unbiased. Well in 20231don't believe in that anymore.

I see arbitrary numbers like 6 years AND FOUR MONTHS, three years to SIX YEARS and a SIMPLE MAJORITY vs2/3

majority to make amendments. lf you wantto pretend there is no bias there at least should be an ILLUSION of that in

the policies. I don't see that, in fact to me it appears the opposite. These changes seem like personal attacks on

members trying to run for the board- or at least the argument could be made for that. This is the opposite of

tra nspa re ncy.

lf you can attack one chiropractor with bad policy then where does it stop and who is next? This has nothing to do with

protecting the public.

There is no ILLUSION (anymore)- it is clear these are personal attacks.

Changing majority votes, years you can run since you have had an encounter with the CCO is not protecting the public' lt

appears to be an agenda to change, hide and rewrite the thankless work of previous boards and their though out views.

I truly think this needs to be cautiously considered because the optics of these changes could easily put a eye smile on

any opposing lawyers face.

Rega rd s,

De Jeff Winchester
It's not a problem with your BACK, it's a problem with your NERVOUS SYSTEM

1



Joel Friedman

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Joel Friedman; Green Sarah;Jo-Ann Willson

Additional Feedback

1 Ontario Regulatory colleges cooling off chart.docx; '1 Ontario Regulatory colleges

voting procedures.docx

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments

unless you have verified the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon,
Please include the following charts in addition to feedback I provided on Thursday of this week. These charts are for all

Council members eyes both elected and appointed.

Thank you for your attention to this.

M. Whitney,
D.C.

1



CoollNG oFF PERIODS FROM ALL 26 REGULATORY COLLEGES in oNTARlo 239
After litigation or
other legal
proceedings
against the
College or
members of
Council
silent

silent

1 year
after being part of a
legal proceeding
against the college

silent

never

current
proceedings

current
proceedings

silent

silent

After resigning
from Council

silent

3 years except if
resigned with
permission

silent

silent

silent

silent

silent

silent

3 years

- other than for
health or personal
reasons acceptable
to Council

After being
disqualified
from Gouncil

3 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

silent

6 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

after license
revoksd or
suspended

6 years
except for
nonpayment
of dues

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues

silent

6 years
- except for
nonpayment
of dues

silent

6 years

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
6 years

silent

After guilty of
criminal offence

silent

silent

3 years

silent

never
-has an Eligibility
Committee to evaluate

silent

never

silent

a criminal finding
relevant to the
registrant's ability to
practise the
profession

after
discipline
decision

6 years

3 years

6 years

3 years

never

3 years

never

3 years

3 years

after 9
consecutive
years on
Council

12 months

5 years

1 year

12 months

5 years

3 years

3 years

silent

3 years

after being
an employee
of the
Gollege

1 year

silent

1 year

1 year

6 years

Not current
employee

2 years

2 years

3 years

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
institution
1 year

1 year

1 year

1 year

3 years

1 year

3 years

Agrees to resign
before taking
office

3 years

'Gooling Off'
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory
colleges

College of
Audiologists
and Speech-
Language
Pathologists of
Ontario
College of
Chiropodists
and Podiatrists
of Ontario
College of
Dental
Hygienists of
Ontario
College of
Dental
Technologists
of Ontario
RoyalCollege
of Dental
Surgeons of
Ontario
College of
Denturists of
Ontario
College of
Dietitians of
Ontario

College of
Homeopaths of
Ontario
College of
Kinesiologists
of Ontario



, .- ,1.1 ,. ,ir!.,]. .,. I r Lllll -.. - l

silent

6 years

silent

silent

current

silent

current

6 years

silent

current

After resigning
from Council

silent

silent

silent

silent

silent

16 months

3 years

silent

silent

silent

After being
disqualified
from Council

6 years

5 years

silent

3 years

3 years

3 years

6 years

6 years

6 years for
Council
3 year to
committees
6 years

after license
revoked or
suspended

6 years
-if related to
discipline
order

6 years
- except for
nonpayment
of dues

6 years

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
silent

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues
silent

6 years

After guilty of
criminal offence

guilty of an offence
that is relevant to
their suitability to
serve
silent

silent

silent

Prior conviction or
current charges

silent

Finding of guilt
relevant to suitability to
practice

silent

silent

current

after
discipline
decision

6 years

silent

3 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

6 years

6 years

Current
proceeding

No current
finding

after 9
consecutive
years on
Council

silent

12 months

silent

silent

silent

3 years

3 years

3 years

silent

3 years

after being
an employee
of the
Gollege

2 years

12 months

silent

Cant be
current
employee

2 years

Resign
before
nomination
deadline
6 years

3 years

silent

silent

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
institution
2 years

12 months

12 months

12 months

2 years

Resign before
nomination
deadline

3 years

3 years

Resign if elected

3 years

'Gooling Off
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory
colleges

College of
Massage
Therapists of
Ontario

College of
Medical
Laboratory
Technologists
of Ontario
College of
Medical
Radiation and
lmaging
Technoloqists
College of
Midwives of
Ontario

College of
Naturopaths of
Ontario

College of
Nurses of
Ontario

College of
Occupational
Therapists of
Ontario
College of
opticians of
Ontario

College of
Optometrists of
Ontario

Ontario
College of
Pharmacists

litigation or
legal

proceedings 
-

nst the
or

bers of 
,

240



After litigation or
other legal
proceedings
against the
College or
members of
Council

current

silent

6 years
after being part of a
legal proceeding
against the college

silent

current

After resigning
from Council

5 years
related to a
proposed
disqualification
silent

silent

silent

silent

3 years

After being
disqualified
from Council

5 years

3 years

silent

3 years

6 years

3 years

after license
revoked or
suspended

6 years

silent

6 years

6 years
-except for
nonpayment
of dues

silent

6 years

After guilty of
criminal offence

silent

relevant to the
Registrant's suitability
to serve as a

Councillor
2/3 of Council vote to
disqualify

opinion of Council, is

of such a nature that
warrants
disq ua lificatio n

offence relevant to
their suitability to be
licensed

in the opinion of
Council, is of such a

nature that warrants
disq u a lification

after
discipline
decision

silent

6 years

2years

3 years

6 years

6 years

after 9
consecutive
years on
Council

never

I year

silent

silent

silent

3 years

after being
an employee
of the
College

5 years

12 months

1 year

12 months

12 months

1 year

after being a
director of an
association
or
emptoyee of an
educational
institution
1 year

12 months

1 year

I year

current

2 years

'Cooling Off'
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory
colleges

College of
Physicians and
Surgeons of
Ontario
College of
Physiotherapist
s of Ontario

College of
Psychologists
of Ontario
College of
Registered
Psychotherapis
ts of Ontario

College of
Respiratory
Therapists of
Ontario
College of
Traditional
Chinese
Medicine and
Acupuncturists
of Ontario

silent

241



...*..r r 1r IilEnIlllilL-.!L _li1, -t_L .,ru -..-.- ^...

COOLING OFF PERIODS BEING RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL BY CCO EXECUTIVE (compared to other Colleges)

After resigning
from Council

lAfter litigation or
lother legal
lproceedings
lagainst the College
lor membens of
lCouncil

I

Currently
3 years
and 4 mths

Proposing to
make 6 years
and 4 months

6

NO other college
requires 6 years

ONLY 4 Colleges
requires 3 years

7

19 Colleges are
silent

proc

1 College requires
5 years

1 College requires
16 months

After being
disqualified
from Council

6 years

Just amended
from 3 years
in Jan 2023

13 Colleges
requires
3 years

9 Colleges
requires 5-6
years

3 Colleges are
silent

after license
revoked or
suspended

6 years

Just amended
from 3 years
in Jan 2023

18 Colleges
requires 6
years

most say
"except for
nonpayment of
dues"

7 Colleges are
silent

After guilty of
criminal offence

Currently none

Proposing to make a
6 years

NO other college
requires 6 years

12 Colleges are silent

8 Colleges evaluate
suitability to practice
and whether it
warrants
disqualification

2 Colleges are never

3 Colleges unclear
and unique

after
discipline
decision

6 years

Just
amended
from 3 years
in Jan 2023

10 Colleges
requires 6 or
more years

13 Colleges
require 3
years or less

2 Colleges
are silent

after 9
consecutive
years on
Council

3 years

No change

Most
Colleges
require 0-3
years

2 colleges
require
5 years

9 Colleges
are silent

'l college is
never

after being
an employee
of the
College

Currently
3 years

Proposing to
make 6 years

ONLY 3
Colleges
requires 5-6
years

All other
Colleges
require 0-3
years

after being a
director of an
association
or
employee of an
educational
institution
Currently 3 years

Proposing to
make 6 years

NO other college
requires 6 years

All other Colleges
require 0-3 years

'Cooling Off
requirements

Ontario
Regulatory
colleges

College of
Chiropractors

of Ontario

Proposed
Cooling Off

requirements

Currently none

Proposing to make a
years

ONLY 3 Colleges
requires 6 years

Colleges only if
involved in current

rngs

1 College requires
'1 year

14 Colleges are silent

Summary

A "6 years Cooling Off period" was not found to be consistent with most Regulatory colleges except in matters related to
Discipline decisions, a revoked license, or a disqualification from Council after a proper investigation and vote by Council.

Most colleges have between l" to 3 years "cooling off period" from associations, educational institutions, and staff positions

A 6 year Cooling Off period following litigation/defending oneself against the College may be considered unconstitutional.

242



Summarv of Votine Procedures used bv Ontario Reeulatorv Colleges
243

CCO's Bvlaw Clause 8.8: Unless otherwise required by law or by-law, every question which properly comes before the

Council may be decided by a simple majority of the votes cast at the meeting by council members, and, if there is an equal

number of votes on a question, the chair may cast a deciding vote.

Rules used or referenced

Or Other unique clauses

Robert's Rules of Order

President votes

Only to break
the tie

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Council/committee
2/3 of Council

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

Silent

(no specific clause
or specific
requirements listed)

Robert's Rules of
order specifically
referenced in CCO's
Rules of Council.

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
(CCO Bvlaw 8.8)
Yes (see above)

2023 Council
applied this clause
to Bylaw changes in
January 2023

CCO did not apply
this clause to Bylaw
amendments in
2009 or 2015-16

Year
created

1 991

Ontario
Regulatory

college
College of
Chiropractors of
Ontario

Rules used or referenced

Or Other unique clauses

Bourinot's Rules of Order

Sturgis - The Standard Code of
Pa rlia menta ry Proced ure

Robert's Rules of Order

President votes

Never

silent
ln the event of a
tie vote, the motion
is defeated

silent

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Council/committee

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Has a
Simple MaJority
voting clause
samelsimilar to
GCO Bvlaw 8.8
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Year
created

1 991

1 991

199'1

Ontario
Regulatory

college

College of
Audiologists and
Speech-Language
Pathologists of
Ontario
College of
Chiropodists and
Podiatrists of Ontario

College of Dental
Hygienists of Ontario



. ....1.ll"l...l;ll i I II llllnllllllll lll,llltL.

The Standard Code of Parliamentary
Procedure

Robert's Rules of Order

determined by the chair or presiding officer
of such meeting in accordance with the
rules of order that the Board of Directors
adopts from time to time.
Robert's Rules of Order

Robert's Rules of Order

None referenced

The Board of Directors shall set or adopt
such rules of order that it deems
appropriate to govern and guide the
conduct of its meetings
Bourinot's Rules of Order

None referenced

Robert's Rules of Order

American lnstitute of Parliamentarians'
Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure

President votes

Yes

Yes

Only to break
the tie

silent

Yes

Yes

Only to break
the tie

Only to break
the tie

No second vote
motion defeated

Yes

Yes

No

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Council/committee

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

Majority of Council

2/3 of Council

silent

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

silent

2/3 of Council

213 of Council

2/3 of Council

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

213 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

213 of Council
explicitly stated

Simple majority
explicitly stateU

Simple majority
explicitly stated

213 of Council
explicitly stated

213 of Council
explicitly stated

Bourinot's Rules of
Order
(213 majority required)

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Simple majority
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Has a
Sirnple Majority
voting clause
same/similar to
CGO Bvlaw 8.8
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws

Year
created

1 991

1 991

1 991

1 991

2007

2007

1 991

1 991

1 991
updated
2017

1 991

2007

1 991

Ontario
Regulatory

college

College of Dental
Technologists of
Ontario
Royal College of
Dental Surgeons of
Ontario
College of Denturists
of Ontario

College of Dietitians
of Ontario

College of
Homeopaths of
Ontario
College of
Kinesiologists of
Ontario
College of Massage
Therapists of Ontario

College of Medical
Laboratory
Technologists of
Ontario

College of Medical
Radiation and
lmaging
Technoloqists
College of Midwives
of Ontario

College of
Naturopaths of
Ontario
College of Nurses of
Ontario

Parliamentary Rules used
or referenced

Other unique clauses

Robert's Rules of Order

244



such rules of order as it deems appropriate
to govern the conduct of each Board
meeting
Robert's Rules of Order

Robert's Rules of Order

None referenced
The Board may, from time to time, set or
adopt Rules of Order to guide the conduct
of Board meetings.
Wainberg's Society Meetings Rules of Order

Kerr and King's Procedures

Keesey's Modern Parliamentary Procedures

Robert's Rules of Order

Robert's Rules of Order

The Nomination Committee will consist of at
least two (2) members of Council who are not
running for election to the Executive
Committee, at least one of whom shall be a
public member and at least one of whom shall
be a professional member

Robert's Rules of Order

President votes

Only to break
the tie

No second vote
motion defeated

No second vote
motion defeated

Yes
with additional
vote to break
the tie

silent

silent

silent

Yes

No

No second vote
motion defeated

Required votes to
remove from a
position on
Council/commiftee

2/3 of Council

silent

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

2/3 of Council

silent

Simple majority

Required votes
to amend Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Special resolution
-defaults to Roberts
Rules in Bylaws

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Wainberg's Society
Meetings Rules of
Order
Simple majority
explicitly stated

Keesey's Modern
Parliamentary
Procedures
Simple majority
explicitly stated

2/3 of Council
explicitly stated

Simple majority
explicitly stated

Has a
Simple Majority
voting clause
same/similar to
CGO bvlaw 8.8
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bvlaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws
Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Yes
-not used to change
bylaws

Year
created

1 991

1 991

1 991

1 991

199'1

199'1

1 991

2007

1 991

2006

Ontario
Regulatory

college

College of
Occupational
Therapists of Ontario

College of opticians
of Ontario

College of
Optometrists of
Ontario

Ontario College of
Pharmacists

College of Physicians
and Surgeons of
Ontario

College of
Physiotherapists of
Ontario
College of
Psychologists of
Ontario
College of Registered
Psychotherapists of
Ontario
College of
Respiratory
Therapists of Ontario

College of Traditional
Chinese Medicine
and Acupuncturists of
Ontario

Rules used or referenced

Other unique clauses 245



Joel Friedman

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dr. Paul Blaser --

Sunday, November 19,2023'10:43 PM

cco.info
Re: President's Message: September 19,2023 - Draft Amendments to Standard of
Practice 5-003: Professional Portfolio and By-laws for Circulation and Feedback

246

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear members of the CCO

Thank you once again for tireless work to uphold the highest standards for regulating our profession. For brevity, I have

summarized the following points.

1. I am 10O% opposed to the proposal to changing pronouns to be gender neutral. Social media ideologies are not the

concerns of the CCO.

2. I agree that 5 hours of hands-on training of adjustments every 3 periods is good for the profession.

3. I am opposed to having a Nomination Committee coming from within the CCO council. This gives too much power and

controlto the president and council members.

It should be available from allgood-standing members of the profession.

4. An individual's eligibility to run for council was recently changed from 3 to 6 years. The sudden bylaw change was fast-

tracked immediately before an upcoming election. ln my opinion, this was a targeted attack upon 1 member. This is

probably the most embarrassing event that I can recall in my 37 years in practice.

5. I support the prevailing idea that a minimum of a2f3's majority is required to change an existing bylaw.

Once again, please consider the above points as we all strive to strengthen and unify our profession

All my regards.

Dr. Paul H. Blaser

On Tue, Sept L9, 2023, L:31- p.m. College of Chiropractors of Ontario <cco.info@cco.on.ca> wrote

x

President's Message,'September 79, 2023 - Draft
Amendments to Standard of Practice S'OO3:
Professional Portfolio and By-laws for Circulation and
Feedback

Update - Council Meeting September 8, 2023 and Strategic Planning
Sessions September 9, LOr 2023

1



Joel Friedman

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

to6 P|;1s .;: '

Sunday, November lg, iozZ 1 1:04 PM

cco.info
feedback on CCO BY-LAW Policy

247

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you have

verified the sender and know the content is safe.

GCO's BY- LAW CHANGES

Transcultural modifications to CCO terminology is unwise and will be a waste of time and energy

I support the amendment to the standard of practice 5-003.

It is preferable that 5 hours of 'hands on' sessions for adjustments be provided and completed every six
years.

The nomination committee is a recent development at the CCO. There are no longer any nominations
allowed from the floor. We are opposed to the president being a part of this committee, as the
president has too much influence over the Council.

4 By-law changes to by- law 6.9, dealing with a "cooling off period"as it pertains to someone's eligibility to
run for Council; seeks to change the period from three to six years, We find this amendment
unsupportable.This is a change that will block or delay our most qualified members from providing leadership
in our profession.
The Council is not punitive. We believe that three years is sufficient.
We further feel that this policy could be used to prevent specific individuals from applying for positions on

Council which is not a good omen for our young and evolving profession.

5. We believe that when a by-law change is happening, that Roberts Rules of order should be the default
protocol for our profession. lt specifically states that a 2l3rds majority is required for a by-law change rather
than a mere majority policy.
It is in the public interest that a government regulatory body like the CCO, follow this well established rule.

We are in favour of a 2/3rds majority, rather than a simple majority vote when it comes to changing by-laws.
We feel that this policy protects both the public and our profession from tyrannical interferency. and from
influences that have the best interests of either Chiropractic or the public interest, as their priority.

1

1

2
3
4

2.
3
4.
5.

3
4
5
6

7



We feel that by-laws are not to be changed without the best interests of Chiropractic as the overriding
compass.

Thank you for your service to our profession 248
Dr. Bob Pike D.C.

204 Simcoe Ave, Suite 10

Keswick, ON L4P 3S5

905.476.647s

Www.pikechiropractic.com

x Virus-free.www.avast. com
i

i

1

2



Joel Friedman

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Dr Emilie Perras <

Sunday, November 19,202310:51 PM

cco.info
Emilie Perras

member feedback due nov 19th

249

CAUTION EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments

unless you have verified the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,

I was unable to find a place to send in my feedback for some guidelines that are up for consideration. lf it's not too late,

can you send me the link? I looked everywhere once I logged into the member portal. I also looked on the public page

but could not see anything.

I am also writing my comments here. lf there is a place in the portal I am happy to send it through there instead

l-. I don't believe the president should be included in the nomination committee. They already hold a lot of power and

could sway others' decisions.

2. As for the cooling off period proposed. I do believe 3 years is sufficient. I had already written in my comments on this

matter.

3. I don't believe we need to change to gender neutral, they/them language. ln my opinion it is not a good use of the

CCO's time and the membership money.

Thank you,

Dr Emilie Perras

Pediatric & Family Chiropractor - Chiropraticienne Pediatrique et Familiale w\^/\^/ ^^r'' '-L^ -rtr-

ri. "L
r"aS

I


